
  www.greenwoodmn.com

  

  

 
 

 
AGENDA  
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

7pm, Wednesday, June 5, 2013 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
  
The public is invited to address the council regarding any item on the regular agenda. If your topic is not on the agenda, you may speak during 
Matters from the Floor. Comments are limited to 3 minutes. Agenda times are approximate.  
 

7:00pm  1. CALL TO ORDER ~ ROLL CALL ~ APPROVE AGENDA   
7:00pm  2.   CONSENT AGENDA 

Council members may remove consent agenda items for discussion. Removed items will be put under Other Business. 
 

A. Approve: 05-01-13 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approve: 05-15-13 City Council / Planning Commission Joint Worksession Minutes 
C. Approve: April Cash Summary Report 
D. Approve: May Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
E. Approve: June Payroll Register 
F. Approve: 2nd Reading of Ordinance 219 Amending Code Section 320 to Establish Minimum 

Rental Lease Term for Residential Properties  
7:05pm  3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 

This is an opportunity for the public to address the council regarding matters not on the agenda. The council will not 
engage in discussion or take action on items presented at this time. However, the council may ask for clarification and 
may include items on a future agenda. Comments are limited to 3 minutes.  

 
7:10pm  4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. City Engineer Dave Martini:  
• 2013 Inflow & Infiltration Project Bids  
• Excelsior Blvd. Street and Watermain Improvements 

B. Announcement: Met Council Excelsior Blvd. Project Open House, June 18, 6-7:30pm, at 
Shorewood City Hall, 5755 Country Club Road 

C. Announcement: July 4th Parade, 10am Start @ Greenwood Park      
7:20pm  5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Public Hearing: Showcase Event Application, Denali Custom Homes, 5190 Meadville Street 
B. Public Hearing: Liquor License Application, Mayette Enterprises LLC, 5175 Meadville Street      

7:30pm  6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. Review: Revised Report of Past Variances Granted for Possible Code Revisions      

8:00pm  7.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. Consider: Resolution 15-13 Findings Regarding Showcase Event Application,  

Denali Custom Homes, 5190 Meadville Street 
B. Consider: Liquor License Application, Mayette Enterprises LLC, 5185 Meadville Street 
C. Consider: Liquor License Refund, Stolz Family LLC, 5175 Meadville Street 
D. Consider: Resolution 16-13 Findings Regarding Variance Request,  

Jim & Libby Pastor, 5100 Greenwood Circle 
E. Consider: July 4th Fireworks Contribution 
F. Discuss: Draft of Uniform Animal Ordinance 
G. Discuss: 2014 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District Budget Options 
H. Discuss: Recycling Education Options 
I. Discuss: Potential Comments Regarding … 

Minnehaha Creek Watershed District Draft Minor Plan Amendment 
Met Council Draft 2014-2015 Transportation Improvement Program      

9:45pm  8.   OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None      

9:45pm  9.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
A. Cook: Planning Commission 
B. Fletcher: Lk Mtka Comm Commission, Fire, Xcel Project, Lake Improvement District 
C. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
D. Quam: Roads & Sewer, Minnetonka Community Education 
E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, Lake Improvement District      

10:00pm 10.  ADJOURNMENT 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 2 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
Summary: The consent agenda typically includes the most recent council minutes, cash summary report, verifieds report, 
electronic fund transfers, and check registers. The consent agenda also may include the 2nd reading of ordinances that 
were approved unanimously by the council at the 1st reading. Council members may remove consent agenda items for 
further discussion. Removed items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda. 
 
Council Action: Required. Possible motion … 
 

1. I move the council approves the consent agenda items as presented. 
 



GREENWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, May 1, 2013, 7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER – ROLL CALL – APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Cook, Fletcher, Quam and Roy 
 
Others Present: City Attorney Kelly, City Zoning Administrator/City Clerk Karpas and Engineer 

Martini (departed the meeting at 8:08 P.M.) 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Kind moved, Quam seconded, approving the agenda as presented. Motion passed 5/0. 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 
Mayor Kind reviewed the items on the consent agenda. 
 
Roy moved, Cook seconded, approving the items contained on the Consent Agenda.   
 

A. April 3, 2013, City Council Meeting Minutes  
  

B. April 11, 2013, Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Minutes 
 
C. April 11, 2013, Special Meeting Minutes 

 
D. April 25, 2013, Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Minutes 
 
E. April 25, 2013, Special Meeting Minutes 

 
F. March 2103 Cash Summary Report  

  
G. April Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers (This was moved to Item 

8.A under Other Business.) 
 

H. May 2013 Payroll Register  
 
I. Public Access Procedures Per Code Section 125 
 

Motion passed 5/0.  
 
3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR  
 
Greg Frankenfield, Shorewood, Minnesota, noted he is in the process of purchasing the Old Log Theater. 
He stated this evening he wanted to share with Council some of his preliminary plans should his 
transaction complete. He has been told by Tim Stolz that he has four of the six signatures needed. 
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 2 of 22 
  
Mr. Frankenfield explained his wife’s name is Marissa and that he has lived in the area for 25 years. 
Three of his four children graduated from Minnetonka High School and the fourth is in sixth grade at 
Minnetonka Middle School West. He is the CEO and co-founder of Magenic a software consulting 
company. He is not a real estate developer.  
 
Mr. Frankenfield stated the details for the Old Log Theater are still being worked on. The focus has been 
on getting the sale of the Theater and property to go through. He noted the process has not been easy. He 
has been working on it for a number of years.  
 
Mr. Frankenfield then stated they want to keep it a place that is for the whole community as it has been 
for nearly 70 years. They want to keep the comfortable and welcoming ambience with a commitment to 
the highest quality theater audience. They want local ownership and to keep involvement from the local 
arts community for the theater. The vision for the Theater is to create a theatrical center for the western 
suburbs that will perform both modern plays and small scale musicals. They want to keep their current 
audience to the best that they can. They would like to expand the audience by broadening the genre of 
plays and involving a larger array of local acting and production talent. They want to upgrade the facility 
and renovate where necessary to achieve the vision. Although it has not been set in stone, they are 
thinking they want to run up to four shows a year. They still plan on holding two children’s shows a year.  
 
The vision for the restaurant is for it to be better able to support the theater and to be a friendly place for 
the local community to enjoy. They plan to move to a menu based dinner; a more modern menu reflecting 
modern diets. They want to keep events such as weddings. The purchase agreement stipulates they will 
honor the eight weddings that have been booked for the summer. They seek corporate events as well as 
community events. They intend on continuing to act as the polling place for Greenwood and the meeting 
place for the rotary. They want to build strong ties to the community through events such as concerts and 
free shows like the Stolz family has been offering for years.   
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated taking on a theater and a restaurant is quite an undertaking. He asked Mr. 
Frankenfield if he is sure he wants to take that on. Mr. Frankenfield stated his wife is going to take on the 
restaurant side and he is planning on having a full-time artistic director. Tim Stolz has been asked to stay 
on because he knows the theater and general management very well. Jon Stolz may be willing to stay on 
for a while as well.  
 
Mayor Kind thanked Mr. Frankenfield for coming.  
 
4. PRESENTATIONS, GUESTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

A. South Lake Minnetonka Police Department Quarterly Update  
 
Mayor Kind noted South Lake Minnetonka Police Department (SLMPD) Deputy Chief Dave Pierson and 
Patrol Officer Justin Kuipers are present this evening to provide Council with a SLMPD quarterly update.  
 
Deputy Chief Pierson stated Patrol Officer Kuipers joined the SLMPD in June 2010. Kuipers was 
formerly with the Golden Valley Police Department. He then stated Kuipers has been put in charge of the 
use-of-force issues. Kuipers goes to school and then trains the rest of the Department. The Department 
takes use-of-force training very seriously.  
 
Patrol Officer Kuipers stated he has always had an interest in use-of-force and that is why he was asked to 
be an instructor of it. He went through a 50-hour, week-long course on use-of-force training held at Camp 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 3 of 22 
  
Ripley. It was taught by a certified use-of-force instructor. After completing the training he was then 
certified to teach other SLMPD personnel. This year he will attend a more advanced class.  
 
Kuipers explained force is what a police officer uses to arrest or control a situation with someone. If an 
officer tells a person they are under arrest and have to come with the officer and the person says “no” the 
officer explains what will happen next. That could involve using verbal commands, OC spray, a Taser, a 
baton, an officer’s hands or legs, or a gun (a deadly force option). Officers do that for their safety and the 
person’s safety. He noted the SLMPD officers do not have a lot of use-of-force issues. The type of force 
used varies by situation. It is not a stepped/tiered program.  
 
Kuipers then explained per State Statutes an officer can use force when making a lawful arrest, in the 
execution of the legal process (e.g., a search warrant or a warrant for someone’s arrest), or in any other 
duty imposed by law (e.g., a person has a mental health issue and needs to go to the hospital for an 
evaluation by a doctor). Force is use to gain control. Officers use the least amount of force possible which 
is mandated by law. They cannot use force that is beyond reasonable. Reasonable is defined by what 
another officer would do in a similar situation. Deadly force can be used any time an officer or the public 
is in fear of great bodily harm or death, or a potentially-dangerous person’s escape.  
 
Kuipers displayed a Taser and explained it sends a voltage through the body and incapacitates the muscles 
for long enough for an officer to gain control. He noted that he has been tasered three times; two times 
were voluntary and one was mandatory (it was part of skills training). He explained some officers carry 
pepper spray; he does not because of how it affects him. If a person is sprayed with OC spray they cannot 
be tasered because there is a possibility the person could be started on fire. All SLMPD officers have to 
carry a baton that has a three-pound ball on the end of it. It is used to hit above and below the elbow and 
in the meat of the leg. If someone is hit hard enough in one leg the other leg gives out. That gives the 
officer an opportunity to handcuff the person. He doesn’t know of many SLMPD officers that have ever 
used the baton on a person; he has not. Officers do use them to break windows, etc. All officers carry a 
firearm. The type varies by preference.  
 
Kuipers noted every SLMPD officer has to go through training on each of the tools every year. That 
involves handcuffing and the use of the baton, OC spray and Taser. They have to be proficient in those 
things per State Statute. He needs to keep his training up because new case laws come up about use of 
force.  
 
Kuipers stated the Taser the SLMPD uses is becoming obsolete. The newer model of Taser will allow an 
officer to Taser one person and then another person right after that. He then stated in addition to using the 
use-of-force tools to keep the officer and the general public safe it reduces the liability to a city. 
 
Kuipers cited a situation where he was on a scene where someone tried to hang themself. The officers on 
the scene told that person that he needed to go to the hospital but the person did not want to do that. The 
person was substantially bigger than the officers and decided to put one of the officers in a headlock. If 
the officers would not have had Tasers available it would have instantly escalated into a deadly use-of-
force situation.  
 
Councilmember Quam stated about once a year there is situation in other parts of the state where the 
police pursue someone at high speed and driver of the vehicle being pursued runs a red light or stop sign 
and kills someone. He asked what the SLMPD’s policy is regarding chasing a vehicle. How serious does 
the crime have to be to warrant chasing at a very high speed? Deputy Chief Pierson noted the SLMPD 
does have a pursuit policy that is mandated by the Minnesota Board of Peace Officer Standards and 
Training (POST). The policies in the State are close to the same. If a chase becomes too dangerous the 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 4 of 22 
  
officer has to use common sense. If there is a supervisor on they are responsible for the conduct of the 
officer. Quam expressed concern that a minor burglar can be turned into a killer during a high-speed 
chase.  Deputy Chief Pierson stated every patrol vehicle has a stop stick in it. The sticks are thrown across 
the roadway and they deflate vehicle tires. It will slow the vehicle down a lot. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked if the SLMPD quarterly activity report for Greenwood (a copy of which is 
included in the meeting packet) is going to be provided regularly. He noted he likes the report. Deputy 
Chief Pierson stated it will be provided quarterly. Fletcher stated to him it appears that some of the items 
listed are duplicate. Pierson stated he is not sure, noting the report is relatively new to him. Mayor Kind 
stated she did not think there were duplicates listed. 
 

B. City Engineer Dave Martini 
 

a. 2013 Road Project Recommendations and Rough Estimates 
 
Mayor Kind stated each year the conditions of the City’s roadways are evaluated by a committee based on 
a visual inspection, and rough cost estimates are prepared for recommended potential road improvement 
projects. The evaluation was done on April 10, 2013, by her, Councilmember Quam and Engineer 
Martini. The meeting packet includes copy of a document describing the potential road projects as well as 
soft cost estimates for each of the projects. The road project budget for 2013 is $130,000 for construction 
and engineering as well as the projects that will be done in conjunction with the Metropolitan Council 
Environmental Services (MCES) forcemain project. Engineer Martini stated the City’s share of the 
MCES project cost is $14,245 with $3,600 being for sewer work so that will come out of the Sewer Fund 
leaving $10,645 to be funded out of the road project budget.  
 
Engineer Martini stated the meeting packet contains a map of all of the City’s roadways indicating when 
the last work was done on each roadway and what the work was and a map depicting the current 
condition of each roadway. 
 
Martini reviewed the recommended potential road projects for 2013.  
 
1. Byron Circle (from Minnetonka Boulevard to the north leg that was resurfaced in 2007) – the 

recommended improvements include removing the existing bituminous pavement, re-grading and 
preparing the existing base, 3.5” of new bituminous surface, and turf and driveway restoration as 
needed. The estimated construction cost for the recommended improvements is $51,460 

 
2. Covington Street (from Meadville Street to Fairview Street) – the recommended improvements 

include complete reconstruction of the roadway including drainage improvements. The existing 
bituminous pavement will be removed and the road will be excavated. A new aggregate base will be 
constructed along with 3.5” of new bituminous surface. The ditch on the west side of the road will be 
regarded to improve drainage in the area and allow water to shed from the roadway surface. Turf and 
driveway restoration will be completed as needed. The design work for this portion of the project will 
include the collection of topographic survey information so that the needed drainage improvements 
can be properly designed. The estimated cost for the recommended improvements is $59,475 

 
Martini stated if there are sufficient funds it’s recommended that the City do some preventive 
maintenance work in the Lodge Lane area or possibly seal coat Sleepy Holly Road and Weeks Road. The 
last two roads were repaved several years ago and sealcoating them would be a good preventative 
maintenance practice.  
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 5 of 22 
  
Martini stated the costs for Byron Circle and Covington Street total $110,935. When the City’s cost for 
the work to be done with the MCES project is added in the total amount comes to $121,580.  
 
Councilmember Cook asked if any consideration was giving to doing resurfacing the City’s half or entire 
span of the St. Alban’s Bay Bridge. Engineer Martini stated the group did not, and noted it could 
definitely use it. Cook stated from his vantage point now would be the time to do it so there is time to 
enjoy the improvement prior to the Bridge being replaced. Mayor Kind stated if that were to be done the 
whole Bridge should be done, not just Greenwood’s half. 
 
Engineer Martini stated the City could solicit bids for what resurfacing the Bridge would cost and then 
that could be considered as an alternate project for consideration. He noted that again the estimates are 
conservative. He explained if the Bridge surface is taken off it’s possible that the condition of what is 
underneath the surface needs repairs and that could be fairly costly. He suggested the assumption should 
be the Bridge will not be constructed for 10 years with the hope that it would be done sooner.  
 
Councilmember Quam said the rating of the Bridge for structural integrity was a 51 the last time it was 
rated. It is supposed to be rated every 3 years but that is not necessarily what happens.  
 
Engineer Martini stated the rating has to be below 50 to be eligible for outside funding.  
 
Councilmember Quam supported getting bids for resurfacing the Bridge.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked if there are recommended guidelines for how frequently a road should be 
seal coated. Engineer Martini explained a lot depends on the condition of the road. The frequency range is 
3 – 7 years or longer. But, a lot of factors have to be taken into account such as the condition of the road, 
the amount of use and the quality of materials used. The purpose of the sealcoat is to protect the road.  
 
Mayor Kind stated the last time Lodge Lane was seal coated was prior to 2004.   
 
Engineer Martini stated the cracks in the surface of Lodge Lane are getting bigger. There is also a lot of 
settling near the catch basins and storm sewer structure. He then stated a few years ago the estimate for 
Lodge Lane was $75,880 to make all of the improvements that should be made. It was an extensive scope 
of work.  
 
Councilmember Quam stated after the Byron Circle and Covington improvements are done all of the 
City’s roadways should be at least average. He did not think there would be any major projects in 2014.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked if it may be better to do some preventative maintenance this year and 
leave Covington Street repairs for 2014. Then maybe some of Fairview Street could be done in 2014 also. 
By doing that it may be possible to get a better combined bid than if the two were done separately.  
 
Engineer Martini stated Covington Street is in pretty bad condition now. He then stated doing the 
preventative maintenance on the Lodge Lane area would keep it in reasonable shape. He noted Byron 
Circle is beyond preventative maintenance.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she thought for sure Byron Circle should be done this year. She noted the approximate 
$59,000 for Covington Circle is not enough to make all the improvements to the Lodge Lane area.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated the Lodge Lane project scope could be downsized, while still significantly 
extending the life of the roadway, to a project cost of $50,000 – $55,000.  



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 6 of 22 
  
 
Councilmember Quam asked if there is something that could be done to Covington Street that would 
mitigate the water issues in the spring. Engineer Martini responded that some grading could be done 
alongside of the road. Councilmember Cook stated he does not think grading will do much good.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated from his vantage point Covington Street and Fairview Street would be 
logical to do in 2014 and preventative maintenance could be done in 2013 along with Byron Circle 
improvements. Mayor Kind and Councilmember Quam agreed.  
 
Fletcher moved, Cook seconded, directing the City Engineer to secure bids for the recommended 
roadway improvements to Byron Circle, minimal repair and sealcoating of Lodge Lane, and an 
alternate bid for resurfacing of the St. Alban’s Bay Bridge. Motion passed 5/0. 
 

b. Excelsior Boulevard Petition 2 Area Presentation 
 
Mayor Kind explained the City received a second petition dated March 15, 2013, from the owners of the 
properties located between 21150 and 21030 Excelsior Boulevard (the Petition 2 Area) requesting 
watermain be extended to their properties as part of the upcoming Metropolitan Council Environmental 
Services (MCES) sanitary sewer forcemain project. As a result of the petition Council ordered a 
feasibility report prepared by the City Engineer. The next step in the process is for Council to hold a 
public hearing during this meeting. 
 
Engineer Martini stated the watermain currently extends from the City of Excelsior to about 300 feet west 
of Christmas Lake Road.  
 
Martini provided background on the project. Metropolitan Council Environmental Services (MCES) is 
proposing improvements to its sewer system. MCES’ plan is to construct a second 24-inch force main 
under Excelsior Boulevard. As part of that project Excelsior Boulevard will need to be torn up and 
reconstructed. The current schedule for the forcemain project is 2013 and 2014 for construction; the 
Greenwood portion is scheduled for 2013. There were Greenwood property owners who thought it would 
be the appropriate time to ask for an extension of the City of Excelsior’s watermain. 
 
Councilmember Cook noted that MCES has received bids for its project including the extension of 
watermain in the Petition 1 Area. He also noted that all of the bids were under the engineering estimates.  
 
Engineer Martini explained the proposed watermain extension for the Petition 2 area is from 21150 to 
21030 Excelsior Boulevard as requested in the second petition. The size of the proposed watermain is 8-
inch diameter. Excelsior plans to pay the incremental cost to upsize the pipe to 12-inch diameter to 
Christmas Lake Road for a future interconnection with the City of Shorewood. The watermain 
construction would include the installation of fire hydrants along the route. Service stubs will be 
constructed to the edge of the right of way. Residential service stubs are proposed to vary between 1 inch 
and 1.5 inches depending on the length of the service to the individual property.  
 
The proposed reconstructed roadway will be approximately 26 feet wide with concrete curb and gutter on 
both sides. The existing bituminous walkway on the south side will be reconstructed to 6-8 foot wide. 
Typically, about 10 feet of the driveways will be reconstructed to provide transition between the newly 
constructed road surface and existing driveway. Disturbed boulevards will be restored. 
 
The total estimated project cost to Greenwood for the watermain extension for the Petition 2 area is 
$65,490.84. The estimate includes construction costs and soft costs. Construction costs consist of the 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 7 of 22 
  
watermain extension, the service stubs to all lots fronting the watermain, and fire hydrants. Soft costs 
include things such as project engineering, administrative, legal, fiscal and miscellaneous costs.  
 
City costs are proposed to be funded by special assessments to the benefitting properties. The Petition 2 
assessment area consists of 6 single-family residential parcels. The proposed assessment is by unit; it 
assesses like parcels the same amount. The existing service reconstruction, street reconstruction, driveway 
restoration, and boulevard restoration costs will be funded by MCES.  
 
Based on the proposed assessment method and the estimated project costs for the residential parcels will 
be $10,915 for each of the six residential parcels. Each parcel within the assessment area will be assessed 
this cost regardless if it connects to the watermain.  
 
Each property receiving water service from the watermain extension will incur other expenses at the time 
of connection. They include, but are not limited to, the City of Excelsior’s $2,000 connection charge and 
a meter cost of $328.46 plus tax. Those costs are subject to change in the future. In addition the property 
owner will have to hire a contractor to extend the service from the service stub to the house and to make 
the connection inside the house. The property owner will also pay usage rates and fees after connection.  
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Fletcher, Zoning Administrator/Clerk Karpas stated the 
owner of the property located at 21080 is on board with the extension.  
 

C. Spring Clean-up Day, Saturday, May 4, 2013 
  
Mayor Kind noted the City’s spring clean-up day will be held on May 4. Residents are asked to have their 
items out at curbside by 7:00 A.M.  
 

D. Annual Joint Work Session of the City Council & Planning Commission 
  
Mayor Kind noted the annual joint work session of the City Council and Planning Commission is 
scheduled for May 15, 2013, immediately following the Commission’s meeting. The meeting will be held 
at Jake O’Connor’s in Excelsior.   
 

E. Xcel Energy Scott County-Westgate 69 kV to 115 kV Transmission Upgrade Project 
Public Utilities Commission Public Hearing May 16, 2013, Chanhassen Recreation 
Center 

 
Mayor Kind noted the Public Utilities Commission has scheduled a public hearing about the Xcel Energy 
Scott County-Westgate 69 kV to 115 kV Transmission Upgrade Project for May 16, 2013, 1:30-4:30 P.M. 
and 6:00-9:00 P.M. at the Chanhassen Recreation Center. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated he met with some residents on April 29 who are going to try and get 
people to go to the public hearing. He commented that it is important for there to be good turnout at the 
meeting by Greenwood residents.  
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING   
    

A. Public Hearing Excelsior Boulevard Watermain Project Petition Area 2 (properties 
between 21150 & 21030 Excelsior Boulevard) 

 
Quam moved, Cook seconded, opening the public hearing at 8:02 P.M. Motion passed 5/0. 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 8 of 22 
  
 
Michael Quackenboss, 21030 Excelsior Boulevard, noted that most of the questions he had were 
answered by Engineer Martini during his presentation. He asked if there are any requirements from the 
City of Excelsior that the property owners in the Petition 2 Area cap their wells.   
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated in the extension agreement property owners have to connect to municipal 
water within ten years of the extension being done.  
 
Mayor Kind explained that after a property owner hooks up to municipal water they can continue to use 
their well water for things outside of the house such as washing a car and watering their lawn.  
 
Roy moved, Cook seconded, closing the Public Hearing at 8:04 P.M. Motion passed 5/0. 
 
6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

A. Next Steps Regarding Excelsior Boulevard Watermain Project  
  
Mayor Kind explained the next step in the Excelsior watermain extension project for the Petition 2 Area 
is for Council to adopt a resolution ordering the improvement and preparation of plans for the Petition 2 
area. When the meeting packet was sent out the Excelsior-Greenwood Water Expansion Agreement and 
the Excelsior-Greenwood Municipal Water Service Agreement had not been finalized. The Excelsior 
Council will take final action on the Agreements during its May 6 meeting. She noted she has no 
indication the Excelsior Council will not approve them.  
 
Kind asked Council how it would like to proceed. Does it want to approve Resolution 14-13 ordering the 
improvement and preparation of plans? Or, does Council want to hold off until the Agreements have been 
signed?  
 
In response to a question from Attorney Kelly, Mayor Kind stated the ordering the improvement and 
preparation of plans for the Petition 1 area already has been done.  
 
Cook moved, Fletcher seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 14-13, “A Resolution Ordering 
Improvement and Preparation of Plans for the Installation of Watermain from 21150 Excelsior 
Boulevard to 21030 Excelsior” subject to the City of Excelsior approving the Excelsior-Greenwood 
Water Expansion Agreement and the Excelsior-Greenwood Municipal Water Service Agreement 
and item 4 in the resolution being clarified to say the city of Excelsior. Motion passed 5/0. 
 
Mayor Kind stated the next step for Greenwood is to make a go / no-go decision.  
 
Engineer Martini departed the meeting at 8:08 P.M. 
 
 

B. Second Readings: Ordinance 216, Amending Zoning Code Chapter 11, Residential 
Uses; Ordinance 217 Home Occupations, Amending Code Chapters 4 and 12; and, 
Ordinance 218, Amending Penal Code Chapter 9 to Add Prohibited Uses of 
Residential Properties 

 
Mayor Kind stated this is the second readings of: Ordinance 216, Amending Zoning Code Chapter 11, 
Residential Uses; Ordinance 217 Home Occupations, Amending Code Chapters 4 and 12; and, Ordinance 
218, Amending Penal Code Chapter 9 to Add Prohibited Uses of Residential Properties.  



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 9 of 22 
  
 
Kind explained that during the April 25, 2013, special Planning Commission meeting a public hearing 
was held regarding Ordinance 216. During that meeting the Commission recommended approval of the 
Ordinance. During Council’s April 25, 2013, special meeting Council approved the first reading of the 
Ordinance with changes as shown in the copy of the Ordinance provided to Council on April 25.  Since 
that meeting Attorney Kelly suggested new language and a copy of the modified Ordinances were found 
at the dais this evening. She asked Kelly to walk Council through his changes.  
 
Attorney Kelly explained that in Ordinance 216 it adds definitions to Section 1102 for in the definitions 
of event center, lake recreation center and marina. Since the first reading of the Ordinance he deleted “in 
exchange for valuable consideration” because he thought it was superfluous. In event center he also 
deleted “provided that the use of a single-family home by the property owner or, if leased, by a leasehold 
tenant with leasehold possessory rights of not less than 30 days for private family gatherings, or an 
occasional party host to specific invitees are excepted” in order to narrow the definition down.  Section 7 
of the Ordinance includes leasehold term minimums.  
 
The home occupation definition in Code Section 1102 was changed to read “Home Occupation means a 
business, business office, and/or business related support services housed, located, operated, or 
conducted from in or about a residence carried on by individuals residing therein as regulated by section 
480.” The deleted language “Home occupations must be incidental and secondary to the primary 
residential use of the dwelling and may not adversely impact or change the residential appearance and 
character thereof” was added to Section 480.15(B) in Ordinance 217. The intent of the deleted language 
“The zoning administrator shall have authority to review and approve or disapprove home occupations” 
was incorporated into the new Section 1180.10 Zoning Administrator Enforcement Authority.  
 
In Code Section 1102 the definition of hotel/motel was changed to read “Hotel, Motel means any building 
or portion of a building where residential use, or occupancy, or sleeping accommodations is offered to 
persons for short-term or transient use in exchange for compensation on a per-use, per-day, per-week, or 
less than a per-month basis.” The language “A residential property that is rented for 30 days or more is 
not considered to be a “Hotel / Motel” provided that there is a written lease to a specific tenant(s), 
without right of sub-letting or assignment” was deleted.   
 
Code Section 1140.05 Subd. 2 Prohibited Uses, All Districts continues to read “No property or lot of 
record may be put to a use or employed for a use or purpose other than those specifically enumerated as 
permitted uses, accessory uses, or conditional uses under the applicable respective zoning code 
regulations for the district host to such property or lot.” That is the law in the State of Minnesota. Subd. 3 
Specifically Prohibited Uses and Activities in Residential Districts was changed to read “No property or 
lot of record zoned residential (R-1A, R-1B, or R-2) may be employed for used for or as (1) a “Hotel, 
Motel,” (2) an “Event Center,” (3) a “Marina,” or (4) a “Lake Recreation Center. ”  
 
Mayor Kind stated she had proposed adding an exception in Subd. 3 which read “Exception. The property 
known as the Old Log Theater may continue to be used as an event center.” Attorney Kelly stated it is not 
appropriate to reference a particular property in the City Code.  
 
Attorney Kelly explained the Old Log Theater property started as a special use permit and about 15 years 
ago it was considered as a conditional use which is the more modern term. He noted that Zoning 
Administrator/Clerk Karpas has informed him that a copy of the special use permit cannot be found. He 
also noted the owners of the property did not have to apply for a conditional use permit because the uses 
were grandfathered in. He explained the property is a legal use and can continue in the use that it is. 
Whether it should be expandable is a matter for discussion going forward. He stated the changes he is 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 10 of 22 
 
proposing would not prohibit the Old Log Theater from continuing to be used as an event center for 
things such as weddings. Going forward good communication about the Old Log Theater property 
owner’s needs and the City’s needs for that residential area will be beneficial in creating a good plan. He 
commented there are no known event centers in the City other than the Old Log Theater.  
 
In Section 1140.05 Subd. 4 Leasehold Term Minimums he added the following language “… nor may 
such properties be leased to more than two (2) tenant occupant groups in any one four (4) month period.” 
 
In Section 8 of Ordinance 216 a new subsection was added. Section 1180.10 Zoning Administrator 
Enforcement Authority reads “The zoning administrator shall have authority to make determinations that 
specific uses are prohibited or are or would be in violation of applicable code. In the case of home 
occupations, the zoning administrator may make determinations that a specific home occupation 
adversely impacts or changes the character of a residential area and is therefore barred by code. The 
zoning administrator may issue and serve written demands that uses in violation of code cease and may 
issue civil citations as provided under chapter 12 for zoning code and underlying municipal code 
violations.” 
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated Ordinance 216 does not have theater as a conditional use. He asked what 
would happen if the owner of the Old Log Theater wants to make a minor expansion to the Theater 
building if Theater is no longer a listed as a conditional use. He observed that the Theater is grandfathered 
in for its current configuration, but wondered if a small five-foot expansion would be allowed under the 
“grandfathered” status.  
 
Attorney Kelly explained that by eliminating theater as a conditional use, even a small building expansion 
would not be allowed. The City has no record of the special use permit or a conditional use permit for the 
Theater. There is habit and course of conduct which are defined by the building footprint. When it gets to 
the question of what it becomes is a matter of balancing public health, safety and wellness. He stated it is 
in the City’s common interest that the Old Log Theater’s legacy continues. The community recognizes 
that it is a unique site. It has a legacy people admire and it puts the City on the map. The City has been 
accommodating to the Theater and the Stolz family and the Stolz family has been accommodating to the 
City.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked if the Old Log Theater property is big enough to have a zoning district 
(e.g., R-1C) applicable to it only. Attorney Kelly stated it is. Fletcher suggested consideration be given to 
creating an R-1C Zoning District that basically has similar residential zoning to what the City already has 
in the R-1A district and would allow the conditional uses of theater, restaurant, and event center. The 
current Theater property would be rezoned to that. Attorney Kelly stated that would be a fine concept to 
explore, noting it needs to be explored through the Planning Commission.  
 
Attorney Kelly explained that by having the Planning Commission explore the concept of a R-1C Zoning 
district it will identify specific conditions to discuss, define and impose on the operation of a 
theater/restaurant either exactly as the City has always known it or as it may need to morph going 
forward. If theater is left as a conditional use in the R-1A Zoning District the only thing the City can do is 
impose what it thinks it can justify that is in the best interest of public health, safety and welfare. Attorney 
Kelly recommends that the City and the Theater operator each need to define what they need and they 
need to reach an agreement that is acceptable.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated he thinks there have to be changes made to the Old Log Theater to be 
viable in the long run. There needs to be flexibility in the City Code to work with the operators of the Old 
Log Theater to allow them to do things that make sense. He expressed concern that some changes to the 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 11 of 22 
 
Code may not allow the City to allow things that make sense. He stated having the Planning Commission 
explore the concept of an R-1C Zoning District seems reasonable.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she would support the Planning Commission exploring the concept of an R-1C Zoning 
District.  
 
Councilmember Cook stated he understood Councilmember Fletcher to say the way the City Code is 
currently written it would not allow the owners of the Old Log Theater to ask for a variance to do 
something. He asked someone to explain why they could not ask for a variance. Mayor Kind explained 
because Theater, Restaurant, and Event Center are not listed as permitted or conditional uses for the 
zoning district where the Old Log is located, the property owner would not be allowed to seek a variance.  
 
Zoning Administrator/Clerk Karpas stated legal nonconforming uses are allowed to operate as is. They 
cannot be expanded. He explained that taking Theater out as a conditional use gives the Planning 
Commission and City time to identify more specific conditions for that type of use.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated the City allowed the Old Log Theater to operate as a conditional use for 
many years. There is a legitimate buyer for the property and Theater. He questioned why there is an 
emergency need to quickly remove Theater as a conditional use now.  
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Roy, Attorney Kelly explained conditional use would be 
the appropriate way to go with a Theater use. He noted that a year and a half ago the Council discussed 
rezoning the Old Log Theater property to a new zoning district.  
 
Mayor Kind clarified that the Council at that time wanted a potential new owner of the property to request 
it be rezoned. It did not want to spend City money on researching rezoning without such a request. She 
noted the prospective new owner has not made such a request.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher noted that discussion was about a proposal for a major change in the use of the 
property. He stated if an R-1C Zoning District is created with the same single-family regulations as the 
R1-A Zoning district and with Event Center, Restaurant and Theater allowed as conditional uses, then the 
Theater conditional use can be taken out of the R-1A district zoning regulations.  
 
Mayor Kind reiterated she likes the idea of creating a new zoning district for the Old Log Theater 
property. Councilmember Cook expressed his support for rezoning the Old Log Theater property to a new 
zoning district for that property alone.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated he had previously asked about requiring people to let the City know when 
they had rented out their property. He noted Council had found a copy of a memorandum from Attorney 
Kelly titled Registration of Landlord and Tenants at the dais this evening which addresses that. He asked 
Kelly if the gist of his response was to basically ignore doing that. Kelly stated he thought that would be 
overreaching and it would create issues for the City.  
 
Cook moved, Roy seconded, Approving ORDINANCE NO., 216, “An Ordinance of the City of 
Greenwood, Minnesota, Amending Greenwood Ordinance Code Chapter 11 Regarding Uses in 
Residential Districts.” Motion passed 5/0. 
 
Mayor Kind asked Attorney Kelly to review his recommended changes to Ordinance 217 Home 
Occupations amending Code Chapters 4 and 12.  
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 12 of 22 
 
Attorney Kelly explained in Ordinance 217 he added definitions to Section 1205. They include event 
center, home occupation, hotel/motel, lake recreation center and marina. The definitions are consistent 
with the same definitions in Chapter 11. He changed Section 480.15(B) Home Occupations General 
Regulations to read “Home occupations must be incidental and secondary to the primary residential use 
of the dwelling and may not adversely impact or change the residential appearance and character 
thereof.” In Section 480.15(K) he inserted “, nor shall a residential dwelling be used exclusively for 
business purposes” at the end of the sentence. He changed Section 480.15(M) to read “No home 
occupation may offer, gift or serve intoxicating or non-intoxicating alcoholic beverages to guests, 
invitees, potential or actual customers or clients, nor serve same at social or sale events.” It had read “No 
home occupation may offer, gift or serve intoxicating or non-intoxicating alcoholic beverages to potential 
or actual customers or clients, nor serve same at social / sale events.”  Section 480.30 Zoning 
Administrator Authority was added and it reads “The zoning administrator shall have authority under 
section 1180 to enforce this code section and may make determinations that specific home occupations 
adversely impact or change the character of a residential area in violation of this code. The zoning 
administrator may issue demands that uses in violation of code cease and may issue civil citations as 
provided under chapter 12 for violations of this code section.” 
 
Cook moved, Quam seconded, Approving ORDINANCE NO. 217, “An Ordinance of the City of 
Greenwood, Minnesota, Amending Greenwood Ordinance Code Chapter 4 Permits & Licenses to 
Add Section 480 Home Occupations and Adding Related Definitions to Chapter 12.”   
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated the current Ordinance has its own language regarding parking and storing 
vehicles. That language is different than what is stated in Ordinance 217.  
 
Attorney Kelly explained that Section 1140.45 Subd. 13 addresses storage of regulated motor vehicles in 
residential districts. The intent was to avoid commercial vehicles being introduced into residential areas. 
It was to address an issue about 15-20 years ago where a property was host to a charter boat. The Code 
was modified to address commercial boats and commercial vehicles. He then explained Section 
480.15(C) reads “No residence host to a home occupation shall be used to store vehicles associated with 
the home occupation unless kept and stored wholly within a garage upon the premises.” The City is not 
prohibiting the vehicle from being there; it just wants it contained. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked if store and parked are two different things. Attorney Kelly stated they 
might be interpreted to be somewhat different; parking sounds temporary and storage sounds longer term.  
 
Zoning Administrator/Clerk Karpas stated if a person is driving their work vehicle home and then back to 
work the City won’t make an issue of that.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked if the existing Ordinance is working well when it comes to what people 
can store and keep on the property. He then asked if the existing Ordinance could just be referenced in 
Section 480 Home Occupations.  
 
Attorney Kelly stated Section 1145.45 Subd. 13 is based on gross vehicle weight. Section 480.15 is 
related to the vehicles used in conjunction with the home occupation.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked if the impact is any different if people see a regular vehicle parked on a 
residential property or if they see a home occupation vehicle. Councilmember Quam stated he thought a 
truck with a lot of graphics or the company name on it has a different visual impact than a personal van. 
Fletcher stated if a truck with graphics on it is driven to and from work it is not a home occupation 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 13 of 22 
 
vehicle and therefore would not be covered by Ordinance Section 480.15. Yet a van could be used for the 
home occupation and it would be covered.  
 
Zoning Administrator/Clerk Karpas stated he would prefer to keep Section 480.15(C) rather than referring 
people to Section 1140.15 Subd. 13.  
 
Motion passed 4/1 with Fletcher dissenting. 
 
Attorney Kelly stated in Ordinance 218 he removed the specific reference to the Old Log Theater 
property in the penal code. The reason for that was discussed during the discussion of Ordinance 216.  
 
Mayor Kind noted the Old Log Theater is grandfathered as an event center.  
 
Greg Frankenfield, Shorewood, Minnesota, (the prospective new owner of the Old Log Theater and 
property) stated the Old Log Theater has been in operation for many years and the current ordinances 
have been in place for years. He asked why they are being changed now.  
 
Mayor Kind stated the three ordinances came about different reasons. It started out as just the home 
occupation ordinance. Then the City found out a residential property in the City was being marketed as 
vacation rental/event center. That is why the various definitions were added to the Code. When going 
through the Zoning Code she realized the Old Log Theater is an event center so she thought there needed 
to be an exception for that.  
 
Mr. Frankenfield asked how many readings on an ordinance amendment there are. Mayor Kind responded 
that there are two readings and explained the amendments will go into effect once they are published on 
May 9 in the Sun-Sailor.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated a neighbor of a particular property came before the Council and 
complained that the property next to him that was recently purchased was being marketed as a short-term 
rental property and an event center. That was what drove a large part of the amendments. The event center 
thing is not being driven by the Old Log Theater. He then stated that by rezoning the Old Log Theater 
property and allowing conditional uses on it keeps things simpler for that property.  
 
Mr. Frankenfield stated earlier this evening there was discussion about a special use which is now called 
conditional use and that a conditional use cannot be expanded. He asked what the definition of expanded 
is. Attorney Kelly clarified there is expansion in use and expansion in size. Mr. Frankenfield a show that 
drew a larger audience would be an expanded use. There was Council consensus that larger audiences 
would not be considered an “expanded use.” Councilmember Quam stated he thought Mr. Frakenfield 
will find the current Council to be very helpful.  
 
Quam moved, Fletcher seconded, Approving ORDINANCE NO. 218, “An Ordinance of the City of 
Greenwood, Minnesota, Amending Greenwood Ordinance Code Chapter 9, Nuisances and Penal 
Regulations, by the Addition of Section 910.70 Prohibited Use of Residential Property.” Motion 
passed 5/0. 
 

C. Revised Report of Past Variances Granted for Possible Code Revisions 
 
Mayor Kind noted that the meeting packet did not contain information about this item. The information 
was found at the dais this evening.  
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 14 of 22 
 
Fletcher moved, Quam seconded, continuing this item until the June 5, 2013, Council meeting. 
Motion passed 5/0. 
 

D. Second Reading: Ordinance 215 Regarding Building Volume Regulations 
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated he understands that if Ordinance 215 is not acted upon this evening the 
time limit for it will expire and the Council will have to start over with another first reading of the 
Ordinance. He suggested Council table this item until after it discusses Item 8.D Report of Past Variances 
Granted for Possible Code Revisions during its June meeting.  
 
Mayor Kind asked if the Council wanted to approve the second reading of Ordinance 215. She noted the 
Planning Commission recommended approval of it.  
 
Zoning Administrator/Clerk Karpas stated he likes this Ordinance. He then stated through the last few 
variances regarding volume it has been shown that the volume calculations for the smaller lots is very 
low. He noted the Planning Commissioners involved with this Ordinance were very supportive on 
increasing the volume for the smaller lots. They do not think it would be detrimental to the 
neighborhoods; Commissioner Beal in particular.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked how many lots there have been problems on. Zoning Administrator/Clerk 
Karpas stated the Fisher property and there is currently a volume variance request for a property on 
Greenwood Circle. He noted the house size is small.  
 
Cook moved, Roy seconded, Approving ORDINANCE NO. 215, “An Ordinance of the City of 
Greenwood, Minnesota, Amending Greenwood Ordinance Zoning Code Section 1140.18 Regarding 
Building Volume.” Motion passed 5/0. 
 

E. Lake Improvement District Concept 
 
Mayor Kind explained that during Council’s April 3, 2013, meeting Council appointed Councilmembers 
Fletcher and Roy to a Lake Improvement District (LID) subcommittee to manage aquatic invasive species 
(AIS) in St. Alban’s Bay. She stated the subcommittee will report on their observations and 
recommendations this evening.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated they met with Gabriel Jabbour, an owner of a marina on Lake 
Minnetonka. They are working on contacting the City’s representative on the Hennepin County Board of 
Commissioners and representatives from the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (MN DNR). 
They would like examples of what the MN DNR considers to be good LIDs. Those examples could be 
used as a model when talking to residents about the concept.  
 
Mayor Kind questioned if it is appropriate for Council to take the lead on this. She stated that reports at 
Council meetings can create the impression that this is a City-driven concept. She stated that it should be 
a resident/property owner driven effort. She clarified the Council does not approve this or have any say in 
it.  
 
Councilmember Roy stated that is where the discussion went during the meeting with Mr. Jabbour. The 
subcommittee believes it is prudent to be as knowledgeable as possible before talking to the City’s 
residents about this concept. Once the knowledge is obtained the next step would be to talk to the 
residents.  
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 15 of 22 
 
Councilmember Quam suggested taking baby steps.  
 
Mayor Kind expressed discomfort with the current subcommittee reporting back to Council, noting 
Council has no say in it. Councilmember Roy stated he does think Council has some say. Kind stated that 
residents and owners of properties that have lake rights to St. Alban’s Bay would not be petitioning the 
City to set up a LID. Kind noted the City does not have any jurisdiction in this.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated the treatment of Eurasian Watermilfoil (milfoil) was not within the City’s 
jurisdiction either, yet Council has been updated on that effort on a regular basis. He then stated the 
subcommittee would not be asking for anything from the Council; it would just give Council an update. 
Councilmember Quam cautioned against doing that at every meeting. Mayor Kind suggested updates be 
given under Council reports.  
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Certificate of Appreciation Recognizing Former Planning Commissioner Lisa 
Christian 

 
Mayor Kind stated the meeting packet contains a copy of a Certificate of Appreciation recognizing former 
Planning Commissioner Lisa Christian.   
 
The Certificate read as follows:  
 

“Certificate of Appreciation 
 
WHEREAS, Lisa Christian served as a member of the Greenwood planning 
commission from June 2012 through March 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, during her term Commissioner Christian gave her time and 
served her community, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota, 
on behalf of the residents of Greenwood does present this certificate of 
appreciation to:  
 
LISA CHRISTIAN” 

 
Roy moved, Cook seconded, approving the Certificate of Appreciation for former Planning 
Commissioner Lisa Christian.” Motion passed 5/0. 
 
Councilmember Roy noted that Ms. Christian was a great help to him during the process of soliciting 
donations for the treatment for Eurasian Watermilfoil in St. Alban’s Bay. 
 
Mayor Kind recessed the meeting at 8:56 P.M. 
 
Mayor Kind reconvened the meeting at 9:05 P.M. 
 

B. First Reading: Ordinance 219 Amending Code Section 320 to Establish Minimum 
Rental Lease Term for Residential Properties 

 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 16 of 22 
 
Mayor Kind stated this is the first reading of Ordinance 219 to amend Code Section 320 to establish 
minimum rental lease term for residential properties. She recommended changing “Subd 7. Lease Term. 
The minimum initial lease term for a residential rental property shall be 30 days. License holders shall 
provide leaseholder name and contact information to the city clerk in writing prior to the commencement 
of each new lease.” to “Subd 7. Lease Term. The minimum initial lease term for a residential rental 
property shall be 30 days.” 
 
Councilmember Fletcher noted that he agrees with Mayor Kind’s recommendation. He suggested 
changing the minimum initial lease term for residential properties to mirror the clause in Section 1140.05 
Dwelling / Lot – Prohibited Uses which in Subd. 5 states “…nor may such properties be leased to more 
than 2 tenant occupant groups in any one 4-month period.” That would make the two ordinances 
consistent.  
 
Councilmember Cook asked what problem this Ordinance is trying to fix. Mayor Kind explained that 
Councilmember Fletcher requested that minimal least term be included in the City’s Rental Code.  
 
Mayor Kind stated the title of Section 320 is being changed to Rental Properties from Multiple Dwellings.  
 
Cook moved, Quam seconded, approving the first reading of Ordinance 219, amending Ordinance 
Code Section 320 subject to changing “Subd 7. Lease Term. The minimum initial lease term for a 
residential rental property shall be 30 days. License holders shall provide leaseholder name and 
contact information to the city clerk in writing prior to the commencement of each new lease.” to 
“Subd 7. Lease Term. In no event shall a residential rental property leasehold or sub-leasehold be for 
an initial term of less than 30 days, nor may such properties be leased to more than 2 tenant occupant 
groups in any one 4-month period.” Motion passed 5/0. 
 

C. Possible Moratorium to Review the R-1A Zoning District 
  
Mayor Kind stated that Attorney Kelly requested the topic of a possible moratorium to review the R-1A 
Zoning District be placed on the agenda for discussion. She noted the meeting packet contains a copy of a 
memorandum from Kelly on it.  
 
Attorney Kelly stated the information he provided supplements what was discussed earlier regarding 
conditional uses. He explained a moratorium is planning tool State Statute allows. A moratorium is 
presumed to be predicated on having decided to do a study and develop a plan to regulate any particular 
zone with and what the specifics should be. If the City decides that it wants to start a review process of 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan or the appropriate zoning regulation in any particular area it does not 
require a public hearing. It could be adopted on a first and second reading of the ordinance without a 
referral to the Planning Commission.  It would be predicated at that time on a referral to the Commission 
of what the proper zoning would be for the R-1A district and perhaps rezoning the Old Log Theater 
property into its own zone carrying forward the ideas Mayor Kind and Councilmember Fletcher 
articulated earlier this evening.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she did not think a moratorium would be needed to rezone the Old Log Theater 
property. Attorney Kelly clarified Council could direct the Planning Commission to start that process 
now. Kelly explained the moratorium would keep the City from issuing any building permits to do 
something in the R-1A district except by a variance justifying why that property is not in the area the City 
is worried about. It gives the City the opportunity to say it is studying an area for up to twelve months; 
there is the option to extend it six months.  
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 17 of 22 
 
Mayor Kind stated it’s her understanding that Mr. Frakenfield, who hopes to be the new owner of the Old 
Log Theater and property, wants to remodel the Old Log Theater. If the City approved a moratorium he 
would not be able to do that. Councilmember Fletcher asked why the City would not want him to improve 
the Theater right now. Kind expressed concern that a moratorium would halt all building permits in the 
entire R-1A district.  
 
Mayor Kind recommended sending the concept of rezoning the Old Log Theater property to a unique 
zone to the Planning Commission. 
 
Fletcher moved, Kind seconded, directing the Planning Commission to investigate the rezoning of 
the property currently occupied by the Old Log Theater.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she thought that would accomplish the same thing without a moratorium. She 
expressed concern about putting a hold on issuing building permits for things in the R1-A district noting 
that is a very large district. Attorney Kelly clarified exceptions could be granted but that would have to be 
done through a variance process. Kind noted the variance process could take 120 days.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated that typically a city uses a moratorium when a developer wants to do 
something that riles the residents. He asked what people are concerned about with the Old Log Theater 
and property. What is the issue?  
 
Councilmember Quam asked what if the potential new owner sells the property and a new owner wants to 
do something different.  
 
Zoning Administrator/Clerk Karpas explained it is a legal nonconforming use that can’t be expanded.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher noted the City could not grant a variance to expand the Old Log Theater based 
on the Ordinances approved under Item 6.B on the agenda. He stated he would like the discussion about 
rezoning to get started sooner versus later.  
 
Attorney Kelly noted that it was his responsibility to let Council know a moratorium is an available tool.  
 
Greg Frankenfield, Shorewood, Minnesota, (the prospective new owner of the Old Log Theater and 
property) stated the roof on the Theater leaks. He asked if he needs a building permit to repair the roof. 
The response was he does. He asked if a moratorium would stop him from being able to fix the roof.  
 
Attorney Kelly stated if the Council approved a moratorium he still would be able to repair a roof. He 
then stated moratoriums are a planning tool cities use when they need time to study things for the benefit 
of the public interest. He noted that has been accomplished by taking theater off the R-1A list of 
conditional uses.   
 
Mayor Kind noted the R-1A district never had restaurant or event center listed as uses. She explained the 
Planning Commission will be asked to discuss an R-1C district that mirrors the R-1A district and adds 
theater, restaurant, and event center as conditional uses. The Old Log Theater property would be rezoned 
to that new district.  
 
Councilmember Quam stated he thought doing that would be to Mr. Frankenfield’s advantage.  
 
Mr. Frankenfield stated he would like to work with Council and the Planning Commission on that. But, in 
the meantime the facility needs some repair.  



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 18 of 22 
 
 
Motion passed 5/0. 
 
Mayor Kind stated this will be on the May 15, 2013, Planning Commission agenda for discussion.  
 

D. Excelsior Park and Dock Patrol Proposal  
  
Mayor Kind stated this is a routine request from the City of Excelsior for the South Lake Minnetonka 
Police Department to provide park and dock patrol services. Excelsior pays for all the services. 
 
Quam moved, Cook seconded, approving the South Lake Minnetonka Police Department providing 
Park and Dock Patrol Services for the City of Excelsior in 2013 as mutually agreed upon by both 
parties. Motion passed 5/0. 
 

E. Potential City Council Input Regarding the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District’s 
Proposed Aquatic Invasive Species Program and Total Maximum Daily Load 
Distribution Policy 

 
Mayor Kind stated the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District (MCWD) is seeking feedback on a draft 
amendment to its Comprehensive Water Resource Management Plan for aquatic invasive species (AIS) 
management and prevention. It also is seeking feedback on its draft Board Policy for the distribution of 
pollution reduction credit from MCWD projects for the purpose of TMDL (total maximum daily load) 
reporting. She noted the AIS amendment is now considered a minor amendment so the process is slightly 
different.  
 
Councilmember Quam stated he has not given a lot of thought to the AIS minor amendment.  
 
Councilmember Roy stated he likes the MCWD’s commitment to working with partners. He then stated 
he would like the MCWD to say they will take charge of prevention rather than having a number of 
government agencies doing that. That would help in getting people going in the same direction and doing 
the same thing. Mayor Kind asked Roy if he intentionally chose the word prevention to which he 
responded yes.  
 
Mayor Kind stated it appears the MCWD’s focus is on prevention. She asked about management.  
 
Councilmember Roy stated in other discussions the idea of providing the Lake Minnetonka Conservation 
District (LMCD) with another cleaning station came up. That was not in the budget. He then stated the 
LMCD will be doing level one AIS inspections; an eyeball type of inspection. He went on to state from 
his perspective the LMCD would be better off being out of that business. He noted there are lakes in the 
MCWD that don’t having any prevention process in place. It would be best if for all of the launches there 
would be the same equipment and processes in place. He stated there needs to be pre-launch equipment 
and equipment for cleaning a boat when it comes out of an infested lake.  
 
In response to a comment from Councilmember Quam, Councilmember Roy stated the MCWD may be 
striving to manage this but he is just a little impatient with how government agencies work.  
 
Councilmember Roy stated he can support what has been presented by the MCWD.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated in the response letter he suggested saying something positive because he 
does appreciate the MCWD’s involvement. He then stated it seems the MCWD’s approach is all of the 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 19 of 22 
 
above and he does not like that. Because of limited resources there should probably be something to focus 
on be it management or prevention. He explained the document from the MCWD states “The policies and 
goals in the District’s Comprehensive Plan are designed around the ecological integrity of water 
resources within the District. Accordingly, the District’s involvement in the long term management (i.e.; 
control) of AIS present would be based on the watershed’s ecological systems. Other benefits would be 
secondary.” The MCWD’s focus is about the ecological environment.  
 
Councilmember Roy noted that is why he suggests the MCWD take over. He stated hydrilla is like milfoil 
on steroids and it’s not too far away from this area now. Asian carp is not too far away now; they have 
showed up in minnow buckets. He stated he would like to have the MCWD or an agency like that to 
manage things throughout Minnesota with the same protocols and the same equipment.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated his preference would be for them to focus on prevention.  
 
Mayor Kind asked if Council feels strongly enough that it wants to comment on the AIS amendment.  
 
Councilmember Cook suggested Councilmember Fletcher write a focused comment that could be 
incorporated in a response.  
 
Cook moved, Roy seconded, asking Councilmember Fletcher to write a focused comment to the 
Minnehaha Creek Watershed District regarding its Comprehensive Water Resource Management 
Plan for aquatic invasive species (AIS) management and prevention. Motion passed 5/0.  
 
Mayor Kind asked how Council wants to respond to the MCWD’s draft Board Policy for the distribution 
of pollution reduction credit from MCWD projects for the purpose of TMDL (total maximum daily load) 
reporting. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher suggested conveying that the City supports what is proposed.  
 
Cook moved, Roy seconded, asking the Mayor to write a focused comment regarding the 
Minnehaha Creek Watershed District’s Board Policy for the distribution of pollution reduction 
credit from MCWD projects for the purpose of total maximum daily load reporting. Motion passed 
5/0. 
 
8. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. April Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
 
This was removed from the consent agenda at Councilmember Fletcher’s request.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated a few years ago the City decided to have a contractor plow the trails in the 
City. The verified claims list shows that the City spent $1,568.75 to plow trails. It also shows that City 
spent $2,425.38 with the City of Deephaven to plow roads. He suggested Council carefully consider how 
much it wants to spend on plowing trails for the 2013/2014 season.  
 
Fletcher moved, Quam seconded, approving the April verifieds, check register and electronic fund 
transfers. Motion passed 5/0. 
 
Mayor Kind stated the Deephaven Public Works Director asked her how the City liked the trail plowing 
services it received from Cornerstone Industries because he noticed Deephaven was done with plowing 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 20 of 22 
 
roads before the trails were plowed. Deephaven provides other public works services for Greenwood. She 
expressed confidence that Deephaven would be willing to again plow the City’s trails.  
 
9. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Cook: Planning Commission 
 
Councilmember Cook stated during its last meeting the Planning Commission discussed a proposal from 
the owners of the Pastor property. He explained that site is particularly difficult because it has a zero lot 
line on three sides. On the fourth corner the roadway pavement may actually be on the property. There is 
a very small house on the very small lot. There is a garage on the northwest corner of the lot and another 
on the southwest corner. The small house is in between. The access to the northerly garage is difficult.  
 
There was a lot of discussion about the proposal during that meeting. The property owner gave the 
Planning Commission an extension and it’s assumed the Commission will discuss the changes to the 
proposal again during its next meeting. The original proposal would result in a significant amount of 
hardcover.  
 
There was additional Council discussion about the proposed new zoning district the Planning 
Commission will discuss during its next meeting.  
 

B. Fletcher: Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission, Excelsior Fire District,  
Xcel Energy Project, Lake Improvement District 

 
With regard to the Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission (LMCC) activities, Councilmember 
Fletcher stated there is a meeting of the committee formed to discuss the LMCC joint powers agreement. 
He is the City’s representative on the committee.  
 
With regard to the Xcel Energy Transmission Line Upgrade Project, Fletcher stated that was already 
discussed.  
 

C. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayors Meetings, Website 
 
With regard to the South Lake Minnetonka Police Department (SLMPD), Mayor Kind stated the next 
SLMPD Coordinating Committee is scheduled for May 21 at 5:00 P.M.  
 
With regard to administration, Kind stated there was a Greenwood Circle street light issue that was 
resolved earlier in the day. She explained there are seven power poles along Greenwood Circle. A new 
property owner in that area wants to bury the power lines in the area and is approaching other property 
owners about sharing in the cost to do that. Things seemed to be going along smoothly until one property 
owner realized that there are street lights on three of the poles. The property owner was interested in 
keeping at least one of the lights. She noted a resident cannot take down a City street light without getting 
permission from the Council. She stated as far as she knows all three lights are staying up.  
 
Mayor Kind asked Zoning Administrator/Clerk Karpas to give a brief history on why there are street 
lights in some areas of the City and not others. Karpas explained that about ten years ago there was a 
movement to take back the sky at night. The City did a review of the street lights and decided to remove 
some of them.  
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 21 of 22 
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated if a group of residents in an area came before Council and explained they 
did not want the street lights he asked if Council would listen to them.  
 
Councilmember Quam stated that people walking down a street after their car broke down need to see 
where they are going.  
 
Mayor Kind stated there are no street lights along the many Greenwood streets including hers. She then 
stated the City is not going to add street lights along every City street, and noted there is no budget for 
that.  
 
Councilmember Quam stated public safety is the City’s highest responsibility. He cautioned against 
having totally dark streets.  
 
Mayor Kind stated there are studies that indicate street lights don’t make a difference. She then stated she 
receives calls from residents who say it’s too dark and from others who say it is too light.  
 
Councilmember Quam clarified he is not suggesting the City add street lighting. Only that he does not 
want to take down lights.  
 
Mayor Kind stated that on April 17 she co-hosted a school district lunch along with the Deephaven City 
Administrator and the Mayor of Woodland at Deephaven City Hall. Attendees included the 
Superintendent of the Minnetonka School District, representatives from Deephaven, Chanhassen and 
Minnetonka. She reviewed things she learned during the luncheon. There is a senior housing project 
going on in Deephaven. The Vine Hill Bridge will be replaced sooner versus later. Both Deephaven and 
Woodland have received requests for allowing residents to raise chickens. Greenwood does not allow 
residents to raise chickens nor does Chanhassen. Chanhassen just completed a new water tower near 
Minnetonka Middle School West. Chanhassen received bids that were lower than anticipated for its 2013 
roadway improvements. Minnetonka is working with the owners of the Ridgedale Mall on improvements 
to the Mall. Nordstrom is going to become a tenant and some high-end restaurants also will become 
tenants.  
 
Kind noted that residents can contribute to the herbicide treatment of St. Alban’s Bay by going to the 
City’s website www.greenwoodmn.com 
 

D. Quam: Roads & Sewer, Minnetonka Community Education 
 
With regard to roads and sewers, Councilmember Quam stated Council discussed them earlier this 
evening.  
 
With regard to Minnetonka Community Education (MCE), Councilmember Quam stated MCE is again 
running a youth triathlon on May 3. It will be held at the Minnetonka Middle School East.  
 
Quam noted that he attended the Excelsior Fire District (EFD) Board budget work session on April 17. 
He explained EFD Chief Gerber reviewed the details of the proposed 2013 Operating Budget and the 
2014 capital improvement program (CIP). The budget reflects a 2 percent increase in the 2014 municipal 
contribution when compared to 2013. There was discussion about the benefits and cost of having a 4-
person duty crew (2 at each station) that would be at the stations from 6:00 P.M. Friday to 6:00 P.M. 
Sunday. If that were to be implemented in 2014 there would be an approximate 9 percent increase in the 
municipal contribution. Doing that would improve the response time to the scene. Chief Gerber will 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 1, 2013  Page 22 of 22 
 
assemble response time data that breaks out night and weekend response times. He noted that it’s unlikely 
that would be implemented in 2014.  
 
Mayor Kind stated after doing a ride along with a South Lake Minnetonka Police Department (SLMPD) 
Officer it seems like a police officer is at the scene first. Officers are also trained as medical first 
responders.  
 

E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
 
Councilmember Roy stated the Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) passed a bow fishing 
ordinance. The LMCD Board approved two budget options for 2014. LMCD Executive Directory Nybeck 
is willing to attend Council’s June 5 meeting to talk about the increases. A 3 percent increase would 
basically keep things at the level they are at because of the loss in property values. The levy is based on 
property values. The 16 percent budget increase option includes $45,000 for aquatic invasive species 
prevention. He asked Council if they want Nybeck to come to the June meeting or if they would prefer 
him to talk about the two budget options. Council consensus was that it was not necessary for Nybeck to 
attend the June 5 meeting. Roy stated he will ask Nybeck to send a copy of the budget options to the City.  
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Roy moved, Cook seconded, adjourning the City Council Regular Meeting of May 1, 2013, at 9:51 
P.M.  Motion passed 5/0.  
 
RESPECFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Christine Freeman, Recorder 
 



Greenwood City Council and Planning Commission Joint Meeting 
Wednesday, May 15, 2015 

9:00 P.M. 

  
  

1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Approval Agenda 
 

Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 9:00 pm. 
 
Council members present: Deb Kind, Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam and 
Rob Roy  
Planning Commission members present: John Beal, Kristi Conrad, Pat Lucking, 
David Paeper and Douglas Reeder  
Council members absent: None 
Planning Commission members absent: None 
Others present: City Attorney Kelly, City Clerk/Zoning Administrator Karpas  

 
2. Open Discussion 

 
The group discussed a number of issues of interest. 
 
A. Discussion on Chip Fisher driveway grade on Greenwood Circle 

The group discussed the origin of the issue and whether it was self-created 
and steps necessary to solve the problem.  They discussed a preliminary site 
plan submitted by Mr. Fisher which would alter the grade to permit access to 
their garage but would require the construction of retaining walls within the 
city right-of-way.  City Attorney Kelly expressed concern that the plan 
essentially gives the Fisher’s control of city property. 
 
Councilmember Roy asked why this is the city’s problem since it should have 
be “caught” by the builder when they placed the garage floor.  Mayor Kind 
said some of the issue is that the grade was not caught at the time the 
building permit was issued.  Roy asked if other issues have been considered 
or is this the most economically advantageous to the Fishers.  
Councilmember Fletcher noted the issue is not going to be solved tonight and 
the Fishers are permitted to park onGreenwood Circle until it is solved. 
 
Mayor Kind said her intent on raising the issue is to gauge the temperature of 
the group on whether this needed to go through the regular variance process.  
If so, she has concerns whether it could meet all the practical difficulty 
criteria.  Commissioner Paeper asked about the significance of losing the use 
of the city property.  Kind said it currently is a utility easement and 
Councilmember Cook added it provides parking for the city docks. 
 
Councilmember Cook noted the existing plan submitted by the Fisher’s would 
direct water onto his property and since they cannot legally do that, the plan 
would need to be redrawn.  He supports what they want to do provided the 
drainage is addressed, though he is concerned about the impact it could have 
on parking along Greenwood Circle. 
 
City Attorney Kelly said any use of city property would require the Fishers to 
enter into a license agreement for maintenance.  Chairman Lucking, 
referencing the property owner’s claim that the city’s requirement to reduce 



Greenwood City Council and Planning Commission Joint Meeting 
Wednesday, May 15, 2015 

9:00 P.M. 

  
  

the volume caused the issue, said the city never required the applicant to 
lower the basement level which has caused the current situation. 
 
The group decided the Fishers need to go through the regular variance 
process in order to correct the current situation. 
 

B. Creation of an R-1C Zoning District 
The proposed R-1C ordinance was summarized.  Chairman Lucking said the 
ordinance is a long term way of adjusting the use on the Old Log property to 
permit uses that the city may not want to allow in the entire R-1A District. 
 
Councilmember Cook said it also gives an opportunity to clarify the types of 
Restaurants and Event Centers that would be permitted.  He’s still concerned 
about the rapid changes in technology and the potential unintended 
consequences. 
 
Commissioner Beal is concerned about the property being passed onto a 
developer who creates the type of development that the city doesn’t want.  
Commissioner Conrad said the ordinance would set the parameters of what 
could be done of the property. 
 
Commissioner Paeper does not want to legislate a property owner’s business 
plan.  Commissioner Reeder agrees he doesn’t want to create an ordinance 
that hurts the business. 
 
City Attorney Kelly feels that the city needs the attributes such at wetland 
areas, including the required buffers, parking spaces, available developable 
land, etc. prior to developing the ordinance to help guide the city.  Mayor Kind 
stated that she did not believe the city had the authority to make these 
requests until the property owner submits an application to the city. 
 
Commissioner Beal said the land in the R-1C could be dedicated entirely to a 
theatre uses and if necessary it could be regulated as a conditional use.  
Mayor Kind said it could also be a permitted use.  Councilmember Fletcher 
said there probably is an expectation from the neighborhood that it continue 
to operate as a conditional use. 
 
The group discussed the residential options for the property, including cluster 
development, if the theatre were to become unprofitable. 
 
It was decided the Planning Commission would develop a definition of Dinner 
Theatre. 

 
C. Miscellaneous  

Councilmember Fletcher briefed the group on the recent public hearing on 
the Excel Energy power line project. 
 
Councilmember Quam gave an update on the condition of former 
Councilmember Page. 



Greenwood City Council and Planning Commission Joint Meeting 
Wednesday, May 15, 2015 

9:00 P.M. 

  
  

 
Commissioner Conrad suggested the idea of a park survey and the potential 
creation a beach to permit non-lakeshore residents access to the lake. 

 
3.   Adjournment 

 
Cook moved to adjourn. Second by Reeder. The meeting was adjourned at 
10:02. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted 
Gus Karpas 
City Clerk 

  



Variance with Variance with 

Month 2012 2013 Prior Month Prior Year

January $712,814 $812,019 -$76,100 $99,205

February $704,873 $805,692 -$6,327 $100,819

March $690,422 $793,435 -$12,257 $103,013

April $637,990 $720,170 -$73,265 $82,180

May $618,262 $0 -$720,170 -$618,262

June $580,578 $0 $0 -$580,578

July $846,897 $0 $0 -$846,897

August $760,682 $0 $0 -$760,682

September $717,852 $0 $0 -$717,852

October $611,894 $0 $0 -$611,894

November $597,127 $0 $0 -$597,127

December $888,119 $0 $0 -$888,119

Bridgewater Bank Money Market $450,693

Bridgewater Bank Checking $6,155

Beacon Bank CD $240,000

Beacon Bank Money Market $23,222
Beacon Bank Checking $100

$720,170

ALLOCATION BY FUND

General Fund $132,461

General Fund Designated for Parks $27,055

Bridge Capital Project Fund $78,613

Stormwater Special Revenue Fund $8,565

Sewer Enterprise Fund $423,453
Marina Enterprise Fund $50,023

$720,170

City of Greenwood

Monthly Cash Summary

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

$1,000,000

Ja
nu

ar
y

Feb
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
Apr

il
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly

Aug
us

t

Sep
te

m
be

r

O
ct
ob

er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

2012

2013



 

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check  

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register - Summary Report Page:     1 

May 28, 2013  02:26pm 

Check Issue Date(s): 05/01/2013 - 05/31/2013  

 

Per Date Check No Vendor No Payee Check GL Acct Amount

05/13 05/06/2013 10814 51 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 502-20100 3,251.50 

05/13 05/06/2013 10815 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 101-20100 8,134.68 

05/13 05/06/2013 10816 761 DEBRA KIND 101-20100 48.58 

05/13 05/06/2013 10817 68 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 602-20100 24.75 

05/13 05/06/2013 10818 3 KELLY LAW OFFICES 101-20100 4,128.50 

05/13 05/06/2013 10819 742 Marco, Inc. 101-20100 222.90 

05/13 05/06/2013 10820 105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 602-20100 2,497.36 

05/13 05/06/2013 10821 38 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 101-20100 14,754.00 

05/13 05/06/2013 10822 136 Sun Newspapers 101-20100 268.03 

05/13 05/06/2013 10823 745 Vintage Waste Systems 101-20100 1,628.25 

05/13 05/06/2013 10824 145 XCEL ENERGY 101-20100 225.83 

05/13 05/20/2013 10825 245 ALLIED BLACKTOP, INC. 502-20100 1,216.00 

05/13 05/20/2013 10826 738 AVENET, LLC 101-20100 65.00 

05/13 05/20/2013 10827 51 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 101-20100 3,642.00 

05/13 05/20/2013 10828 792 CORNERSTONE INDUSTRIES INC 101-20100 635.00 

05/13 05/20/2013 10829 315 DOCK & LIFT INC. 605-20100 1,500.00 

05/13 05/20/2013 10830 742 Marco, Inc. 101-20100 274.12 

05/13 05/20/2013 10831 136 Sun Newspapers 101-20100 961.26 

05/13 05/20/2013 10832 745 Vintage Waste Systems 101-20100 2,307.12 

05/13 05/20/2013 10833 145 XCEL ENERGY 101-20100 424.36 

          Totals: 46,209.24 

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: ______________________________________________________



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     1 

Input Date(s): 05/01/2013 - 05/31/2013 May 28, 2013  02:25pm 

 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

ALLIED BLACKTOP, INC.

17442 05/13/2013245 ALLIED BLACKTOP, INC. STREET SWEEPING 1,216.00 

          Total ALLIED BLACKTOP, INC. 1,216.00 

AVENET, LLC

32301 01/09/2013738 AVENET, LLC WEB-BASED EMAIL SVC - 2013 65.00 

          Total AVENET, LLC 65.00 

BOLTON & MENK, INC.

0155453 03/31/201351 BOLTON & MENK, INC. WATERMAIN FEASIBILITY REPORT 1,658.50 

0155454 03/31/20132013 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 135.00 

0155455 03/31/20132013 I & I PROJECT 29.00 

0155456 03/31/20132013 MISC ENGINEERING 269.50 

0155479 03/31/2013SUMP PUMP FNDTN DRAIN INS 552.00 

0155528 03/31/2013EXC BLVD DRAINAGE IMPROV 607.50 

0156139 04/30/2013WATERMAIN FEASIBILITY REPORT 1,551.00 

0156140 04/30/20132013 STREET IMPROVEMENTS 1,080.00 

0156141 04/30/20132013 EXC BLVD WATERMAIN 342.00 

0156160 04/30/20132013 MISC ENGINEERING 202.00 

2013 MISC ENGINEERING 210.00 

2013 MISC ENGINEERING 165.00 

0156161 04/30/2013SUMP PUMP FNDTN DRAIN INS 92.00 

          Total BOLTON & MENK, INC. 6,893.50 

CITY OF DEEPHAVEN

MAY 2013 04/30/20139 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN RENT & EQUIPMENT 542.95 

Postage (Jan - April 2013) 130.04 

COPIES 46.00 

SEWER 1,010.16 

SNOW PLOWING/SANDING/SALT 3,051.61 

STREETS 715.53 

Clerk Services 2,589.60 

SCHOOL DISTRICT LUNCH 48.79 

          Total CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 8,134.68 

CORNERSTONE INDUSTRIES INC

1276 05/01/2013792 CORNERSTONE INDUSTRIES INC SNOW PLOWING 635.00 

          Total CORNERSTONE INDUSTRIES INC 635.00 

DEBRA KIND

050613 05/06/2013761 DEBRA KIND FEDEX - CODE BOOK PRINTING 48.58 

          Total DEBRA KIND 48.58 

DOCK & LIFT INC.

22538 05/06/2013315 DOCK & LIFT INC. INSTALL FLOATING DOCK 1,500.00 

          Total DOCK & LIFT INC. 1,500.00 

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL

71580 04/30/201368 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL Gopher State calls 24.75 



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     2 

Input Date(s): 05/01/2013 - 05/31/2013 May 28, 2013  02:25pm 

 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

          Total GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 24.75 

KELLY LAW OFFICES

6099 04/30/20133 KELLY LAW OFFICES GENERAL LEGAL 3,806.50 

GENERAL LEGAL 322.00 

          Total KELLY LAW OFFICES 4,128.50 

Marco, Inc.

226527745 04/13/2013742 Marco, Inc. Copier lease 222.90 

228487583 05/14/2013Copier lease 274.12 

          Total Marco, Inc. 497.02 

METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES

0001015973 05/03/2013105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES Monthly wastewater Charge 2,497.36 

          Total METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 2,497.36 

SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT

MAY 2013 05/01/201338 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT OPERATING BUDGET 14,754.00 

          Total SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 14,754.00 

Sun Newspapers

1157242 04/11/2013136 Sun Newspapers Ord #216 48.71 

1157243 04/11/2013RESOLUTION 81.19 

1157245 04/11/2013RESOLUTION 68.20 

1158227 04/25/2013Legal Notice 69.93 

1162049 05/09/2013Ord #215 77.94 

1162050 05/09/2013Ord #216 402.69 

1162053 05/09/2013Ord #217 402.69 

1162055 05/09/2013Ord #218 77.94 

          Total Sun Newspapers 1,229.29 

Vintage Waste Systems

042613 04/26/2013745 Vintage Waste Systems City Recycling Contract 1,628.25 

050813 05/08/2013City Recycling Contract 2,307.12 

          Total Vintage Waste Systems 3,935.37 

XCEL ENERGY

042513 04/25/2013145 XCEL ENERGY SIREN 4.14 

Sleepy Hollow Road * 9.72 

4925 MEADVILLE STREET * 9.71 

LIFT STATION #1 40.11 

LIFT STATION #2 38.72 

LIFT STATION #3 23.58 

LIFT STATION #4 32.22 

LIFT STATION #6 67.63 

050313 05/03/2013Street Lights * 424.36 

          Total XCEL ENERGY 650.19 



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     3 

Input Date(s): 05/01/2013 - 05/31/2013 May 28, 2013  02:25pm 

 

Total Paid: 46,209.24 

Total Unpaid:  -     

Grand Total: 46,209.24 



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register Page:     1 

Pay Period Date(s): 05/02/2013 to 06/01/2013 May 28, 2013  02:41pm 

 

Pay Per Check Check Description GL Amount

Date Jrnl Date Number Payee Emp No Account

06/01/13 PC 06/01/13 6011301 COOK, WILLIAM B. 37 001-10101 184.70 

06/01/13 PC 06/01/13 6011302 Fletcher, Thomas M 33 001-10101 84.70 

06/01/13 PC 06/01/13 6011303 Kind, Debra J. 34 001-10101 277.05 

06/01/13 PC 06/01/13 6011304 Quam, Robert 32 001-10101 184.70 

06/01/13 PC 06/01/13 6011305 ROY, ROBERT J. 38 001-10101 184.70 

          Grand Totals: 915.85 



ORDINANCE NO. 219 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 320  

REGARDING RENTAL PROPERTIES 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 
SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 320 heading is amended to read as follows: 
 
“SECTION 320. RENTAL PROPERTIES.” 
 
SECTION 2.  
Greenwood ordinance code section 320.30 Registration of Rental Properties Required is amended by the addition of the 
following subdivision: 
  
“Subd 7.  Lease Term. In no event shall a residential rental property leasehold or sub-leasehold be for an initial term of 
less than 30 days, nor may such properties be leased to more than 2 tenant occupant groups in any one 4-month period.” 
      
SECTION 3. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this __ day of ________, 2013. 
 
___ AYES ___NAYS 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _____________, 2013 
Second reading: ___________, 2013 
Publication: __________, 2013 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 4A 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 
 
Agenda Item:  City Engineer Dave Martini: 

2013 Inflow & Infiltration Project Bids 
Excelsior Blvd. Street and Watermain Improvements 

 
Summary:	  2013 I/I Project Bids – Based on council direction, bids have been secured for 2013 I/I projects. Dave will 
attend the June council meeting to present the bid results and answer questions.  
 
Excelsior Blvd. Street and Watermain Improvements – Attached are copies of the signed agreements with Excelsior.  
Also attached is the updated project timeline. The council will discuss next steps at the June council meeting. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Possible motions … 

 
1. I move the council approves the $_____ bid from _______ (company) for the 2013 inflow and infiltration project 

and directs that the costs be paid from the sewer fund. 
 

2. Do nothing or other motion ??? 



 

H:\GRWD\C13104925\1_Corres\D. Docs\Bid Abstract 5-29-13.doc 

 
 
May 29, 2013 
 
 
City of Greenwood 
Attn: Bob Quam 
20225 Cottagewood Road 
Deephaven, MN 55331 
 
RE: Bids for 2013 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 
 
 
Dear Mr. Quam: 
 
A total of 4 bids were solicited for the 2013 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project.  One bid was received, 
from Infratech in the amount of $45,004.88.  The Engineers Estimate for the project was $52,522.  The 
City has been awarded $19,728 from the Met Council to help fund this project. 
 
Based on our review of the bids, we recommend awarding the project to Infratech in the amount of 
$45,004.88.  I will be at the City Council meeting on June 5th to discuss the bids with the Council.  Please 
let me know if you have questions before then or if you need additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
BOLTON & MENK, INC. 

 
David P. Martini, P.E. 
Principal Engineer 
  



ABSTRACT OF BIDS
2013 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION

CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA

BMI PROJECT NO. C13.106045

1

ITEM APPROX. UNIT

NO. BID ITEM QUAN. UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS $1,400.00 $1,400.00

2 SEWER CLEANING, INCLUDING TREE ROOTS AND MINERAL DEPOSITS 3,774 LF $1.62 $6,113.88

3 CHEMICAL GROUT SEALING OF JOINT OR CRACK 6 EA $752.00 $4,512.00

4 LATERAL SERVICE CONNECTION SEALING AND RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF FLOW 7 EA $757.00 $5,299.00

5 SHORT-SECTION LINER - UP TO 4' LENGTH 5 EA $1,980.00 $9,900.00

6 SHORT-SECTION LINER AT SERVICE CONNECTION AND RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF FLOW, UP TO 4' LENGTH 6 EA $2,430.00 $14,580.00

7 ADDITIONAL LENGTH SHORT-SECTION LINER OVER 4' 8 LF $125.00 $1,000.00

8 TRIM PROTRUDING TAP, NON IRON 4 EA $550.00 $2,200.00

TOTAL BID: $45,004.88

INFRATECH

H:\GRWD\C13106045\3_Design\B_Specs\106045 Bid Abstract-Proposal.xls Page 1



Excelsior Blvd. Watermain Project Timeline  Updated 04-24-13

1 Petition received from GW Excelsior Blvd. residents 6/13/12
2 GW resolution declaring adequacy of petition and ordering preparation of feasibility report 7/5/12
3 Publish resolution declaring adequacy of petition. 4/11/13
4 GW preliminary feasibility report completed for Option 1 (see footnote) 10/3/12
5 Feasibility report reviewed by GW planning commission for compliance with comp plan 10/17/12
6 GW deadline to submit public hearing notice for Option 1 to Sun-Sailor (Thursday before publication) 12/13/12

7

GW publishes notice of hearing for Option 1 (Form 6). Per statute, the city clerk must cause notice thereof to be 
given by TWO publications in the newspaper of a notice stating the time and place of the hearing, the general nature 
of the improvement, the estimated cost, and the area proposed to be assessed. The two publications must be a 
week apart, and the hearing must be at least three days after the second publication. NOTE: Typically, cities assess 
all properties abutting or bordering on the improvement, but the council may wish to levy assessments against 
adjacent, non-abutting properties if the properties benefit from the improvement. In that event the Notice of Hearing 
must include the following statement: “The area proposed to be assessed for such improvement is ….”

12/20/12 and 
12/27/12

8

GW affidavit of mailing notice to affected property owners for Option 1. Not less than ten days before the hearing, 
notice of the hearing must also be mailed to the owner of each parcel within the area proposed to be assessed and 
must contain a statement that a reasonable estimate of the impact of the assessment will be available at the hearing, 
but failure to give mailed notice or any defects in the notice does not invalidate the proceedings.

12/21/12

9 GW public hearing for Option 1. Minutes of public hearing showing testimony and findings. NOTE: Council action is 
required within 6 months of the public hearing date. 1/2/13

10 Deadline for drafts of EX-GW cooperative agreement for the Option 1 watermain project (including pricing) and 
agreement for water service for all GW users. Draft created by GW city attorney. 2/6/13

11 GW reviews EX-GW cooperative agreements for submitting to EX. 2/6/13
12 GW considers resolution ordering improvement and preparation of plans (Forms 7, 7A, 8). 2/6/13
13 Deadline to post notice for 2/20 special meeting (72 hours notice required). 2/15/13
14 GW considers resolution approving plans. NOTE: MCES will be advertising for bids. 2/20/13

15 GW considers resolution approving cooperative agreement with MCES to include the Excelsior Blvd. watermain 
project, sidewalk improvements, and tree replacement plan. 2/20/13

16 MCES advertizes for bids. 3/4/13
17 EX reviews EX-GW cooperative agreements. 3/4/13
18 GW reviews EX edits of EX-GW cooperative agreements. 3/6/13
19 Petition 2 received from next 6 properties. 3/15/13
20 GW considers resolution declaring adequacty of Petition 2 and ordering preparation of feasibility report. 4/3/13
21 Publish resolution declaring adequacy of Petition 2 to start 30-day appeal clock ticking. 4/11/13
22 GW preliminary feasibility report completed for Petition 2 Area. 4/11/13

23 GW considers resolution receiving feasibility report and ordering public hearing for Petition 2 Zone (after previously 
scheduled 6pm Local Board of Appeal meeting) 4/11/13

24 GW deadline to submit public hearing notice for Petition 2 Area to Sun-Sailor (Thursday before publication) 4/11/13
25 GW publishes notices (2 consecutive weeks) of public hearing for Petition 2 Area. See line 6 above. 4/18 & 4/25
26 GW affidavit of mailing notice to affected property owners for Petition 2 Area. See line 7 above. 4/19/13
27 GW public hearing for Petition 2 Area. See line 8 above. 5/1/13
28 GW approves water expansion and water service agreements with city of Excelsior. 5/1/13
29 GW considers resolution ordering Petition 2 Area improvement and preparation of plans. 5/1/13
30 GW signs cooperative agreement with MCES 5/2/13
31 MCES opens bids. TBD
32 GW go / no-go decision (per co-op agreement with MCES). TBD
33 GW considers "change order" to MCES project. TBD
34 MCES notice to proceed. TBD
35 MCES starts construction. TBD
36 GW preparation of assessment roll. (Forms 12, 13) TBD
37 GW resolution for hearing on proposed assessment. (Form 14) TBD
38 GW affidavit of publication of notice of hearing. (Form 15) TBD
39 GW affidavit of mailing notice to affected property owners. (Form 15A) TBD
40 GW minutes of public hearing showing testimony and findings. TBD
41 GW resolution adopting assessment. (Form 16) TBD
42 GW notice of final assessment. NOTE: This may be an optional step. (See Form 17A) TBD

43 GW certification of assessment to county auditor. (Form 18, 18A) NOTE: If annual certification plan is followed, the 
clerk may wish to include a separate sub-step for each year. TBD

GW = Greenwood, EX = Excelsior, Option 1 = 21380 - 21170 Excelsior Blvd, Petition 2 Zone = 21150 - 21030 Excelsior Blvd.



















  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 5A 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 

 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing, Showcase Event Application, Denali Custom Homes, 5190 Meadville Street 
 
Summary:	  Per city code section 450, anyone desiring to hold a showcase event in the city must apply for a permit, all 
property owners within 350 feet of the site must be notified, and a public hearing is required. On 05-22-13 the city 
received an application from Denali Custom Homes to participate in a showcase event on weekends from June 7 through 
June 23. The public hearing date was set for 06-05-13, a letter was mailed to property owners within 350 feet on 05-23-
13, and a notice for the public hearing was published in the Sun-Sailor on 05-30-13. As of the council packet deadline no 
written comments have been received by the city. See 7A packet memo for more details about the application.  
 
Council Action: Council action is needed to open and close the public hearing. Suggested motions for the public hearing: 
 

1. I move the council opens the public hearing. 
2. I move the council closes the public hearing. 

 
The next step in the process is for the council to take action regarding the application. That will be done under item 7A on 
the agenda. 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 5B 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 

 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing, Liquor License Application, Mayette Enterprises LLC, 5175 Meadville Street 
 
Summary:	  Per city code section 820.50, a public hearing is required for initial liquor license applications. On 04-18-13 the 
city received liquor license application from Mayette Enterprises LLC, 5175 Meadville Street. The public hearing date was 
set for 06-05-13 and notice for the hearing was published in the Sun-Sailor on 05-23-13. As of the council packet deadline 
no written comments have been received by the city. See 7B packet memo for more details about the application.  
 
Council Action: Council action is needed to open and close the public hearing. Suggested motions for the public hearing: 
 

1. I move the council opens the public hearing. 
2. I move the council closes the public hearing. 

 
The next step in the process is for the council to take action regarding the application. That will be done under item 7B on 
the agenda. 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Greenwood will hold a public hearing at 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331 on the 5th day of June, 2013, at 7:00 PM, or as 
soon thereafter as the matter can be heard.  The purpose of this meeting is to receive public comment 
on the following; 
 
The issuance of a Liquor License to Mayette Enterprises, LLC, 5185 Meadville Street. 
 
Such persons as desire to express their opinion with reference to this proposal will be heard at this 
meeting.  Comments can be mailed to City of Greenwood, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN  
55331, emailed to guskarpas@mchsi.com, or you can call (952) 358-9938. 

 

Gus E. Karpas 
City Clerk 
 
 
Publish: 
MN Sun Publications 
May 23, 2013 
	  

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 6A 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 

 
Agenda Item: Review Report of Past Variances Granted for Possible Code Revisions 
 
Summary:	  At the 03-06-13 meeting the city council directed the zoning administrator to research past variances to help 
determine whether there is a pattern to indicate that code changes should be made. Attached is the spreadsheet showing 
the results of the research.  
 
The following observations are noted from the research: 

1. Variances for properties 15,000 sq. ft. or greater tend to maintain the status quo or improve existing 
nonconformities for of hardcover and setbacks. 

2. The number of the variances and magnitude of new variances tend to be higher for properties  
under 15,000 sq. ft.  

3. Most of the properties under 15,000 sq. ft. were granted hardcover variances, with an average variance of 9.36% 
for properties that were not granted a conditional use permit for up to 40% hardcover prior to 2003. 

4. Most of the properties under 15,000 sq. ft. were granted front yard variances, with an overall average of 21.36 
feet from the 30-foot requirement. 

5. Most of the properties under 15,000 sq. ft. were granted side yard variances, with an overall average of 7.2 feet 
from the 15-foot requirement. 

 
Based on this information the council may want to consider an ordinance that relaxes hardcover, front yard, and side yard 
rules for properties under 15,000 sq. ft. If the council desires to move forward with zoning code changes, the changes will 
need to go to the planning commission for their review and recommendations. 
 
Note: This matter is not urgent. Due to full agendas the past several months the city council has “continued” the 
discussion of the research for several meetings and may wish to do so again. 
 
City Council Action: Optional. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the city council directs that an ordinance be drafted that addresses the ideas for revising the zoning code 
as discussed by the city council, and that the draft be included on the ____, 2013 council agenda for review prior 
to sending to the planning commission for a public hearing and recommendation.  
 

2. I move the city council “continues” the discussion of ordinance changes based on the variance research to the  
07-03-13 city council meeting. 

 
3. Do nothing or other motion ??? 

 



Greenwood Variances 2000 to 2012 ~ Sorted by Lot Size

Year Address
Zoning 
District Lot Area Type of Project Fr

on
t Y

ar
d

N S E W Ex
te

rio
r S

id
e 

Ya
rd

Rear 
Yard

Lake 
Yard

Impervious 
Surface Area St

ru
ct

ur
e 

H
ei

gh
t

Additional Notes

2008 5535 Maple Heights Road R1-A 5,913 Construct New Foundation Under Non-
Conforming House 8' 11' Previous Structure Encroached onto Neighbor's Property on North Side, 

No Change in Front Yard Encroachment
2002 5125 Greenwood Circle R1-A 6,418 Reconstruction of a Detached Garage 28' 9' Maintained Existing Encroachments

2012 5185 Greenwood Circle R1-A 6,478 New Single Family Home 26' 6.30% Additional Variance Approved to Exceed the Maximum Permitted 
Structure Volume by 2,556 Cubic Feet

2011 5195 Greenwood Cirlce R1-A 7,724 Construct Lakeside Deck 2'3" 21'6" 2% Deck Was Approved as Part of a 1999 Variance for the Construction of 
the Home, but Never Built 

2000 4900 Meadville Street R1-A 7,817 Reconstruction of a Detached Garage 23' 1' 7' 9.40%
1) Increased Front Setback From 0' to 7'  2) Increased North Side Yard 
From 3' to 9'  3)  Increased South Side Yard From 2' to 3' 4)  Impervious 
Surface Area Increased by .4%

2003 5135 West Street R1-A 7,844 New Single Family Home 23'-6" 1'10" 5.20% Encroachments and Impervious Surface Coverage Negiotiated with the 
City

2002 5210 Meadville Street R1-A 9,280 New Single Family Home 11'5" 10' 9.50% 1) Increased North Setback from 3' to 3'-7"  2) Lake Setback Increased 
From 16' to 40' 3) Impervious Surface Area Reduced by 18.8%

2007 21500 Fairview Street R1-A 9,292 New Detached Garage 18' 5.40% Increased Front Yard Encroachment, Approved to Improve Lake Yard 
Setback, Increase in Impervious Surface Area - Never Built

2005 4970 Meadville Street R1-A 9,461 Increase the Height of a Non-
Conforming Structure 8' 14% Adding Height to an Existing Structure, No Change in Existing 

Encroachments

2006 4970 Meadville Street R1-A 9,461 New Single Family Home on Existing 
Non-Conforming Footprint 4' 8'5" 6% Slight increases in both side yard setbacks, 3" on East Side Yard and 7" 

on West Side Yard.  Impervious Surface Area Reduced by 8%.

2002 21885 Fairview Street R1-A 9,609 New Deck 32' 2.50% 1) Increased Rear Enroachment From 25'-7" to 32'  2) Increased 
Impervious Surface Area by .7%

2004 5040 Meadville Street R1-A 9,800 Second Story Addition Over a Non-
Conforming Structure 8' 6'2" 1'6" 13% Built Over Existing Footprint, No Further Encroachments or Impervious 

Surface Area

2002 4700 Linwood Circle R1-A 9,833 Reconfigure Non-Conforming Roofline 21' The Closest Portion of the Home Encroached 41' Into the Required 
Setback.  The Alteration was Set Back Further

2012 5160 Greenwood Circle R1-A 9,833 Retaining Walls Approved Variance to Alter the Grade by a Maximum of 13'
2007 5520 Maple Heights Road R1-A 10,147 Reconstruct Non-conforming Deck 12'7" 7'3" 4% No Increase in Existing Encroachments or Impervious Surface Area
2005 5510 Maple Heights Road R1-A 11,916 Reconstruct Non-conforming Deck 3' 6' 17.80% No Change in Existing Encroachments

2001 21490 Fairview Street R1-A 11,963 Repair and Expand Existing Deck 46' 24.80% Decreased Lake Encroachment from 11' to 4' Impervious Area 
Increased by 1.1%

2004 21490 Fairview Street R1-A 11,963 New Single Family Home 10' 34' 21%

Reduced Existing Non-Conforming Footprint:  1) Eliminated West Side 
Encroachment  2) Reduced South Side Encroachment From 15' to 12'-
6"  3) Lake Encroachment Reduced From 39' to 34'  4) Impervious 
Surface Area Reduced by 1%

2006 5545 Maple Heights Road R1-A 12,780 Raise Existing Non-Conforming Home 
and Construct New Addition 21'-3" 1'4" 5' Maintained Existing Front Encroachment, Created North Side Yard 

Encroachment and Deacreased Rear Yard Encroachment by 10"

2012 5370 Manor Road R1-A 12,993 Construct Second Story and Addition 
on a Non-Conforming Structure 10' 4' South Side Yard is an Exterior Side Yard with a 30' Required Setback

2007 5050 MeadvilleStreet R1-A 13,034 New Single Family Home 12' 4.70%
South Side Yard is a Exterior Side Yard the Existing Setback was 
Increased from 3'-1" to 18", the Impervious Surface Area was Increased 
by 3.4%

2007 5060 Covington Street R1-A 13,157 Reconstruct Non-conforming Deck 26'-1" Front Yard Setback Increased by 2'-11", Eight Foot Increased 
Encroachment Into Wetland Setback

2007 21845 Byron Circle R1-A 14,175 New Single Family Home 20'-10" 8' No Change in Encroachments, Including Placement in Bluff
2008 5110 West Street R1-A 14,842 Reconstruction of a Detached Garage 11' 8.80% No Change in Existing Encroachments or Impervious Surface Area

2002 5500 Maple Heights Road R1-A 15,766 New Second Story and Addition 11' Second Story Maintained Existing 11' Setback. Addition Behind Existing 
Home Granted 8' Setback.

Side Yard



Year Address
Zoning 
District Lot Area Type of Project Fr

on
t Y

ar
d

N S E W Ex
te

rio
r S

id
e 

Ya
rd

Rear 
Yard

Lake 
Yard

Impervious 
Surface Area St

ru
ct

ur
e 

H
ei

gh
t

Additional Notes

2002 21885 Byron Circle R1-A 16,247 Second Story Addition Over a Non-
Conforming Structure 8' Built Over Existing Footprint, No Further Encroachment

2000 21905 Minnetonka Boulevard R1-A 16,605 3' Simple Subdivision Creating a New Vacant Lot Leaving the Existing 
"Homestead" Lot With Existing Setbacks - No Change in Setbacks

2006 21550 Excelsior Boulevard R1-A 16,932 Deck Addition 5'-5" 15% Deck Addition Setback Further From Closest Lake Encroachment, No 
Change in Impervious Surface Area

2012 21550 Excelsior Boulevard R1-A 16,932 Place Frost Footing Under Existing 
Non-Conforming Garage 8' 16% No Change in Existing Encroachment or Impervious Surface Area

2001 4680 Linwood Circle R1-A 17,332 New Air Conditioning Unit Required Setbacks for A/C Units are 20'
2000 5220 Meadville Street R1-A 17,977 Addition 14% Reduction of Original Impervious Surface Area by 4%
2012 20965 Channel Drive R1-A 19,045 25' 6.50%
2003 21320 Excelsior Boulevard R1-A 19,600 Addition 5' 3.60% Existing Deck Encroached 9' Into the Required Setback
2009 21290 Excelsior Boulevard R1-A 19,880 New Attached Garage 9.46% Slight Decrease in Impervious Surface Area, Approximately 1%

2009 21780 Fairview Street R1-A 20,018 New Single Family Home 15' 15' Encroachment Into Required 30' Exterior Side Yard Setback from a 
non-developed street ROW

2003 5180 St. Alban's Bay Road R1-A 20,137 Reconstruction of a Detached Garage 11'6" 8.90% Larger Garage to Replace Existing Garage, no Increase in 
Encroachment, 2% increase in Impervious Surface Area

2007 5180 St. Alban's Bay Road R1-A 20,137 Additions 3' 8' 7.20% Proposed Additions Set Back Further Than Current Encroachments, 
Increase of .4% in Overall Impervious Surface Area

2007 4940 Meadville Street R1-A 20,151 Reconstruct Non-conforming Deck 28'-6" 7% No Change in Existing Encroachments or Impervious Surface Area
2002 21620 Minnetonka Boulevard R1-A 20,177 Reconstruction of a Detached Garage 3'-3" 1'-4" 0.30% Maintained Existing Encroachments and Impervious Surface Area

2002 21270 Excelsior Boulevard R1-A 20,366 Accessory Structure Repair 46' 2.60% Repair Existing Non-conforming Structure, no Change in Non-
Conformity

2008 21250 Excelsior Boulevard R1-A 21,229 Convert Flat Roof to Pitched Roof on 
Non-Conforming Structure 6'6" No Change in Existing Encroachment

2007 5200 Meadville Street R1-A 21,903 Reconstruct Non-conforming Deck 3' No Increase in Existing Encroachments
2008 5085 Greenwood Circle R1-A 23,577 Garage Addition 6.60% Reduction in Impervius Surface Area of .4%
2002 5600 Maple Heights Road R1-A 25,870 Garage Addition 4'-5" New Encroachment 

2011 21520 Fairview Street R1-A 27,712 Reconstruct Non-conforming Deck 7' 5.30% 1'-6" Decrease in Lake Yard Encroachment, .3% Increase in Impervious 
Surface Area

2003 4980 Sleepy Hollow Road R1-A 30,900 New Attached Garage 6' 6' New Encroachments
2005 5125 Weeks Road R1-A 33,360 Reconstruct Non-conforming Deck 10' No Change in Existing Encroachments

2005 4640 Linwood Circle R1-A 37,778 Increase the Height of a Non-
Conforming Structure 3" 10' Adding Height to an Existing Structure, No Change in Existing 

Encroachments

2003 5560 Maple Heights Road R1-B 59,840
Height Variance for a Tower, Variance 

to Place an Accessor Structure 
Between Principal Structure and Lake

Tower Denied.  Accessory Structure met all Setbacks.  Request 
Approved, no Location on Property Structure Could be Placed in 
Compliance with Ordinance.

2012 5220 Maple Heights Road R1-A 100,018 Reconstruct Non-conforming Deck and 
Lakeside Accessory Structure 6'7" 7'2" 16%

No Increase in Existing Encroachments or Impervious Surface Area for 
Deck Replacement, Also Approved Variance to Alter Existing Accessory 
Structure

2000 21250/21270 Excelsior Boulevard R1-A Electronic Lift 50' 0' Lot Line, Lift Agreement Between Neighbors

DENIED

2007 21890 Byron Circle (Denied) R1-A 9,991 New Single Family Home Request to Construct a Home on a Non-Conforming Lot - Request 
Denied

2006 20885 Channel Drive (Denied) R1-A 18,311 Height Variance For House 1'-6" Flat Roof Structure - Added Design Feature for Average Height 
Measurement

13'

15'



Year Address
Zoning 
District Lot Area Type of Project Fr

on
t Y

ar
d

N S E W Ex
te

rio
r S

id
e 

Ya
rd

Rear 
Yard

Lake 
Yard

Impervious 
Surface Area St

ru
ct

ur
e 

H
ei

gh
t

Additional Notes
2000 20920 Oak Lane (Denied) R1-B 22,969 New Single Family Home 20' Proposed Single Family Home Pushed to the Rear of the Lot

Lot Area Less Than 15,000
40% Hardcover Permitted with 
Conditional Use Permit Prior to 
2003



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7A 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 
 

Agenda Item:  Resolution 15-13 Findings Regarding Showcase Event Application,  
Denali Custom Homes, 5190 Meadville Street 

 
Summary: Denali Custom Homes, Inc. constructed a new single family home at 5190 Meadville Street. This structure did 
not require any city approval outside the issuance of a building permit. The project is nearly complete and the contractor 
would like to include it in the Luxury Home Tour. City code requires a showcase event permit for this type of activity. The 
application process for a showcase event permit is outlined in section 450 of the city code: 

Section 450.10(1) requires the issuance of a permit from the city council for the inclusion of a property in a 
showcase even and limits the display of project to three consecutive weekends. The Luxury Home Tour is a 
three-week event. 

Section 450.20 outlines the submittal procedures for obtaining a permit. This includes a public hearing notice 
mailed to neighboring properties and public notice published in Sun-Sailor. Staff has completed these tasks. After 
the public hearing, the council must make a decision on whether to grant or deny the application by resolution 
(see the attached resolution). 

Section 450.25 outlines the required submittal information (see attached documents): 

(a) A site plan that identifies buildings, driveways, local streets, parking locations for employees and the 
public, temporary structures, temporary restrooms, any cordoned off area(s) and the location of all 
proposed on-site and off-site signage. 

(b) Proposed shuttle pick-up point and route to the showcase property. 
(c) A letter of approval from the police department state that all of their conditions have been met. 
(d) A Certificate of General Liability Insurance – The application shall provide public liability insurance in the 

amounts determined by the city council and set forth in chapter 5 of this code book. The city, its agents 
and employees must be named as additional insured. 

Section 450.30 outlines the review and approval process. The city shall consider the following criteria before 
issuing a permit (see attached resolution): 
 

(a) The showcase event or garage sale will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare of its 
resident; and 

(b) The showcase event or garage sale will not cause undue traffic hazards, congestion or parking 
shortages; and 

(c) The showcase event or garage sale will not impose excessive burden on the city or its residents or cause 
damage to private property, parks, street, right-of way, or other public property. 

 
Section 450.35. The city may impose additional conditions upon the permit holder as deemed necessary for the 
protection of the public including the properties located in the vicinity of the showcase event or garage sale and to 
ensure compliance with the requirements of this section. 

 
Council Action: Required. Possible motions … 

1. I move the council adopts resolution 15-13 approving the Showcase Event Permit request by Denali Custom 
Homes. 
 

2. I move the council denies the Showcase Event Permit request by Denali Custom Home, Inc.  The applicant does 
not meet the criteria outlined in section 450.30 of the city code because: ________. 

 

 



















 

 

 CITY OF GREENWOOD 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-13 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SHOWCASE EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION  

FOR DENALI CUSTOM HOMES, 5190 MEADVILLE STREET  
 

WHEREAS, Denali Custom Homes is the builder of a home owned by Dan Hanrahan and Rebecca Lergier located at 
5190 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331; and 
 
WHEREAS, an application was made for a showcase event permit for this property to participate in a Luxury Home Tour 
to be held from 12 noon to 7pm on June 7, 8, 9, 14, 15, 16, 21, 22, 23; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of public hearing was published, notice has been mailed to neighboring property owners, and a public 
hearing was held before the city council to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the city council on June 5, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report and considered the application, the 
comments of the applicant, and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. The real property located at 5190 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 is a single-family property located 
within the R-1A single-family residential district. 

2. The applicant, in compliance with Section 450.25 Subd 1, has submitted the following requisite information: 
(a)  A site plan that identifies buildings, driveways, local streets, parking locations. 
(b)  A letter of approval from the police department stating that all of their conditions have been met. 
(d)  A certificate of general liability insurance in the amount of $ 4,000,000, naming the city, its agents and employees 

as additional insureds. 
3. The foregoing are code compliant and adequately meet the needs of public health, safety, and welfare, provided the 

conduct of the showcase event conforms with the description and specifications in the submitted plans. 
4. Section 450.30 permits the city to impose additional conditions upon the permit holder as deemed necessary for the 

protection of the public including the properties located in the vicinity of the showcase event or garage sale and to 
ensure compliance with the requirements of this section. 

5. In the interests of public health, safety, and welfare the following additional conditions should be imposed on the 
applicant as a condition of issuance of the permit: 
(a)  Applicant shall comply with prior noticed conditions from the police department and all subsequent orders of the 

police department issued during course of event related thereto.  
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact, the city council makes the following Conclusions of Law: 
1. That applicant has met the site plan, police approval, and insurance prerequisites of Section 450.25, Subd 1. 
2. The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of section 450 necessary for the 

granting of a showcase permit, demonstrating:  
a. The proposed showcase event will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare of the city’s 

residents; and 
b. The proposed showcase event will not cause undue traffic hazards, congestion or parking shortage; and 
c. The proposed showcase event will not impose an excessive burden on the city or its residents or cause damage 

to private or public property. 
3. In the interests of public health, safety and welfare the following additional condition should be imposed on the permit: 

a. Applicant shall comply with prior noticed conditions from the police department and all subsequent orders of the 
police department issued during course of event related thereto.  



 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota hereby approves the 
issuance of a showcase event permit to Denali Custom Homes for the planned event at 5190 Meadville Street, 
Greenwood, Minnesota for the dates of June 7, 8, 9, 14, 15, 16, 21, 22, and 23 subject to compliance with the following 
conditions: 
1. The showcase event must comply with the application’s stated site plan, shuttle plan, police approval, and certificate 

of insurance, (to be delivered to City Clerk prior to issuance of permit in form meeting city approval); and 
2. Applicant shall comply with prior noticed conditions from the police department and all subsequent orders of the police 

department issued during course of event related thereto.  
 
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7B 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 

 

Agenda Item: Consider Liquor License Application, Mayette Enterprises LLC, 5175 Meadville Street 
 
Summary:	  The city has received an on-sale intoxicating liquor license application from Greg Frankenfield of Mayette 
Enterprises LLC (the buyer of the Old Log Theater property). The application process for the license is outlined in section 
820 of the city code. The process includes a background investigation, a public hearing (held earlier on the 06-05-13 
council agenda), and 3/5 vote of the council. For the council’s reference, attached are copies of the application, 
background investigation authorization documents, and background investigation results.  

Council Action: Council action is required. Potential motions: 
 

1. I move the city council approves the on-sale intoxicating liquor license requested by Greg Frankenfield, Mayette 
Enterprises LLC conditioned upon the receipt of $6333.33 ($500 investigation fee, plus $5833.33 for prorated 
portion of the $10,000 fee set forth in section 510 of the city code for an on-sale intoxicating liquor license). 
 

2. Other motion ??? 
 























  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7C 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 

 

Agenda Item: Consider Liquor License Refund, Stolz Family LLC, 5175 Meadville Street 
 
Summary:	  The city has received a request for a liquor license refund from the Stolz Family LLC (the sellers of the Old 
Log Theater property). MN statues section 340.408 states that liquor license fees may be refunded on a prorated basis if 
the “licensee ceases to carry on the licensed business under the license.”  

Council Action: Council action is required. Potential motions: 
 

1. I move the city council approves the prorated refund amount of $1666.67 for the liquor license fee paid by Stolz 
Family LLC, due to the fact that the licensee has ceased to carry on the licensed business under the license. 

 
2. Other motion ??? 

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7D 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 

 

Agenda Item:  Consider Resolution 16-13 Findings of Fact, Variance Requests,  
Jim and Libby Pastor, 5100 Greenwood Circle 

 
Summary:	  Copies of the application materials and staff report are attached for the council’s reference. The planning 
commission considered public comment, applicant’s comments, application materials, staff report, and city code variance 
standards (section 1155.10, attached) when making their recommendation and conditions. See the planning commission 
motion below and the FYI section of the council packet for a copy of planning commission minutes. For the city council’s 
reference, copies of the staff report, and city code building requirements for residential districts (sections 1120.20, 
1122.20, 1125.20) are attached. For the council’s consideration, a resolution with findings of fact drafted by the city 
attorney also is attached. 
 
Planning Commission Action: Motion by Commissioner Beal to recommend that the council approves variance 
requests to construct a new single family home on a nonconforming foundation which encroaches 22 feet into the 
minimum required 30 foot exterior east side yard setback, and a garage that encroaches 1 foot into the required 15 foot 
west side yard setback and 26 feet into the required rear yard setback. The variance to exceed the maximum permitted 
impervious surface is necessary to place a driveway in compliance with the ordinance and does not include approval of 
the requested encroachment for the west side deck. The motion is conditioned that the applicant submit a completely 
updated impervious surface table for the city council’s review. Reeder seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Key Dates:  03-19-13 Application complete 
 04-04-13 Notice of the public hearing published in Sun-Sailor 
 04-17-13  Public hearing held by the planning commission 
 05-15-13 Continuation of the public hearing held by the planning commission 

 05-18-13 60-day deadline 
 06-05-13 City council consideration 

 07-17-13 120-day deadline 
 
Council Action: The planning commission HAS exercised the city’s authority to take a 60-day extension. Therefore the 
city council must take action by 07-17-13 unless the applicant grants an additional extension to the city in writing. 
Suggested motions … 
 
1. I move the city council approves resolution 16-13 laying out the findings of fact approving the variance application of 

Jim and Libby Pastor as presented (or with the following revisions: ______). I further move that the council directs the 
city clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the 
mailings in the property file.  

 
2. I move the city council directs the city attorney to draft “findings for denial,” so the council may consider both “findings 

for approval” and “findings for denial” at the 07-03-13 city council meeting.  
 
MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. If the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at 
the time that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the 
extension and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing).  

 



STAFF REPORT 
Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 
 

Agenda	  Item:	  Consider	  Variance	  Requests,	  Jim	  and	  Libby	  Pastor,	  5100	  
Greenwood	  Circle	  

Summary:	  Jim and Libby Pastor are requesting variances to demolish an existing non-conforming single 
family home down to the foundation and construct a new single family home on the existing foundation 
with additions onto the north and front of the home and the inclusion of a wrap-around deck beginning at 
the midpoint of the east face of the home and wrapping around the entire front of the home.  The 
proposed alterations would encroach into minimum required east exterior side yard setback, encroach 
into the minimum required rear yard setback, exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface, and 
exceed the maximum permitted grade alteration with the installation of a new driveway to access the 
proposed attached garage.  The applicant proposes to remove an existing non-conforming accessory 
structure located with within the required west side and rear yard setbacks on the north side of the 
property and an existing non-conforming accessory structure located within the required front and west 
side yard setbacks on the south side of the property. 
 
The property is non-conforming in that it contains a lot area of 6,450 square feet, a single family house 
that encroaches fifteen (15) feet into the required thirty (30) foot east exterior side yard setback and one 
foot, two inches (1’-2”) into the required fifteen (15) foot west side yard setback, has a detached garage 
on the north side of the property located two inches off the north property line and one inch off the west 
property line, has a detached garage on the southwest corner of the property that sits two feet, seven 
inches (2’-7”) from the front property line and one foot, ten inches (1’-10”) from the west side property line 
and exceeds the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 6%. 
 
The applicant proposes to remove the existing single family home down to the foundation, reinforce and 
expand the foundation then reconstruct the single family home on the “new” foundation.  In addition to the 
existing footprint, the applicant would add a one-hundred and twenty (120) square foot addition on the 
front of the home and an eight-five (85) square foot addition on the rear of the home.  The two detached 
structures would be removed and a small attached garage would be added to the north side of the home. 
 
The applicant also proposes to construct a four hundred and fifty (450) square foot deck which begins at 
the midpoint of the east face of the home and extends southward and wraps around the front face of the 
home. 
 
Proposed Home Front 

Yard 
Exterior 

East Side 
Yard 

West 
Side 
Yard 

Rear 
Yard 

Structure 
Height 

Impervious 
Surface 

Structure 
Volume 

Required/Permitted 30’ 30’ 15’ 35’ 28’ - Eaves 30% 38,700 cu. 
ft. 

Existing 55’ 15’ 13’-10” 24’  36% Unknown 
Proposed 
-Home 
-Deck 

 
49’-5” 
35’-5” 

 
15’ 
8’ 

 
13 

N/A 

 
4’ 

N/A 

 
27’-6” 
Overall 

 
47.2% 

 
36,720 cu. 

ft. 
 

 
 
 



• Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum exterior east side yard 
setback of thirty (30) feet.  The applicant proposes an exterior east side yard setback of 
eight (8) feet for the proposed deck attached to the single family home.  The proposal 
requires a twenty-two (22) foot variance of the exterior east side yard setback. 

 
Aside from the deck, which is the closest encroachment into the exterior east side yard setback, there are 
three more proposed additions along the east face of the home, on the north and south sides and one 
towards the center of the home.  Those located on the north and south portion of the home encroach 
fifteen (15) feet into the required exterior east side yard, while the addition located near the center of the 
home encroaches seventeen (17) feet into the required exterior east side yard setback. 
 

• Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum west side yard setback of 
fifteen (15) feet.  The applicant proposes a west side yard setback of thirteen feet (13) feet 
for the proposed attached garage addition.  The proposal requires a two (2) foot variance 
of the west side yard setback. 

 
• Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum rear yard setback of thirty-

five (35) feet.  The applicant proposes a rear yard setback of four (4) feet for the proposed 
attached garage addition.  The proposal requires a thirty-one (31) foot variance of the rear 
yard setback. 

 
The survey submitted by the applicant indicates the existing impervious surface on the property is 36%.  
The proposal would increase the impervious surface area by 11.2% for a total impervious surface area 
percentage of 47.2%.  This impervious surface area may change due to the exact driveway area which 
the applicant is has not finalized with the city engineer. 
 
The minimum lot area for the zoning district in which the lot is located is 15,000 square feet.  The 
applicant has a lot area of 6,450 square feet. 
 

• Section 1176.04(3)(3) permits a maximum permitted impervious surface area of 30%.  The 
applicant proposed an impervious surface area of 47.2%.  The applicant is seeking a 
variance to exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 17.2%. 

 
The applicant is expanding the total volume of structure area on the property.  Based on the applicant’s 
lot area of 6,450 square feet, the permitted structure volume for the property is 38,700 cubic feet.  Based 
on the applicant’s calculations there would 34,560 cubic feet contained in the main structure and 2,160 
total cubic feet for the detached garages for a total of 36,720 cubic feet of above grade structure area.  
The applicant complies with the maximum permitted above grade structure volume. 
 
The property is currently served by two non-conforming one-stall detached garages located on the 
opposite ends of the property.  The garages will be removed and a small attached garage will be added to 
the north side of the home.  The garage will not have direct access to the home. 
 
Key Dates: 
Application complete:   March 19, 2013 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  April 4, 2013 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  April 17, 2013 
Public Hearing Continuation:   May 15, 2013 
City Council Consideration:   June 5, 2013  
60 – Day Deadline:    May 18, 2013 
120- Day Deadline:    July 17, 2013 

	  















GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE, CHAPTER 11 
 
The following subdivisions are from: 
Section 1120.20 (R-1A), 1122.20 (R-1B), 1125.20 (R-2) Building Minimum Requirements  
 

Subd. 1. Principal structures shall: 

 (a) not exceed 28 feet in building height and 42 feet in structure height, 
 (b) be of a minimum width of 25 feet, 
 (c) have a minimum floor space of 800 square feet, 
 (d) be supported by foundation walls and frost footings of 42 inches in depth or current state building code 

requirements whichever is greater, 
 (e) meet all current standards of city building codes and appendices, 
 (f) be served with a private garage and hard-surfaced (e.g. cement or blacktop) driveway to the public street. 

Subd. 2. Accessory structures shall: 

 (a) be limited to 1 private garage, and 1 tool house shed or similar storage building per principal structure, 
 (b) not exceed 15 feet in building height, 
 (c) have a maximum combined floor space of all accessory structures on the lot of 1,000 square feet and in 

no event shall the accessory structures of private garage, tool house shed and similar storage buildings 
combined exceed 60% of the total at grade, main floor square footage of the principal structure, 

 (d)  meet all current standards of city building codes and appendices. 

	  



GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE, CHAPTER 11, SECTION 1155, VARIANCES 
 
The following subdivisions are from: 
Section 1155.10. Requests for Variances from the Literal Provisions of the Ordinance  
 
Subd. 3. Variance Standard. A variance to the requirements of the zoning code, shoreland management district 
ordinance, wetland ordinance and other related zoning controls shall only be permitted when they are in harmony 
with the purposes and intent of the ordinance and when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive 
plan.  Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there are practical difficulties 
in complying with the zoning ordinance. 
 
Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a 
variance, means: 
(a) that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 

ordinance; 
(b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner; 
(c) and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality 
 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall adopt findings addressing the 
following questions: 
(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 
(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 
 
Subd. 6. Additional Requirements for Grants of Variance Requests. The board, in considering all requests for a 
variance, shall determine that the proposed variance, if granted, will not:  
(a) Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
(b) Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street.  
(c) Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
(d) Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance.  
 
Subd. 7. Conditions. No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the zoning 
district in which the subject property is located. The board may impose conditions in the granting of variances. A 
condition must be directly related to and must bear a rough proportionality to the impact created by the variance. 
Conditions required by section 1176.07.05 of the shoreland management district ordinance must also be 
imposed. Violation of such conditions and/or safeguards shall be a violation of the zoning code and subject to the 
enforcement provisions thereof. (REVISED MAR. 2013 ORD. 214) 

	  



 

 1 

  RESOLUTION NO. 16-13        
 
 RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY  

OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA ACTING AS THE  
BOARD OF APPEALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

 
______________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                          

 
APPROVING 

 
IN RE: The Application of James Pastor for Variances to 

Section 1120:15 (east and west side yard setbacks 
and rear yard setbacks), and 1176:04 (impervious 
surface), to permit the remodeling of an existing home 
on an existing lot. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, James Pastor is the owner of property commonly known as 
5100 Greenwood Circle, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-42-
0011); and 
 

WHEREAS, application was made for variances to Section 1120:15, and 
1176:04, to permit remodeling of an existing home on an existing lot; and 
 

WHEREAS, notice of Public Hearing was published, notice given to 
neighboring property owners, and a Public Hearing held before the Planning 
Commission to consider the application; and 
 
 WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the Public Hearing before the 
Planning Commission on April 17, 2013 and May 19, 2013; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Greenwood has received the 
staff report and recommendation of the Planning Commission, and considered 
the application, the comments of the applicant and the comments of the public. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Greenwood, 
Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals and Adjustments does hereby make 
the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 5100 Greenwood Circle, Greenwood, 
Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-42-0011) is a single family lot of  
record located within the R-1A Single Family Residential District.  
 

2.  The applicant proposes to remodel an existing nonconforming house  



 

 2 

which, due to lot area (6,450 square feet), requires side and rear yard 
setbacks and planned hardcover variances.   

 
3.  Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum interior 

(west) side yard setback of fifteen feet and a minimum exterior (east) side 
yard of 30 feet and a minimum rear yard of 35 feet. The lot is 50.0 feet 
wide leaving a building envelope width of 17.35 feet.   

 
4.  The applicant proposes an east side yard setback of eight (8) feet,     

requiring a twenty-two (22) foot variance. The applicant proposed a west 
side yard setback of 8 feet, 6 inches to accommodate a side deck (a 
proposal now withdrawn). The applicant now proposes that the deck 
projecting southerly align with the west side of the existing house for a 
side yard of 13 feet and 10 inches, a variance of 1 foot 2 inches.  The 
applicant proposes a rear yard setback of 4 feet for a variance of 31 feet.   

 
5.  The existing hardcover is 36%.  The applicant proposes hardcover of 

47.2% necessitating a variance of 17.2% to Section 1176.04. The 
proposed hardcover is an increase of 11.2% over the existing 36% 
impervious surface. 

 
6. The applicant proposes a structure volume of 37,964 cubic feet,  

which is code compliant. 
 

7.    Applicant proposes to abandon an existing south side garage, provided 
the City allows a larger 2-car garage addition on the north with a reduced 
northwest rear yard setback of 4. 

 
8.   The lot area is 42.6% of the minimum required lot area for the R-1A 
         zoning district.   
 
9.  The applicant advises that the variances, if granted, will be keeping with 

the spirit and intent of the zoning code because the remodeled structure 
will be in keeping with the existing character of the neighborhood in 
terms of materials, scale and landscape amenities, and the density of the 
proposed improvements. The needed variances, if granted, will not allow 
the structure to be greater in size than many other existing structures in 
the neighborhood.     

 
10.  The applicant advises the property cannot be put to a reasonable use if     

used under the conditions allowed by the official controls due to the lot 
being only 6,400 square feet, 42.6% of minimum lot size. 

 
11.   The applicant advises that the plight of the owner is due to     

circumstances unique to the property and not created by the land owner 
because of extreme narrowness in the lot, 50.0 feet east to west, and a 



 

 3 

lot size of 6,400 square feet creating a building envelope too small for any 
code compliant house without a variance. 

 
12.     The applicant advises the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential  
   of the locale.  
 
13.  The applicant represents that the variances, if granted, will not affect the   

neighboring properties access to light or air, not contribute to traffic 
congestion or increase danger of fire or create a danger to public safety, 
and if granted, the property to be built as proposed will not adversely 
impact surrounding property values. 

 
14. The Planning Commission discussed the proposed plan and      

recommended approval of the project but without a deck extension on 
the west side of the house; and suggested that if the applicant elected to 
abandon the existing south garage, the City approve a wider remodeled 
attached garage on the north with a foreshortened rear yard of 4 feet. As 
proposed, the Planning Commission found the variances should be 
granted for the reason that the lot size creates a practical difficulty in 
that it is less than half the minimum lot area required in the zoning 
district, that the maximum impervious surface area of a variance of 
11.3% be granted based on the practical difficulty related to the size of 
the parcel and that the planned home is of modest size and would not be 
out of character with other homes in the area as built.  The planning 
commission also concluded that the variance to encroach on the rear 
yard 31 feet and 15 feet and into the required 30-foot east side yard 
setback be granted as a practical difficulty exists related to the size of the 
existing lot.  Lastly, all things considered overall the proposal will not 
alter the essential character of the neighborhood. 

 
15.     Section 1155.10, Subd. 4, 5 & 6 provide: 

“Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used 
in connection with the granting of a variance, means: 

(a) That the property owner proposes to use the property in a 
reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning ordinance; 

(b) The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property and not created by the landowner; and 

(c) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the 
locality 

 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  

 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, 
shall adopt findings addressing the following questions: 



 

 4 

(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the 
ordinance? 

(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the 

landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the 

locality? 
 

Subd. 6. Additional Requirements for Grants of Variance Requests. The 
board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall determine that the 
proposed variance, if granted, will not:  

(a) Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
(b) Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street.  
(c) Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
(d) Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values 

within the neighborhood or in any way be contrary to the intent of 
this ordinance.” 

 
16.   Based upon the foregoing, the City Council determined that the variance    

to permit the remodeling as proposed, if granted, would be in harmony 
and keeping with the spirit and intent of the Zoning Code because it will 
maintain the character of the neighborhood.  The variance, if granted, 
will be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s guiding use for the 
subject property in the applicable zone because the character of the 
proposed use is consistent with the applicable zoning. 

 
17.  The City Council finds that the property owner’s proposed manner of use    

of the property, although not permitted under the Zoning Code in a lot of 
this size without a variance, is reasonable because the setbacks do not 
allow a reasonable size house on the property, and the existing house is 
not a reasonable use of the property because it is substandard for a 
residential property.  Also, the City street, as built, encroaches on the lot.  
The planned home is of modest and appropriate size for an R1 zoned 
property of this lot size in this neighborhood.  That the plight of the land 
owner/applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not 
created by the land owner because the property’s geometry, elevation 
differences in topography and small lot dimensions are unique.  The 
variances, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, 
that the proposed single family home is consistent with the locality.  The 
variances, if granted, will not impair an adequate supply of light and air 
to adjacent property, unreasonably increase congestion on public street, 
increase danger of fire or endanger public health, safety, and welfare or 
unreasonably diminish or impair established property values in the 
neighborhood. 

 



 

 5 

18.    That the addition of a full width (20 feet wide), 2-car garage attached to  
the north side of the house is appropriate and reasonable as it provided a 
needed accessory use, provided the south garage is abandoned and 
removed.    

 
19.   The foregoing variances being deemed appropriate, the grant of variances   

to exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface area of 30% by 
17.2% is appropriate and should be granted to accommodate the 
submitted building plan and the still-to-be-determined driveway location. 

 
20.  The following conditions should be imposed on any variance grant: 
 

A. The project must be completed according to the specifications and 
design requirements in the submitted plans, including the removal of 
the detatched garage as shown. 

B. The applicant shall work with the city engineer to determine the 
appropriate location and size of the driveway.  

C. A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with 
the Hennepin County Register of Titles and proof of filing provided to 
the City of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project 
commence. 

 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 
Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact, The City Council acting as the 
Board of Appeals makes the following Conclusions of Law: 
 
1. The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the 

standards of Section 1155.10 necessary for the grant of the following 
variances to Sections 1120:15 and 1176.04:  

 
A. A variance to Section 1120:15 permitting a west side yard 

encroachment of one foot 2 inches (1’2”) into the required west side  
yard setback should be granted. 

B.   A variance to Section 1120:15 permitting an east (exterior) rear 
yard encroachment of twenty-two feet (22’) into the required 
exterior rear yard setback should be granted. 

C.   A variance to Section 1120:15 permitting a rear yard 
encroachment of thirty-one feet (31’) into the required 35’ setback 
should be granted. 

D.   A variance to Section 1176:04 permitting the impervious surface to 
exceed maximum permitted impervious surface of 30% by 17.2%  
should be granted to accommodate the submitted building plan 
and the still-to-be-determined driveway location.  

 
 



 

 6 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals and Adjustments: 
 
That the application of James Pastor for variances to Greenwood  
Ordinance Code Sections 1120:15 and 1176.04, are granted as follows: 
 
A. A variance to Section 1120:15 permitting a west side yard encroachment 

of one (1’) foot 2 inches, (1’2”) into the required west side  yard setback 
should be granted. 

B.   A variance to Section 1120:15 permitting an east (exterior) rear yard 
encroachment of twenty-two feet (22’) into the required exterior rear yard 
setback should be granted. 

C.   A variance to Section 1120:15 permitting a rear yard encroachment of 
thirty-one feet (31’) into the required 35’ setback should be granted. 

D.   A variance to Section 1176:04 permitting the impervious surface to 
exceed maximum permitted impervious surface of 30% by 17.2% should 
be granted to accommodate the submitted building plan and the still-to-
be-determined driveway location.  

E. Should be granted on the following conditions:  
1. The project must be completed according to the specifications and 

design requirements in the submitted plans, including the removal of 
the detached garage as shown. 

2. The applicant shall work with the city engineer to determine the 
appropriate location and size of the driveway. 

3. A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicant  
4. with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and proof of filing 

provided to the City of Greenwood before any permits may be issued 
or the project commences.     

 
PASSED THIS  ____ DAY OF JUNE, 2013 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS AND 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA. 
 
_____ Ayes, _____  Nays 
      CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
ATTEST:     By __________________________________ 
                Debra J. Kind, Mayor        
_________________________________ 
Gus Karpas, Clerk/Administrator 
 

1\RESOLU.pastor 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7E 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss July 4th Fireworks Contribution 
 
Summary:	   The Excelsior / Lake Minnetonka Chamber of Commerce once again is coordinating the July 4th Celebration. 
This community event draws people from the entire South Lake Minnetonka area. As in past years, the city received a 
letter requesting a contribution to support the July 4th Celebration. The council budgeted $1400 for this contribution in 
2013. This expenditure must be authorized by the council.  
 
Council Action: No action required. Possible motions … 

 
1. I move the council directs the city treasurer to disburse a check in the amount of $_____ to the Excelsior / Lake 

Minnetonka Chamber of Commerce for the 2013 July 4th celebration fund. 
 

2. Other motion ??? 
 



Dear Friends of the 4th of July, 

The Excelsior – Lake Minnetonka Chamber of Commerce proudly produces and hosts the 
only public 4th of July fireworks event on Lake Minnetonka!   Our community will celebrate our 
Nation’s favorite holiday in the tried and true way, with a day full of activity!  Beginning early in 
the morning, until well past dark, we welcome you to be a part of the 2013 4th of July experience on 
the shores of Lake Minnetonka, at the Commons Park in downtown Excelsior.  Bring your family 
and friends to enjoy a 4th of July that kicks off with a Firecracker and ends with a BANG! 

Schedule of Events 
8:00AM 2 Mile Firecracker Family Fun Run 
8:30  Firecracker 10K 
9:00-10:30 Sand Sculpture Contest 
9:30-noon Popsicle Social 
11:00  Water Street Parade 
11:30-1:00  Kids’ Fishing Contest 

The Wolverines Big Band performs 6:15 - 8:15   
8:15 - 8:45 
8:45   
8:50   
8:55 - 9:55   
9:55
Dusk   

Lucas Oil Air Show 
Salute to our Veterans 
Presentation of the Colors  
The Wolverines Big Band  
The National Anthem
Fireworks Display over Lake Minnetonka 

A few of you have already expressed interest in sponsorship, and with the array of activities we 
offer throughout the day, there are plenty of opportunities to fit your budget.  We invite you and 
your business to become part of the flair in 2013 by joining our team of sponsors of the Lake 
Minnetonka 4th of July.   Please let us know your intentions by May 10, 2013, so we can include 
you in the pre-event publicity efforts, which will be plentiful! 

Sincerely, 

Laura Hotvet 
Chamber Director 
and 
Jill Farina 
4th of July Chair 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7F 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss Draft of Uniform Animal Ordinance 
 
Summary:	   On May 9, 2012, in response to concerns raised by animal enforcement officers, the South Lake Minnetonka 
Police Department (SLMPD) coordinating committee directed SLMPD staff to draft a uniform animal ordinance to make 
enforcement consistent between the jurisdictions served by the department. Attached is a memo outlining the long 
process for drafting the ordinance. Also attached is the final draft of the ordinance that was approved by the coordinating 
committee for consideration by the 4 city councils. If the Greenwood city council desires to move forward with the 
ordinance, it will be converted into a format that fits with our code book. 
 
City Attorney Mark Kelly was instrumental in providing input during the draft process for the uniform animal ordinance. His 
memo regarding the final draft is attached for the council’s consideration. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Possible motions … 

 
1. I move the council directs that the uniform animal ordinance be formatted for a 1st reading to be considered at the 

07-03-13 city council meeting. 
 

2. I move the council directs that the uniform animal ordinance be formatted for a 1st reading to be considered at the 
07-03-13 city council meeting, with the following changes: _____________. 
 

3. Other motion ??? 
 

















































  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7G 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss 2014 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District Budget Options 
 
Summary:	   At the 06-05-13 council meeting, Greenwood’s Lake Minnetonka Conservation District representative 
Councilman Rob Roy will walk the council through two LMCD budget options being considered and explain the budget 
process. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Possible motions … 

 
1. I move the council supports the 2014 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District budget option __. 

 
2. I move the council supports the 2014 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District budget option __, with the following 

changes: _____________. 
 

3. Other motion ??? 
 







City

2010  U.S. 
Census 

Population 
Data

2012 Taxable 
Market Value

2012 Net Tax 
Capacity

% of Total 
Net Tax 
Capacity 
(Note 1)

Share of 
Admin. Levy 

in 2014

Share of AIS 
Levy in 2014

Share of Total 
Levy in 2014

Share of Total 
Levy in 2013

Increase in 
Total Levy 
from 2013

% of 
Increase 

from 2013

DEEPHAVEN 3,642 922,807,292 10,327,976 4.8% $16,442 $9,333 $25,774 $21,692 $4,082 18.8%
EXCELSIOR 2,188 315,145,221 3,949,333 1.8% $6,287 $3,569 $9,856 $8,173 $1,683 20.6%
GREENWOOD 688 274,144,600 3,120,892 1.4% $4,968 $2,820 $7,788 $6,450 $1,338 20.8%
MINNETONKA 49,734 7,256,381,123 91,746,541 42.6% $49,198 $27,925 $77,123 $66,121 $11,002 16.6%
MTKA BEACH 539 251,180,550 2,911,789 1.4% $4,636 $2,631 $7,267 $6,399 $868 13.6%
MINNETRISTA 6,384 1,197,793,354 12,732,540 5.9% $20,270 $11,505 $31,775 $27,595 $4,180 15.1%
MOUND 9,052 924,089,329 9,822,668 4.6% $15,638 $8,876 $24,513 $21,878 $2,635 12.0%
ORONO 7,437 2,364,623,516 26,790,406 12.4% $42,650 $24,208 $66,858 $58,407 $8,451 14.5%
SHOREWOOD 7,307 1,367,209,584 15,025,751 7.0% $23,921 $13,578 $37,498 $31,671 $5,827 18.4%
SPRING PARK 1,669 208,910,996 2,505,237 1.2% $3,988 $2,264 $6,252 $5,195 $1,057 20.3%
TONKA BAY 1,475 490,783,274 5,565,705 2.6% $8,861 $5,029 $13,890 $12,077 $1,813 15.0%
VICTORIA 7,345 954,264,600 9,983,858 4.6% $15,894 $9,022 $24,916 $20,526 $4,390 21.4%
WAYZATA 3,688 1,353,914,070 17,839,841 8.3% $28,401 $16,120 $44,521 $37,945 $6,576 17.3%
WOODLAND 437 259,774,364 3,038,376 1.4% $4,837 $2,746 $7,583 $6,474 $1,109 17.1%

101,585 18,141,021,873 215,360,913 100.0% $245,990 $139,625 $385,615 $330,603 $55,012 16.6%

Maximum Levy Per MN statute 103B.635 (Total Taxable Market Value * .00242%): $439,013

(Note 1) Per MN statute 103B.631, no city may pay more than 20% of the total levy.  The City of Minnetonka would pay a constant 20% of any amounts to be levied. 

Remaining cities factor for determining levy amounts is computed as: (City Net Tax Capacity / ( Total Net Tax Capacity - Minnetonka Net Tax Capacity ) ) * 80%

Total Net Tax Capacity 215,360,913
    less Minnetonka Net Tax Capacity (91,746,541)
Net Tax Capacity for remaining 13 cities 123,614,372

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT
2014 BUDGET AND LEVY

(DRAFT- OPTION 2)



2011 2012 2012 2013 2013 Actual 2014 Footnote #
Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Budget See Appendix A

1.
a) LMCD Communities Levy 250,231 231,875 231,875 238,654 238,654 245,990
b) Use from Administration Reserve 0 20,000 0 19,655 19,655 19,565 1
c) Court Fines 71,783 54,000 105,036 55,000 55,000 55,000  
d) Licenses 116,859 115,000 110,128 115,000 115,000 115,000
e) Other Public Agencies 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Interest 1,012 1,500 1,941 1,000 1,000 1,250
g) Other Income  2,939 2,000 3,795 2,000 2,000 2,000

442,824 424,375 452,775 431,309 431,309 438,805

2.
a) LMCD Communities Levy 80,419 90,333 90,331 91,950 91,950 139,625  
b) Other Public Agencies 54,238 32,800 50,750 32,800 59,307 30,000 2
c) Use from AIS Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0  
d)  Interest 207 500 379 250 250 375

134,864 123,633 141,460 125,000 151,507 170,000

3.
a) Transfers from Admin. and AIS Reserves 25,000 45,856 25,000 25,000 25,000  
b) Receipt from LMCIT 0 32,500 0 0 0  
c) Use from Equipment Replacement Reserve 0 96,036 0 0 0  

25,000 174,392 25,000 25,000 25,000

577,688 573,008 768,627 581,309 607,816 633,805

330,650 322,208 322,206 330,604 330,604 385,615

1.
a) Salaries-Excludes EWM Project Mgmt. Time 184,767 192,537 195,445 196,401 200,524 200,524 3
b) FICA & Medicare 14,118 14,729 14,945 15,025 15,340 15,340 4
c) Employer Benefit Contributions 28,730 29,855 29,811 32,015 30,609 33,279 5

227,615 237,121 240,201 243,441 246,473 249,143

2.
a) Office Lease & Storage 43,005 44,054 44,032 45,112 46,297 47,409 6
b) Professional Services 18,862 3,500 3,202 2,700 2,500 2,500 7

61,867 47,554 47,234 47,812 48,797 49,909

Equipment Replacement

SUB-TOTAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT

TOTAL REVENUES

Total Levy

DISBURSEMENTS
ADMINISTRATION

Personnel Services:

SUB-TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES

Contractual Services:

REVENUES
Administration

SUB-TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 

Aquatic Invasive Species 

SUB-TOTAL AQUATIC INVASIVE SPECIES

SUB-TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

2014 BUDGET DETAIL (Draft- Option 2)



2011 2012 2012 2013 2013 Actual 2014 Footnote #
Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Budget See Appendix A

2014 BUDGET DETAIL (Draft- Option 2)

3.
a) Office, General Supplies 3,165 5,000 4,071 4,500 4,500 4,500
b) Telephone 2,062 2,500 2,069 2,500 2,200 2,160  
c) Postage 4,863 5,000 3,800 5,000 5,000 5,000
d) Printing, Publications, Advertising 8,453 11,000 9,927 10,000 10,000 10,500 8
e) Maintenance, Office Equipment 1,021 1,200 837 1,200 1,200 1,100
f) Subscriptions, Memberships 1,488 1,000 1,550 1,000 1,625 1,700
g) Insurance, Bonds 7,156 6,500 6,031 7,000 7,000 7,000 9
h) Public Information, Legal Notices 1,781 1,500 139 1,500 500 1,000
i) Meeting Expenses 3,473 3,500 4,399 4,000 4,500 4,500
j) Mileage 1,504 2,000 1796 2000 2000 2000
k) Employee Training 0 400 0 400 400 400

34,966 39,600 34,619 39,100 38,925 39,860

4.
a) Furniture & Equipment 743 1,500 948 1,500 1,250 1,000
b) Computer Software & Hardware 483 2,000 1,553 2,000 1,750 2,000 10

1,226 3,500 2,501 3,500 3,000 3,000

5.
a) Legal Services 30,771 37,000 21,576 35,000 34,000 32,000 11
b) Prosecution Services 25,585 47,000 39,875 45,000 45,000 45,000 12
c) Hennepin County Room & Board 1,104 750 732 1,000 1,000 1,000

57,460 84,750 62,183 81,000 80,000 78,000

6.
a) Audit 6,651 6,850 6,850 7,056 7,056 7,268
b) Information Technology 0 0 0 0 500 500

6,651 6,850 6,850 7,056 7,556 7,768

7. 3,500 4,000

8. 0 0 0 0 0 0  

9. 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 13

10. 5,247 5,000 4,693 9,400 2,500 7,125

395,032 449,375 423,281 456,309 455,751 463,805

SUB-TOTAL LEGAL

Office & Administration:

SUB-TOTAL OFFICE & ADMINISTRATION

Capital Outlay:

SUB-TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY

Legal:

Contract Services/Studies:

SUB-TOTAL CONTRACT SERVICES/STUDIES

Code Enforcement Program

Administration Reserve Fund

Equipment Replacement Fund

Contingency

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION



2011 2012 2012 2013 2013 Actual 2014 Footnote #
Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Budget See Appendix A

2014 BUDGET DETAIL (Draft- Option 2)

1. 79,761 93,633 84,863 95,000 95,000 95,000 14

2. 0 0 0 0 0 0

3. 0 0 0 0 0 0

4. 0 0 0 0 0 55,000 15

5. 34,247 30,000 38,905 30,000 43,115 20,000 16

1. 0 174,392 0 0 0

114,008 123,633 298,160 125,000 138,115 170,000

509,040 573,008 721,441 581,309 593,866 633,805

AIS Reserve Fund

Herbicide Treatment Program

AIS Prevention & Management Programs

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
Purchase of New Mechanical Harvester

TOTAL AQUATIC INVASIVE SPECIES

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

AQUATIC INVASIVE SPECIES (AIS) 
Eurasian Watermilfoil (EWM) Harvesting Program

Equipment Replacement Fund 



Page 1

Use from Administration Reserve 
Fund (Footnote #1)

Other Public Agencies (Footnote #2) It is anticipated that the MN DNR will fund the LMCD with a grant of $30,000 for the 2014 EWM 
Harvesting Program.

Salaries (Footnote #3) 2014 estimated actual
Executive Director $79,618.52

$55,702.40
Less 1 pay period for EWM Project Manager -$2,320.93
Administrative Assistant/Code Enforcement $48,464.00 (*)
Administrative Clerk (part-time) $17,060.16
Seasonal Code Enforcement (part-time) $2,000.00

$200,524.15 (**)
(*)  Salaries will be grossed up to pay for long-term disability insurance for full-time LMCD employees

F.I.C.A. & Medicare (Footnote #4)
Total Salaries- including EWM Project Management (7.65%) $15,517.65
Less 1 pay period for EWM Project Manager $177.55

$15,340.10

Employer Benefit
Contributions (Footnote #5)
P.E.R.A. (7.50%) $15,063.38
NCPERS Life Insurance $576.00
Medical & Dental Insurance $17,639.75

$33,279.13

Office Lease & Storage (Footnote #6) Monthly Rate Months
$3,922.85 8 $31,382.80
$4,006.61 4 $16,026.44

$47,409.24

Professional Services (Footnote #7)
Contracted Payroll & Taxes $2,000.00
Contracted Bookkeeping Consulting $500.00

$2,500.00

Printing, Publications, & Advertising $10,500 has been budgeted for two LMCD Newsletters, the re-printing of the Summer and Winter Rules brochures, 
(Footnote #8)

Administrative Technician (also serves as EWM Project Manager) 

(**) Salary adjustments (including F.I.C.A., medicare, & P.E.R.A.) are included in Contingency (line-item 10) 

fund balance is detailed on page 2.

Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD)

and other LMCD literature.

Draft 2014 LMCD Budget (Option 2)

(*)
(*)

Appendix A 

A $19,565 reserve fund transfer has been budgeted for 2014.  Further analysis of this reserve 



Page 2

Insurance, Bonds (Footnote #9) $7,000 has been budgeted with the League of Minnesota Cities for insurance for the LMCD. 

Computer Software & Hardware 
(Footnote #10) 

Legal Services (Footnote #11) $32,000 has been budgeted for legal services, which will be partially off-set by charging expenses back to applicants. 

Prosecution Services (Footnote #12) $45,000 has been budgeted for prosecution services.  These expenses will be offset by projected $55,000 of court fines. 

Equipment Replacement Fund
(Footnote #13)

EWM Harvesting Program (Footnote #14) A 10-week mechanical harvesting program is planned from mid June through mid August to manage EWM on Lake
Minnetonka.  Harvesting priorities will be based on impediments to public navigation to the open water due to EWM
growth (in particular matted areas).  All areas that dictate the need for harvesting will be done at least once, with high
growth areas being harvested twice (time permitting).  More details of the proposed project (including a more detailed
budget) will be provided in the spring of 2014.

Herbicide Treatment Program
(Footnote #15)

AIS Prevention & Management This line-item will focus on comprehensive watercraft inspections to manage the spread of zebra mussels from Lake
Programs (Footnote #16) Minnetonka and reduce the chances of introducing new aquatic invasive species.  A $20,000 levy to the 14 LMCD 

member cities has been budgeted for 2014.

RESERVE FUND ANALYSIS: Administration AIS Equipment Replacement Fund

2013
12/31/12 Balance $301,204 $64,433 $17,184
Reserve Fund Contribution $0 $0 $0
Transfer from Reserve Fund ($19,565) $0 $0
Transfer to Equip. Repl. Fund ($25,000) $0 $25,000
Projected 12/31/13 Balance $256,639 $64,433 $42,184

Administration AIS Equipment Replacement Fund
2014

Projected 12/31/13 Balance $256,639 $64,433 $42,184
Reserve Fund Contribution $0 $0 $0
Transfer from Reserve Fund ($19,565) $0 $0
Transfer to Equip. Repl. Fund ($25,000) $0 $25,000
Projected 12/31/14 Balance $212,074 $64,433 $67,184

Projected % of 2013 Annual Budget 46.5% 51.5%

Minnetonka (adopted by the LMCD Board of Directors on March 13, 2013).

$55,000 has been budgeted for whole bay or large scale herbicide treatments on suitable management areas on Lake  

$2,000 has been budgeted for information technology, hardware, and software updates.  

Minnetonka.  These treatments would be coordinated consistent with the Comprehensive EWM and CLP Plan for Lake 

$25,000 has been budgeted for replacement of depreciated EWM Harvesting Equipment.



 

City

2010  U.S. 

Census 

Population 

Data

2012 Taxable 

Market Value

2012 Net Tax 

Capacity

% of Total 

Net Tax 

Capacity 

(Note 1)

Share of 

Admin. Levy 

in 2014

Share of AIS 

Levy in 2014

Share of Total 

Levy in 2014

Share of Total 

Levy in 2013

Increase in 

Total Levy 

from 2013

% of 

Increase 

from 2013

DEEPHAVEN 3,642 922,807,292 10,327,976 4.8% $16,442 $6,325 $22,767 $21,692 $1,075 5.0%

EXCELSIOR 2,188 315,145,221 3,949,333 1.8% $6,287 $2,419 $8,706 $8,173 $533 6.5%

GREENWOOD 688 274,144,600 3,120,892 1.4% $4,968 $1,911 $6,880 $6,450 $430 6.7%

MINNETONKA 49,734 7,256,381,123 91,746,541 42.6% $49,198 $18,925 $68,123 $66,121 $2,002 3.0%

MTKA BEACH 539 251,180,550 2,911,789 1.4% $4,636 $1,783 $6,419 $6,399 $20 0.3%

MINNETRISTA 6,384 1,197,793,354 12,732,540 5.9% $20,270 $7,797 $28,067 $27,595 $472 1.7%

MOUND 9,052 924,089,329 9,822,668 4.6% $15,638 $6,015 $21,653 $21,878 -$225 -1.0%

ORONO 7,437 2,364,623,516 26,790,406 12.4% $42,650 $16,406 $59,056 $58,407 $649 1.1%

SHOREWOOD 7,307 1,367,209,584 15,025,751 7.0% $23,921 $9,202 $33,122 $31,671 $1,451 4.6%

SPRING PARK 1,669 208,910,996 2,505,237 1.2% $3,988 $1,534 $5,522 $5,195 $327 6.3%

TONKA BAY 1,475 490,783,274 5,565,705 2.6% $8,861 $3,408 $12,269 $12,077 $192 1.6%

VICTORIA 7,345 954,264,600 9,983,858 4.6% $15,894 $6,114 $22,008 $20,526 $1,482 7.2%

WAYZATA 3,688 1,353,914,070 17,839,841 8.3% $28,401 $10,925 $39,326 $37,945 $1,381 3.6%

WOODLAND 437 259,774,364 3,038,376 1.4% $4,837 $1,861 $6,698 $6,474 $224 3.5%

101,585 18,141,021,873 215,360,913 100.0% $245,990 $94,625 $340,615 $330,603 $10,012 3.0%

Maximum Levy Per MN statute 103B.635 (Total Taxable Market Value * .00242%):   $439,013

(Note 1) Per MN statute 103B.631, no city may pay more than 20% of the total levy.  The City of Minnetonka would pay a constant 20% of any amounts to be levied. 

Remaining cities factor for determining levy amounts is computed as: (City Net Tax Capacity / ( Total Net Tax Capacity - Minnetonka Net Tax Capacity ) ) * 80%

Total Net Tax Capacity 215,360,913

    less Minnetonka Net Tax Capacity (91,746,541)

Net Tax Capacity for remaining 13 cities 123,614,372

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2014 BUDGET AND LEVY

(DRAFT- OPTION1)



2011 2012 2012 2013 2013 Actual 2014 Footnote #

Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Budget See Appendix A

1.

a) LMCD Communities Levy 250,231 231,875 231,875 238,654 238,654 245,990

b) Use from Administration Reserve 0 20,000 0 19,655 19,655 19,565 1

c) Court Fines 71,783 54,000 105,036 55,000 55,000 55,000  

d) Licenses 116,859 115,000 110,128 115,000 115,000 115,000

e) Other Public Agencies 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Interest 1,012 1,500 1,941 1,000 1,000 1,250

g) Other Income  2,939 2,000 3,795 2,000 2,000 2,000

442,824 424,375 452,775 431,309 431,309 438,805

2.

a) LMCD Communities Levy 80,419 90,333 90,331 91,950 91,950 94,625  

b) Other Public Agencies 54,238 32,800 50,750 32,800 59,307 30,000 2

c) Use from AIS Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0  

d)  Interest 207 500 379 250 250 375

134,864 123,633 141,460 125,000 151,507 125,000

3.

a) Transfers from Administration and AIS Reserves 25,000 45,856 25,000 25,000 25,000  

b) Receipt from LMCIT 0 32,500 0 0 0  

c) Use from Equipment Replacement Reserve 0 96,036 0 0 0  

25,000 174,392 25,000 25,000 25,000

577,688 573,008 768,627 581,309 607,816 588,805

330,650 322,208 322,206 330,604 330,604 340,615

1.

a) Salaries- excludes EWM Project Management time 184,767 192,537 195,445 196,401 200,524 200,524 3

b) FICA & Medicare 14,118 14,729 14,945 15,025 15,340 15,340 4

c) Employer Benefit Contributions 28,730 29,855 29,811 32,015 30,609 33,279 5

227,615 237,121 240,201 243,441 246,473 249,143

2.

a) Office Lease & Storage 43,005 44,054 44,032 45,112 46,297 47,409 6

b) Professional Services 18,862 3,500 3,202 2,700 2,500 2,500 7

61,867 47,554 47,234 47,812 48,797 49,909

SUB-TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 

SUB-TOTAL AQUATIC INVASIVE SPECIES

SUB-TOTAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT

SUB-TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES

SUB-TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

Contractual Services:

TOTAL REVENUES

Total Levy

DISBURSEMENTS

ADMINISTRATION

Personnel Services:

2014 BUDGET DETAIL (Draft- Option 1)

Administration

Aquatic Invasive Species 

Equipment Replacement

REVENUES



2011 2012 2012 2013 2013 Actual 2014 Footnote #

Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Budget See Appendix A

2014 BUDGET DETAIL (Draft- Option 1)

3.

a) Office, General Supplies 3,165 5,000 4,071 4,500 4,500 4,500

b) Telephone 2,062 2,500 2,069 2,500 2,200 2,160  

c) Postage 4,863 5,000 3,800 5,000 5,000 5,000

d) Printing, Publications, Advertising 8,453 11,000 9,927 10,000 10,000 10,500 8

e) Maintenance, Office Equipment 1,021 1,200 837 1,200 1,200 1,100

f) Subscriptions, Memberships 1,488 1,000 1,550 1,000 1,625 1,700

g) Insurance, Bonds 7,156 6,500 6,031 7,000 7,000 7,000 9

h) Public Information, Legal Notices 1,781 1,500 139 1,500 500 1,000

i) Meeting Expenses 3,473 3,500 4,399 4,000 4,500 4,500

j) Mileage 1,504 2,000 1796 2000 2000 2000

k) Employee Training 0 400 0 400 400 400

34,966 39,600 34,619 39,100 38,925 39,860

4.

a) Furniture & Equipment 743 1,500 948 1,500 1,250 1,000

b) Computer Software & Hardware 483 2,000 1,553 2,000 1,750 2,000 10

1,226 3,500 2,501 3,500 3,000 3,000

5.

a) Legal Services 30,771 37,000 21,576 35,000 34,000 32,000 11

b) Prosecution Services 25,585 47,000 39,875 45,000 45,000 45,000 12

c) Hennepin County Room & Board 1,104 750 732 1,000 1,000 1,000

57,460 84,750 62,183 81,000 80,000 78,000

6.

a) Audit 6,651 6,850 6,850 7,056 7,056 7,268

b) Information Technology 0 0 0 0 500 500

6,651 6,850 6,850 7,056 7,556 7,768

7. 3,500 4,000

8. 0 0 0 0 0 0  

9. 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 13

10. 5,247 5,000 4,693 9,400 2,500 7,125

395,032 449,375 423,281 456,309 455,751 463,805

Administration Reserve Fund

Equipment Replacement Fund

Contingency

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION

Legal:

Contract Services/Studies:

Code Enforcement Program

SUB-TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY

SUB-TOTAL LEGAL

SUB-TOTAL CONTRACT SERVICES/STUDIES

Office & Administration:

Capital Outlay:

SUB-TOTAL OFFICE & ADMINISTRATION



2011 2012 2012 2013 2013 Actual 2014 Footnote #

Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Budget See Appendix A

2014 BUDGET DETAIL (Draft- Option 1)

1. 79,761 93,633 84,863 95,000 95,000 95,000 14

2. 0 0 0 0 0 0  

3. 0 0 0 0 0 0

4. 0 0 0 0 0 0  

5. 34,247 30,000 38,905 30,000 43,115 30,000 15

1. 0 174,392 0 0 0  

114,008 123,633 298,160 125,000 138,115 125,000

509,040 573,008 721,441 581,309 593,866 588,805

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

Purchase of New Mechanical Harvester

TOTAL AQUATIC INVASIVE SPECIES

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

Eurasian Watermilfoil (EWM) Harvesting Program

AQUATIC INVASIVE SPECIES (AIS) 

Equipment Replacement Fund 

AIS Reserve Fund

Herbicide Treatment Program

AIS Prevention & Management Programs



Use from Administration Reserve 

Fund (Footnote #1)

Other Public Agencies (Footnote #2) It is anticipated that the MN DNR will fund the LMCD with a grant of $30,000 for the 2014 EWM 

Harvesting Program.

Salaries (Footnote #3) 2014 estimated actual

Executive Director $79,618.52

$55,702.40

Less 1 pay period for EWM Project Manager -$2,320.93

Administrative Assistant/Code Enforcement $48,464.00 (*)

Administrative Clerk (part-time) $17,060.16

Seasonal Code Enforcement (part-time) $2,000.00

$200,524.15 (**)

(*)  Salaries will be grossed up to pay for long-term disability insurance for full-time LMCD employees

F.I.C.A. & Medicare (Footnote #4)

Total Salaries- including EWM Project Management (7.65%) $15,517.65

Less 1 pay period for EWM Project Manager $177.55

$15,340.10

Employer Benefit

Contributions (Footnote #5)

P.E.R.A. (7.50%) $15,063.38

NCPERS Life Insurance $576.00

Medical & Dental Insurance $17,639.75

$33,279.13

Office Lease & Storage (Footnote #6) Monthly Rate Months

$3,922.85 8 $31,382.80

$4,006.61 4 $16,026.44

$47,409.24

Professional Services (Footnote #7)

Contracted Payroll & Taxes $2,000.00

Contracted Bookkeeping Consulting $500.00

$2,500.00

Printing, Publications, & Advertising $10,500 has been budgeted for two LMCD Newsletters, the re-printing of the Summer and Winter Rules brochures, 

(Footnote #8)

Administrative Technician (also serves as EWM Project Manager) 

(**) Salary adjustments (including F.I.C.A., medicare, & P.E.R.A.) are included in Contingency (line-item 10) 

fund balance is detailed on page 2.

Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD)

and other LMCD literature.

Draft 2014 LMCD Budget (Option 1)

(*)

(*)

Appendix A 

A $19,565 reserve fund transfer has been budgeted for 2014.  Further analysis of this reserve 

Page 1



Insurance, Bonds (Footnote #9) $7,000 has been budgeted with the League of Minnesota Cities for insurance for the LMCD. 

Computer Software & Hardware 

(Footnote #10) 

Legal Services (Footnote #11) $32,000 has been budgeted for legal services, which will be partially off-set by charging expenses back to applicants. 

Prosecution Services (Footnote #12) $45,000 has been budgeted for prosecution services.  These expenses will be offset by projected $55,000 of court fines. 

Equipment Replacement Fund

(Footnote #13)

EWM Harvesting Program (Footnote #14) A 10-week mechanical harvesting program is planned from mid June through mid August to manage EWM on Lake

Minnetonka.  Harvesting priorities will be based on impediments to public navigation to the open water due to EWM

growth (in particular matted areas).  All areas that dictate the need for harvesting will be done at least once, with high

growth areas being harvested twice (time permitting).  More details of the proposed project (including a more detailed

budget) will be provided in the spring of 2014.

AIS Prevention & Management

Programs (Footnote #15)

RESERVE FUND ANALYSIS: Administration AIS Equipment Replacement Fund

2013

12/31/12 Balance $301,204 $64,433 $17,184

Reserve Fund Contribution $0 $0 $0

Transfer from Reserve Fund ($19,565) $0 $0

Transfer to Equip. Repl. Fund ($25,000) $0 $25,000

Projected 12/31/13 Balance $256,639 $64,433 $42,184

Administration AIS Equipment Replacement Fund

2014

Projected 12/31/13 Balance $256,639 $64,433 $42,184

Reserve Fund Contribution $0 $0 $0

Transfer from Reserve Fund ($19,565) $0 $0

Transfer to Equip. Repl. Fund ($25,000) $0 $25,000

Projected 12/31/14 Balance $212,074 $64,433 $67,184

Projected % of 2013 Annual Budget 46.5% 51.5%

will seek partnerships for the implementation of these projects, in particular funding partners. 

$30,000 has been budgeted for unspecfified AIS management and prevention programs.  Potential programs include: 

$2,000 has been budgeted for information technology, hardware, and software updates.  

1) watercraft inspections, 2) herbicide treatments, and 3) biological (weevil) research.  Similar to past years, the LMCD

$25,000 has been budgeted for replacement of depreciated EWM Harvesting Equipment.

Page 2







  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7H 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Recycling Education Options 
 
Summary: On 11-30-11 the Hennepin County Board approved the 2012 Hennepin County Residential Recycling Funding 
Policy to comply with the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency’s (MPCA) 2010-2030 Metropolitan Solid Waste 
Management Policy Plan that establishes a goal that by 2015 at least 45% of municipal waste generated in Hennepin 
county will be recycled. In 2011 the county had a recycling rate of 38%. The city approved the attached agreement with 
the county on 06-06-12. In addition to requiring reporting from the city’s recycling provider, the city’s contract with 
Hennepin county also requires education and outreach activities. Below is the list showing the city’s compliance with 
these requirements:  
 

a) County terminology has been used in city communications when describing recycling guidelines. 
b) Images provided by the county have been used when describing the recycling program. 
c) The county’s terminology, guidelines, and images are being used on the city website. 
d) The county’s recycling guide will be included in the June 2013 newsletter mailing. 

 
Missing from the above list is (e) “two additional education activities” from section 4 on page 3 of the agreement with the 
county. This requirement was waived in 2012 because the county was unable to provide a “menu of options.” However, 
the city recently received information regarding education options, so the expectation from the county is that the city 
needs to complete two additional education activities in 2013. Attached are documents that list options for the council’s 
consideration.  
 
The next Greenwood Quarterly newsletter will be sent to homes at the end of June. The newsletter will include a 
Recycling flyer provided by the county. If the council wishes to promote two education activities in the newsletter, the two 
activities need to be determined as soon as possible.  
 
Council Action: Required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the council authorizes the city clerk and mayor to select and implement two education activities to fulfill the 
requirements of the city’s recycling agreement with Hennepin county.  
 

2. Other motion ??? 
 















Environmental Education Toolkit: Activity
Ideas and Resources
Each section of the toolkit has activity ideas to help you get others involved in
learning and taking action. Click on an activity below for a description of the
activity, list of supplies, links to related handouts or activity sheets, and
discussion starters.

Toolkit activities - organized by topic and appropriate age group

Activity Youth Teen Adult

Waste Reduction    

Make your own gift wrap,
bags, and cards

X X X

Eco-Fashion Show X X X

Wise up about waste quiz  X X

Product packaging:
comparing waste and cost

 X X

Recycling    

Make a Recycling Chart X   

Make a Recycling Monster X   

Close the recycling loop  X X

What's in your trash can  X X

Toxicity Reduction    

Techno Trash  X X

Make non-toxic cleaner  X X

Video: Are you Exposing
your Children to a Toxic
Brew?

  X

Label reading  X X

Grow Grass Seeds X   

Energy Conservation    

Take the Minnesota Energy
Challenge

 X X

Use an Energy Meter to
Learn About Electricity
Consumption

 X X

Create your own windsock X   

http://www.addthis.com/bookmark.php
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=33ed076f1c4db210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=ba20076f1c4db210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=2bf0076f1c4db210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=0552076f1c4db210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=90e2b4c36d3eb210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=3df3b4c36d3eb210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=3356b4c36d3eb210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=8b0defbfab4eb210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=23bc3ec9e24fb210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=e0623ec9e24fb210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=b3333ec9e24fb210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=02043ec9e24fb210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=95e53ec9e24fb210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=aae4276bfb80c210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=64a838ede490c210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=d0bb38ede490c210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD


Make a weather collage X   

Water Resources    

Where in the Watershed X X X

Maintain your Drain X X X

Volunteer to Monitor Water
Quality

 X X

Build or Buy a Rain Barrel   X

Lawn Care Contest (Also
Toxicity)

   

Bio Bingo X X X

All Topic Activities    

Eco-Drama X X  

Book or Movie Club  X X

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Did you find what you were looking for?   Yes   No

Contact
Community POWER
Grant Coordinator
Email
Phone: 612-348-
3777
FAX: 612-348-8532
TDD: 612-596-6985
8:00 a.m. - 4:30
p.m.

http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=a99c38ede490c210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=b632f0e240d0c210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=8d34f0e240d0c210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=d7e607894431c210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=639879aaf931c210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=147a79aaf931c210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=32026ce6bd8bd210VgnVCM2000000a124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=955a0c3eb975d210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
http://www.hennepin.us/vgn-ext-templating/v/index.jsp?vgnextoid=a78b0c3eb975d210VgnVCM1000000b124689RCRD
mailto:communitypower@co.hennepin.mn.us


Solid Waste Management Coordinating Board
Residential Recycling Toolkit
Beginning in Spring 2012, many Twin Cities recycling service providers are accepting more materials as new markets for
recyclable materials have become available. The SWMCB has updated this Residential Recycling Toolkit with new language,
images, and tools to reflect the additional materials accepted and help partners promote recycling in the metro area.

Thank you for your interest in the Residential Recycling toolkit. Participation by county and municipal recycling staff, recycling
service providers and other organizations is the key to the success of this campaign. By working together and being consistent
with our messages we will be able to break through the communications clutter.

Terms of Use - Style and Usage Guide
Please read "Style & Usage Guide: SWMCB Toolkit Materials and Rethink Recycling Logo"  before using this or other Rethink
Recycling toolkit pieces.  By downloading toolkit pieces, you agree to the terms of use outlined in the guide.

Feedback
The SWMCB hopes to continuously improve this toolkit and welcomes feedback on all toolkit materials. Please send feedback on
the toolkit to Info@RethinkRecycling.com. 

Questions
For questions, comments, or suggestions on the toolkit, please contact:

Yeamah Brewer, SWMCB
651-222-7227
info@rethinkrecycling.com

Communications Resources
Residential Recycling Terminology Guidelines (92 KB)

Recycling Tips & Myths (84.5 KB)

Recycling Facts (83 KB)

Global Warming (79 KB)

Magazines & Catalogs (81.5 KB)

Newspapers & Inserts (80 KB)

Paper Recycling Process (80 KB)

Paper Recycling Tips (81.5 KB)

Recycling Beyond the Kitchen (90 KB)

Cartons Recycling (84.5 KB)

http://www.swmcb.org/
http://www.swmcb.org/tool-kits/logo
mailto:Info@RethinkRecycling.com
mailto:info@rethinkrecycling.com
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/images/toolkit_downloads/2012_residents_recycling_terminology.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_tipsmyths_2012.4.17_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_recyclingfacts_2012.4_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_article_globalwarming_2012.4.19_0_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_article_magazinescatalogs_2012.4.19_0_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_article_newspaperinserts_2012.4.19_1_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_article_paperrecyclingprocess_2012.4.19_0_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_article_paperrecyclingtips_2012.4.19_0_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_article_beyondkitchen_2012.4.18_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_cartonsrecycling_2012.4.20_0.doc


© 2013. All rights reserved.

Social Media Posts (92.5 KB)

How & What to Recycle (97 KB)

Benefits of Recycling (81 KB)

New Materials Accepted, Spring 2012 (77 KB)

Residential Recycling Print Templates
Templates are provided in PDF and InDesign formats.

Logos
View Resource »

Residential Recycling Images

http://www.swmcb.org/current-campaigns/rethink-recycling-campaign/rethink-recycling-campaign-tool-kit/templates
http://www.swmcb.org/current-campaigns/rethink-recycling-campaign/rethink-recycling-campaign-tool-kit/logos
http://www.swmcb.org/current-campaigns/rethink-recycling-campaign/rethink-recycling-campaign-tool-kit/images
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_socialmediaposts_2012.4.19_0_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_article_howandwhattorecycle_2012.4.18_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_article_benefits_2012.4.17_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/sites/default/files/residential_recycling_article_materialsupdate_2012.4.10_0_0.doc
http://www.swmcb.org/current-campaigns/rethink-recycling-campaign/rethink-recycling-campaign-tool-kit/templates
http://www.swmcb.org/RRmaterials
http://www.swmcb.org/RRmaterials
http://www.swmcb.org/current-campaigns/rethink-recycling-campaign/rethink-recycling-campaign-tool-kit/images


  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7I 

Agenda Date: 06-05-13 

 
 
 

Agenda Item:  Potential City Council Comments Regarding … 
Minnehaha Creek Watershed District Draft Minor Plan Amendment 
Met Council Draft 2014-2015 Transportation Improvement Program 

 
Summary: The city recently received notifications for the following issues: 
 

1. The Minnehaha Creek Watershed District is seeking comments from cities regarding their Draft Minor Plan 
Amendment to amend the Capital Improvement section of its Comprehensive Water Resource Management Plan. 
A copy of the email requesting city input is attached.  
 

2. The Met Council is seeking comments from cities regarding the draft of the Twin Cities Draft 2014-2015 
Transportation Improvement Program. A copy of the email requesting city input is attached. 

 
If the city council may wishes to weigh in on these topics, the attached memo format needs to be fleshed out. 
 
Council Action: None required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the council authorizes ___________ to draft and send a memo from the Greenwood City Council to the 
Minnehaha Creek Watershed District regarding the Draft Minor Plan Amendment to amend the Capital 
Improvement section of its Comprehensive Water Resource Management Plan. 
 

2. I move the council authorizes ___________ to draft and send a memo from the Greenwood City Council to the 
Met Council regarding the draft of the Twin Cities Draft 2014-2015 Transportation Improvement Program. 

 
3. Do nothing or other motions ??? 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 9A-E 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Council Reports 
 
Summary: This is an opportunity for each council member to present updates and get input regarding various council 
assignments and projects. Related documents may be attached to this cover sheet. 
 
Council Action: None required.  

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: FYI 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: FYI Items in Council Packet 
  
Summary: The attached items are included in the council packet for your information (FYI) only. FYI items typically 
include planning commission minutes, ViBES (Violations Bureau Electronic System) report of traffic citations processed by 
Hennepin County District Court, monthly report of activity on the Greenwood website, and other items of interest to the 
council. 
  
Council Action: No council action is needed for FYI items. 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, April 17, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 1 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman Lucking called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Chairman Lucking and Commission members John Beal, Kristi Conrad, 

and Douglas Reeder 
 
Absent: Commissioner David Paeper 
 
Others Present: Council Liaison Bill Cook, City Attorney Kelly and Zoning Administrator 

Gus Karpas. 
 
2. OATH OF OFFICE – City Attorney Kelly Administered the Oath of Office to 
Commissioner Kristi Conrad and Chairman Patrick Lucking. 

 
3. APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Commissioner Beal moved to accept the agenda for tonight’s meeting.  Commissioner Lucking 
seconded the motion. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
4. MINUTES OF January 16, 2013. 
 
Commissioner Conrad moved to approve the minutes of January 16, 2013 as presented. 
Commissioner Lucking seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-0-1.  Commissioner Beal 
abstained. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Jim Pastor, 5100 Greenwood Circle, variance requests to construct a new single family home 
on a non-conforming foundation which encroaches into the minimum required exterior east side, 
west side and rear yard  setbacks and exceeds the maximum permitted impervious surface.  The 
home would also exceed the maximum permitted structure volume.   
 
The applicant also proposes to replace the roof on an existing non-conforming detached 
accessory structure within the required rear and west side yard setbacks. 
 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum exterior east side yard setback of 
thirty feet.  The applicant proposes an exterior east side yard setback of eight feet for the 
proposed single family home.  The proposal requires a variance of twenty-two feet of the exterior 
east side yard setback. 
 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum west side yard setback of fifteen 
feet.  The applicant proposes a west side yard setback of eight feet, two inches for the proposed 
single family home.  The proposal requires a variance of six foot, ten inches of the west side yard 
setback. 
 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum rear yard setback of thirty-five feet.  
The applicant proposes a rear yard setback of twenty-four feet for the proposed single family 
home.  The proposal requires a variance of eleven feet of the rear yard setback. 
 
Section 1176.04(3)(3) permits a maximum permitted impervious surface area of 30%.  The 
applicant is proposing and impervious surface area of 47.3% and is seeking a variance to exceed 
the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 17.3%. 
 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, April 17, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 2 

Section 1140.18(3) regulates the maximum permitted above grade structure volume based on lot 
area.  Based on the applicant’s lot area, the permitted above grade structure volume for the 
property is 32,250 cubic feet.  The applicant proposed a structure volume of 37,964 cubic feet.  
The applicant is seeking a variance to exceed the maximum permitted above grade structure 
volume by 5,714 cubic feet. 

Chairman Lucking summarized the request and opened the public hearing. 
 
Jim Pastor said the plan was to square of the back of the home, construct an addition to the front 
of the home and wrap a deck around the front and side portions of the home.  He said the flat roof 
on the north side garage would be altered to a pitched roof to match the home and railings would 
be added to the garage on the south side to match the deck. 
 
Commissioner Beal noted both garages were located on the property lines and said the city didn’t 
have the authority to approve an encroachment onto adjacent properties even if it were just a roof 
overhang.  He said the applicant would need to alter the roof design on the north garage or obtain 
an easement from the neighbor. 
 
Brian Malo, 5070 Greenwood Circle asked about the lower garage and if any additional overhang 
would be counted as impervious surface.  Mr. Pastor said no additional overhang would be 
added. 
 
Chairman Lucking asked the applicant how important the deck was to his overall plan for the 
property.  Mr. Pastor said the house is very narrow and he thought the deck would give the house 
some character and width while taking advantage of the lake.  Lucking asked if that could be 
accomplished with a deck the width of the house on just the front portion, since if feels it may be 
hard to convince the Council a practical difficulty exists for the deck as it is currently proposed.  
Mr. Pastor felt the deck would be too small. 
 
City Attorney Kelly noted that Greenwood Circle cut across the lot on the southeast corner which 
adds impervious surface to the calculation.  He said the principle reason for the corner lot setback 
was for visibility considerations.  He feels the nature of this road as a curve and its grade may not 
warrant such a strict standard.  Kelly said the existing footprint is grandfathered.  He said the 
deck may be reasonable use, not impact the character of the neighborhood and a good idea to 
take advantage of a lake view, but it’s a matter to what degree the city is willing to approve and 
Chairman Lucking’s question as to whether limiting the deck to the front of the house is a fair 
question. 
 
Commissioner Beal expressed concern about the increase in height, noting the applicant is 
permitted the height he currently has.  Commissioner Conrad said the homes along the north side 
of Greenwood Circle are rather large and doesn’t feel the proposed height will impact the 
adjacent homes.  Beal asked about the height of the home.  Chairman Lucking said the height is 
about twenty-two feet. 
 
The Commission discussed the proposed deck projections into the required west side setback.  It 
was noted only a garage exists on that lot now and that the property was legally attached to the 
lot across the street even though it has a separate property id number.  There is a question as to 
whether this lot could be sold separately.  Commissioner Conrad said she would never support a 
variance granted for aesthetics but if there would never be a structure on the west lot, she 
wouldn’t have the same concern she normally would. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the current driveway access and the challenges it poses.  
There may be some grade alterations necessary that exceed the ordinance requirements.  Mr. 
Pastor is not sure exactly what they are going to do at this time. 
 
Hearing no further public comment, the public hearing was closed. 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, April 17, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 3 

 
Council Liaison Cook said he would like to hear the comments of the Commission on the 
impervious surface request.  City Attorney Kelly commented that the home is very nominal as it 
exists.  Zoning Coordinator Karpas said that there could be some steps through the reduction of 
the deck to reduce the impervious surface area, but noted the lot is very small. 
 
Commissioner Beal discussed the proposed east side encroachment noting the actual structure is 
located a long way from the paved edge of the road.  He said the property is small and required 
to comply with two “front” yard setbacks. 
 
City Attorney Kelly discussed the retaining wall located between the east property line and the 
edge of the road stating it serves the applicant’s property and there may be an issue with future 
maintenance.  Maybe some sort of agreement could be reached about maintenance through this 
process.  He said the applicant may even want to petition the city to vacate that portion of 
property which would give him ownership of the wall.  In addition it would increase his lot area 
decreasing his variance request in terms of east side yard setback and impervious surface area. 
 
Chairman Lucking discussed the options available to the applicant since it appeared the 
application would not receive a positive recommendation from the Commission.  City Attorney 
Kelly said there will be a struggle on exactly what portions of the request this body has the 
authority to approve.  Commissioner Conrad said the Commission is tied to meeting a practical 
difficulty standard. 
 
Commissioner Reeder feels the applicant has done a good job with what he’s got given what he 
had to work with.  Chairman Lucking commented he doesn’t recall ever approving a variance 
request where an existing encroachment was permitted to be increased into a required yard. 
 
The Commission discussed the options for potentially reconfiguring the garages.  City Attorney 
Kelly said removing one of the curb cuts may be beneficial in terms of aesthetics.  Chairman 
Lucking said relocating the garages may impact the floor plan of the home. 
 
Chairman Lucking suggested the applicant continue his request to the May meeting.  City 
Attorney Kelly said the applicant may look at removing the south garage as a way of reducing 
impervious surface area and developing a way to redirect runoff from the deck to a central point.  
Commissioner Beal suggest it would be wise to investigate vacating the city property along 
Greenwood Circle. 
 
Commissioner Reeder felt the Planning Commission should give the applicant clearer direction 
on what they expected for the impervious surface percentage.  Council Liaison Cook cautioned 
about giving too much direction to an applicant since their advice may not be shared by the City 
Council who is the body that makes the final decision. 
 
Mr. Pastor said he’s very frustrated since he thought he had a nice plan for this property and felt it 
would receive a more positive response.  City Attorney Kelly feels a solution can be crafted. 
 
Council Liaison Cook also cautioned about making the right of way too narrow. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Reeder that the request be continued to the May meeting to permit the 
applicant to consider the comments of the Planning Commission and amend the plan if he felt it 
necessary.  Beal seconded the motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discuss - ORDINANCE NO. 216 – Amendment of Greenwood Zoning Ordinance Code, Chapter 
11, Regarding Rules for Uses in Residential Districts and Amendments of Definitions within Said 
Chapter. 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, April 17, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 4 

 
Zoning Coordinator presented the ordinance noting a portion of the ordinance was creating 
definitions to address issues to be included in the Home Occupation ordinance currently under 
review by the City Council and the other portion was amending the permitted and conditional 
uses in the residential districts to bring them into compliance with state statutes. 
 
Commissioner Beal discussed the establishment of a minimum lease period and the notion that 
those who rent for less than a thirty day period are less desirables and annoying and somehow 
those who rent longer are considered better. 
 
City Attorney Kelly said a property owner has an inherent right to rent their property, but the 
length of time is a grey area and there is a concern about absentee and reckless landlords 
renting their properties on a nightly basis.  He said this issue was raised due to an advertised 
vacation rental in the city. 
 
Council Liaison Cook feels the process may take more steps to protect resident’s rights to rent 
their property.  He said those most concerned about rental properties are seeking leases between 
twelve and eighteen months. 
 
Zoning Coordinator Karpas said this ordinance has been scheduled for a public hearing at the 
Commission’s special meeting on April 25th.  He asked if there were any proposed changes at 
this time. 
 
The Commission had no changes and directed staff to proceed with the public hearing. 
 
 
7. LIAISON REPORT 

 
Council Liaison Cook informed the Commission that the Council is currently going through the 
Board of Review process and that a number of residents are appealing their valuations, but 
overall taxes have went down, noting that the trend is indicating valuations are most likely going 
up next year.  He said the Council is currently reviewing a Home Occupation ordinance.  The 
Council heard a presentation from its Auditors and no deficiencies were found.  He said the 
Council has been working on a joint agreement with the City of Excelsior for water service which 
has been going back and forth and will be settled in the near future, it has yet to been determined 
if a final agreement can be reached.  Finally, the Council is discussing the creation of a Lake 
Improvement District which would have taxing authority to fund milfoil removal in St. Alban’s Bay. 
 
8. ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beal to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Conrad seconded the 
motion.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:17 p.m. 
 
Respectively Submitted 
Gus Karpas - Zoning Administrator 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

 
 
 
Date:  May 2, 2013 
 
To: Minnehaha Creek Watershed District 

Becky Houdek, MCWD Planner 
bhoudek@minnehahacreek.org 

 
From: Greenwood City Council 
 
Re: Comments Regarding MCWD Board Policy for Distribution of Pollutant Reduction Credit from 

District Projects for the Purpose of TMDL Reporting 
 
At our 05-01-13 meeting the Greenwood city council reviewed and discussed the draft of the MCWD Board 
policy for the distribution of pollutant reduction credit from MCWD projects for the purpose of TMDL 
reporting. We STRONGLY support the TMDL distribution policy as proposed. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this topic. If you have any questions regarding our comments, 
please contact Mayor Deb Kind, 952.401.9181, dkind100@gmail.com.  
	  



















11
4 

   L
ow

er
 L

ak
e 

So
ut

h 
(G

al
e I

sla
nd

) (
D

N
R 

ID
: 2

7-
01

33
-0

2)
   

   
   

 
   Im

pa
ir

m
en

ts
  

 
 

 
 

A
qu

at
ic

 In
va

siv
e 

Sp
ec

ie
s 

A
qu

at
ic

 C
on

su
m

pt
io

n:
 

 
 

 
Eu

ra
si

an
 w

at
er

m
ilf

oi
l, 

Ze
br

a 
M

us
se

ls
 

M
er

cu
ry

 in
 fi

sh
 ti

ss
ue

  
 

 
 

Fl
ow

er
in

g 
R

us
h 

 Fi
sh

er
y 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.d
nr

.st
at

e.
m

n.
us

/la
ke

fin
d/

sh
ow

re
po

rt.
ht

m
l?

do
w

nu
m

=2
70

13
30

0 
 Te

n 
Y

ea
r H

ist
or

ic
 L

ak
e 

G
ra

de
s B

as
ed

 o
n 

M
ay

 –
 S

ep
te

m
be

r A
ve

ra
ge

s 
 

 
20

03
 

20
04

 
20

05
 

20
06

 
20

07
 

20
08

 
20

09
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
Lo

w
er

 L
ak

e 
So

ut
h 

A
 

A
 

A-
 

B+
 

B+
 

A
 

A
 

A
 

A-
 

A
 

 20
12

 M
PC

A
 E

co
re

gi
on

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 S
ta

te
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

  
  N

or
th

 C
en

tra
l H

ar
dw

oo
d 

Fo
re

st
 E

co
re

gi
on

 
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

 
La

ke
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 
(2

5th
 -7

5th
 p

er
ce

nt
ile

) 

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
St

at
e 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Lo

w
er

 L
ak

e 
So

ut
h 

(J
un

e-
Se

pt
) 

D
ee

p 
La

ke
s 

M
ea

ns
 

TS
I S

co
re

 
Se

cc
hi

 D
ep

th
 (m

) 
1.

5 
- 3

.2
  

> 
1.

4 
5.

59
 

35
 

C
hl

or
op

hy
ll-

a 
(µ

g/
L)

 
5 

- 2
2 

 
< 

14
 

2.
13

 
38

 
To

ta
l P

ho
sp

ho
ru

s (
µg

/L
) 

23
 - 

50
  

< 
40

 
13

.2
5 

41
 

To
ta

l T
SI

 S
co

re
 

 
38

 

G
en

er
al

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s 

M
C

W
D

 S
ite

 ID
: L

G
I0

1 
Sa

m
pl

in
g 

G
PS

 C
oo

rd
in

at
es

: N
 4

4.
91

49
, W

 -9
3.

56
67

 
To

w
n/

C
ity

: G
re

en
w

oo
d/

Ex
ce

ls
io

r 
C

ou
nt

y:
 H

en
ne

pi
n 

Ec
or

eg
io

n:
 N

or
th

 C
en

tra
l H

ar
dw

oo
d 

Fo
re

st
 

Pu
bl

ic
 A

cc
es

s:
 Y

es
 

 Ph
ys

ic
al

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s 

Su
rf

ac
e 

A
re

a:
 2

68
.2

 a
cr

es
 

Li
tto

ra
l A

re
a:

 7
7 

ac
re

s 
 

M
ax

. D
ep

th
: 8

7 
ft 

M
ea

n 
D

ep
th

: 3
6 

ft 
D

ep
th

 C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n:
 D

ee
p 

 
%

 L
itt

or
al

 A
re

a:
 2

8.
76

 %
 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 S

iz
e:

 3
87

 a
cr

es
  

W
at

er
sh

ed
 to

 L
ak

e 
A

re
a 

R
at

io
: 1

.4
:1

 
      Fi

gu
re

 X
X

. L
ow

er
 L

ak
e 

So
ut

h,
 C

iti
es

 o
f G

re
en

w
oo

d 
an

d 
To

nk
a 

B
ay

 



11
5 

       20
12

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

 
 

Pa
ra

m
et

er
 

M
ea

n 
M

in
 

M
ax

 
La

ke
 G

ra
de

 
M

on
th

s 
M

ay
 - 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
Se

cc
hi

 D
ep

th
 (m

) 
5.

47
 

3.
45

 
7.

5 
A

 
C

hl
or

op
hy

ll-
a 

(µ
g/

L)
 

2.
50

 
1 

4 
A

 
To

ta
l P

ho
sp

ho
ru

s (
µg

/L
) 

13
.1

0 
10

 
16

 
A

 

 
O

ve
ra

ll 
G

ra
de

 
A

 
              

20
12

 M
PC

A
 W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

St
at

e S
ta

nd
ar

ds
  

 
Se

cc
hi

 D
ep

th
:   

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

C
hl

or
op

hy
ll-

a:
  

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

To
ta

l P
ho

sp
ho

ru
s:

  
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 



11
6 

  20
12

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
D

at
a 

 

 

   
   

   
   

  
 

     

0 0.
5 

1 1.
5 

2 2.
5 

3 3.
5 

4 4.
5 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

4/
2 

5/
2 

6/
2 

7/
2 

8/
2 

9/
2 

Chl-a (µg/L) 

Secchi Depth (m) 

Se
cc

hi
 (m

) 
Ch

l A
 

0 5 10
 

15
 

20
 

25
 

30
 

Surface Phosphorus (µg/L) 

Su
rf

ac
e 

TP
 (µ

g/
L)

 
Su

rf
ac

e 
SR

P 
(µ

g/
L)

 

0 

10
0 

20
0 

30
0 

40
0 

50
0 

60
0 

Bottom Phosphorus (µg/L) 

Bo
tt

om
 T

P 
(µ

g/
L)

 
Bo

tt
om

 S
RP

 (µ
g/

L)
 



11
7 

  A
nn

ua
l M

ea
n 

La
ke

 D
at

a 
Ba

se
d 

on
 J

un
e-

Se
pt

em
be

r A
ve

ra
ge

s 

 

 

 
 

 
 Tr

op
hi

c 
St

at
e I

nd
ex

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e A
ve

ra
ge

 o
f t

he
 T

hr
ee

 P
ar

am
et

er
s A

bo
ve

 

 

* 
In

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

as
 in

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 d

at
a 

to
 c

al
cu

la
te

 a
 m

ea
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 

Mean Secchi Depth 
(m) 

0 5 10
 

15
 

20
 

Mean Chl-a  (µg/L) 

0 50
 

10
0 

15
0 

 Mean Surface TP 
(µg/L) 

0 20
 

40
 

60
 

80
 

Trophic State 
Index 

* 
 *

  *
  *

  *
  *

  *
  *

  *
  *

 

* 
 *

  *
  *

   
* 

 *
  *

  *
  *

  *
  *

  *
  *

  *
 

 

* 
 *

  *
  *

  *
  *

  *
  *

  *
  *

 

 

* 
 *

  *
  *

  *
  *

  *
  *

  *
  *

 

 



13
8 

  St
. A

lb
an

s B
ay

 (D
N

R 
ID

: 2
7-

01
33

-0
4)

  

   
   

 

 Im
pa

ir
m

en
ts

  
 

 
 

 
A

qu
at

ic
 In

va
siv

e 
Sp

ec
ie

s 
A

qu
at

ic
 C

on
su

m
pt

io
n:

 
 

 
 

Eu
ra

si
an

 w
at

er
m

ilf
oi

l, 
Ze

br
a 

M
us

se
ls

 
M

er
cu

ry
 in

 fi
sh

 ti
ss

ue
  

 
 

 
Fl

ow
er

in
g 

R
us

h 
 Fi

sh
er

y 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.d

nr
.st

at
e.

m
n.

us
/la

ke
fin

d/
sh

ow
re

po
rt.

ht
m

l?
do

w
nu

m
=2

70
13

30
0 

 Te
n 

Y
ea

r H
ist

or
ic

 L
ak

e 
D

at
a 

Ba
se

d 
on

 M
ay

 –
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
A

ve
ra

ge
s 

  
20

03
 

20
04

 
20

05
 

20
06

 
20

07
 

20
08

 
20

09
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

20
12

 
St

. A
lb

an
s B

ay
 

A
 

A
 

A
 

B
+ 

B
 

A
 

A
 

A
 

A
- 

A
 

 20
12

 M
PC

A
 E

co
re

gi
on

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 S
ta

te
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

  
 N

or
th

 C
en

tra
l H

ar
dw

oo
d 

Fo
re

st
 E

co
re

gi
on

 
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

 
La

ke
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 
(2

5th
 -7

5th
 p

er
ce

nt
ile

) 

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
St

at
e 

St
an

da
rd

s 
St

. A
lb

an
s B

ay
 

(J
un

e-
Se

pt
) 

D
ee

p 
La

ke
s 

M
ea

ns
 

TS
I S

co
re

 
Se

cc
hi

 D
ep

th
 (m

) 
1.

5 
- 3

.2
  

> 
1.

4 
3.

44
 

42
 

C
hl

or
op

hy
ll-

a 
(µ

g/
L)

 
5 

- 2
2 

 
< 

14
 

3.
88

 
44

 
To

ta
l P

ho
sp

ho
ru

s (
µg

/L
) 

23
 - 

50
  

< 
40

 
19

.1
3 

47
 

To
ta

l T
SI

 S
co

re
 

 
44

 

G
en

er
al

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s 

M
C

W
D

 S
ite

 ID
: L

A
L0

1 
Sa

m
pl

in
g 

G
PS

 C
oo

rd
in

at
es

: N
 4

4.
90

86
, W

 -9
3.

54
89

 
To

w
n/

C
ity

: G
re

en
w

oo
d/

Ex
ce

ls
io

r 
C

ou
nt

y:
 H

en
ne

pi
n 

Ec
or

eg
io

n:
 N

or
th

 C
en

tra
l H

ar
dw

oo
d 

Fo
re

st
 

Pu
bl

ic
 A

cc
es

s:
 Y

es
 (L

ak
e 

M
in

ne
to

nk
a)

 
 Ph

ys
ic

al
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

ist
ic

s 
Su

rf
ac

e 
A

re
a:

 1
64

 a
cr

es
 

Li
tto

ra
l A

re
a:

 N
/A

 
 

 
M

ax
. D

ep
th

: 4
4 

ft 
M

ea
n 

D
ep

th
: N

/A
 

D
ep

th
 C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n:

 D
ee

p 
 

%
 L

itt
or

al
 A

re
a:

 N
/A

 
W

at
er

sh
ed

 A
re

a:
 N

/A
 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 to

 L
ak

e 
A

re
a 

R
at

io
: N

/A
 

       Fi
gu

re
 X

X
. S

t. 
A

lb
an

s B
ay

, C
iti

es
 o

f E
xc

el
si

or
 a

nd
 

G
re

en
w

oo
d 



13
9 

        20
12

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

 
 

Pa
ra

m
et

er
 

M
ea

n 
M

in
 

M
ax

 
La

ke
 G

ra
de

 
M

on
th

s 
 M

ay
 - 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
Se

cc
hi

 D
ep

th
 (m

) 
3.

46
 

1.
95

 
5.

45
 

A
 

C
hl

or
op

hy
ll-

a 
(µ

g/
L)

 
3.

70
 

1 
7.

5 
A

 
To

ta
l P

ho
sp

ho
ru

s (
µg

/L
) 

20
.5

0 
16

 
29

 
A

 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

G
ra

de
 

A
 

             

20
12

 M
PC

A
 W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

St
at

e S
ta

nd
ar

ds
  

 
Se

cc
hi

 D
ep

th
:   

M
ee

ts
 th

e 
St

an
da

rd
 

C
hl

or
op

hy
ll-

a:
  

M
ee

ts
 th

e 
St

an
da

rd
 

To
ta

l P
ho

sp
ho

ru
s:

  
M

ee
ts

 th
e 

St
an

da
rd

 



14
0 

  20
12

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
D

at
a 

 

   
   

   
   

  
 

     

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 

4/
2 

5/
2 

6/
2 

7/
2 

8/
2 

9/
2 

Chl-a (µg/L) 

Secchi Depth (m) 

Se
cc

hi
 (m

) 
Ch

l A
 

0 5 10
 

15
 

20
 

25
 

30
 

Surface Phosphorus (µg/L) 

Su
rf

ac
e 

TP
 (µ

g/
L)

 
Su

rf
ac

e 
SR

P 
(µ

g/
L)

 

0 40
 

80
 

12
0 

16
0 

20
0 

24
0 

28
0 

Bottom Phosphorus (µg/L) 
Bo

tt
om

 T
P 

(µ
g/

L)
 

Bo
tt

om
 S

RP
 (µ

g/
L)

 



14
1 

  A
nn

ua
l M

ea
ns

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
Ju

ne
-S

ep
te

m
be

r A
ve

ra
ge

s 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Tr
op

hi
c 

St
at

e I
nd

ex
 B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e A

ve
ra

ge
 o

f t
he

 T
hr

ee
 P

ar
am

et
er

s A
bo

ve
 

 

 

0 1 2 3 4 5 

Mean Secchi Depth 
(m) 

0 5 10
 

15
 

20
 

Mean Chl-a  (µg/L) 

0 20
 

40
 

60
 

80
 

10
0 

 Mean Surface TP 
(µg/L) 

0 20
 

40
 

60
 

80
 

Trophic  State 
Index 

 
St

an
da

rd
: <

 4
0 

(µ
g/

L)
 





GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, May 15, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 1 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman Lucking called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Chairman Lucking and Commission members John Beal, Kristi Conrad, 

David Paeper and Douglas Reeder 
 
Absent: None 
 
Others Present: Council Liaison Bill Cook, City Attorney Kelly and Zoning Administrator 

Gus Karpas. 
 
2. APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Commissioner Beal moved to accept the agenda for tonight’s meeting.  Commissioner Paeper 
seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
3. MINUTES - April 17, 2013 
 
Commissioner Conrad moved to approve the minutes of April 17, 2013 as presented. 
Commissioner Beal seconded the motion. Motion carried 4-0-1.  Commissioner Paeper 
abstained. 
 
SPECIAL MINUTES – April 25, 2013 
 
Commissioner Reeder moved to approve the special minutes of April 25, 2013 as presented. 
Commissioner Paeper seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-0-2.  Commissioners Beal and 
Conrad abstained. 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Jim Pastor, 5100 Greenwood Circle, variance requests to construct a new single family home 
on a non-conforming foundation which encroaches into the minimum required exterior east side, 
west side and rear yard  setbacks and exceeds the maximum permitted impervious surface.   
 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum exterior east side yard setback of 
thirty feet.  The applicant proposes an exterior east side yard setback of eight feet for the 
proposed deck attached to the reconstructed single family home.  The proposal requires a 
variance of twenty-two feet of the exterior east side yard setback. 

 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum west side yard setback of fifteen 
feet.  The applicant proposes a west side yard setback of eight feet, two inches for the proposed 
deck attached to the reconstructed single family home.  The proposal requires a variance of six 
feet, ten inches of the west side yard setback. 

 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum rear yard setback of thirty-five feet.  
The applicant proposes a rear yard setback of nine feet for the proposed attached garage.  The 
proposal requires a variance of twenty-six feet of the rear yard setback. 

 
Section 1176.04(3)(3) permits a maximum permitted impervious surface area of 30%.  The 
applicant is proposing and impervious surface area of 46.5% and is seeking a variance to exceed 
the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 16.5%. 
 
Zoning Administrator Karpas summarized the request.  He said the applicants are requesting 
variances to demolish an existing non-conforming single family home down to the foundation and 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, May 15, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 2 

construct a new single family home on the existing foundation with additions onto the north and 
front of the home and the inclusion of a wrap-around deck beginning at the midpoint of the east 
face of the home and wrapping around the entire front of the home, terminating six feet onto the 
west face of the home.  The proposed alterations would encroach into minimum required east 
exterior side and west side yard setbacks, encroach into the minimum required rear yard setback, 
exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface, and exceed the maximum permitted grade 
alteration with the installation of a new driveway to access the proposed attached garage.  The 
applicant proposes to remove an existing non-conforming accessory structure located with within 
the required west side and rear yard setback on the north side of the property. 
 
Chairman Lucking noted the change from the previous plan with the removal of the existing 
detached garage and the attachment of a one stall garage to the north side of the house and 
asked the applicant if he was comfortable with the amount of space that provided.  Jim Pastor 
said he would have to be and said they also had the detached garage at the bottom of the hill to 
provide additional parking and storage.  He feels removing the garage makes the property look 
better. 
 
Rob Ruel, the applicants Draftsman introduced himself and said he could answer any questions if 
necessary. 
 
Commissioner Paeper said his concern about the project is the hardcover, noting it appears the 
applicant is trying to get too much on the lot.  Commissioner Beal agreed, wondering if the 
applicant gave any serious consideration of the suggestion for the vacation of city right-of-way to 
increase the lot size.  Chairman Lucking felt the deck was too large.  Beal agreed, saying he had 
no issue with the size of the house itself.  Mr. Pastor said the process of vacating the city property 
would take too long and the idea behind the deck was to give the house some width so it wouldn’t 
look like a double wide trailer. 
 
Chairman Lucking discussed increasing the width of the attached garage and permitting an 
increase in the north side encroachment in exchange for removal of the detached garage on the 
south side of the property.  He said it’s a matter of practicality when the property comes up for 
sale, most people would like more attached garage.  He said he is willing to give more house than 
deck.  Mr. Pastor said the encroachment on the west side is minimal and is for looks, the east 
side encroachment is for access to the deck from the front door.  Lucking said he didn’t want to 
increase the non-conformity on the west side.  Mr. Pastor noted it is currently a vacant lot and 
most likely would remain that way.  Lucking said he would prefer to remove that portion of the 
deck and add that portion of hardcover to the garage.  Commissioner Paeper said he doesn’t 
follow Lucking’s logic since it’s not the Commission’s responsibility to follow market conditions.  
 
Mr. Pastor said he would like to keep the east side deck.  Chairman Lucking said the ordinance 
permits a front stoop.  Commissioner Beal said the east side deck would be more important in 
keeping the aesthetics since it would be the most visible when people drive around the curve. 
 
Commissioner Paeper asked about the impervious surface calculation in regards to the driveway.  
Mr. Pastor said they are not known yet and cannot be calculated until they know what garage is 
approved. 
 
Chairman Lucking asked if there was anyone from the public who would like to comment on the 
request. 
 
Chris Thiss, 5090 Greenwood Circle, likes what Mr. Pastor is proposing, even the increase in the 
garage on the north side of the home.  He said he will work with Mr. Pastor on grading for access 
to his garage since they share a driveway.  He is supportive of the request. 
 
Jeff Ruegemer, 5105 Greenwood Circle, discussed the functionality of the deck on the aesthetics 
of the home.  He understands the concerns about hardcover, but said there are a lot of non-



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, May 15, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 3 

conformities in the neighborhood.  He said, even though he looks directly at it, he’s not concerned 
about the lower garage.  Commissioner Beal asked, if given choice, would you like to see the 
lower garage removed and a larger attached garage on the north side of the home.  Mr. 
Ruegemer said he really didn’t have an opinion on this request, though an attached garage 
typically makes more sense.  He said the garage is not the main issue with this property. 
 
Hearing no further comments, Chairman Lucking closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Beal said he keeps hearing the same concern, let’s keep the structure from 
looking like a double wide trailer.  He said there’s more interest in that than in forcing conformity 
with the impervious surface standards.  Commissioner Paeper agreed, but said that needs to be 
reconciled with the ordinance.  Beal said the east and south portions of the deck can prevent the 
double wide look and permit the removal of the west side deck. 
 
Commissioner Reeder likes the idea of a two stall garage and is not sure of the functionality of 
the south garage.  He’s not sure it adds much to the property.  He feels the deck on the west side 
of the property does add to the property and is necessary. 
 
Commissioner Paeper asked about obtained the city property.  Mr. Pastor said he’s not interested 
and has no intention of pursuing that option. 
 
Commission Conrad said she’s struggling.  She noted that under state statute the Commission 
must allow the garages as they stand and cannot force the applicant to “swap” them for an 
attached garage.  She’s not sure the west side deck adds anything aesthetically to the house.  
Mr. Pastor said the house would be out of character with the others along that side of the street.  
Conrad said she would like to see the impervious surface calculation as it would actually be.  She 
has not issue with the deck as proposed on the east and south sides of the home. 
 
Mr. Pastor said he doesn’t understand the resistance he feels from the Commission.  He said the 
only thing he’s trying to do is take a property that is run down and make it look better. 
 
Chairman Lucking is supportive of the request as present with the exception of the west side 
deck.  He noted the driveway would have to be a minimum of two cars wide to permit the storage 
of two vehicles off the street as required by the city code. 
 
Commissioner Beal would like to see a corrected table of the impervious surface area provided to 
the Council. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beal to recommend that the Council approve variance requests to 
construct a new single family home on a non-conforming foundation which encroaches twenty-
two (22) feet into the minimum required thirty (30) foot exterior east side yard setback, the garage 
that encroaches one (1) foot into the required fifteen (15) foot west side yard setback and twenty-
six (26) feet into the required rear yard setback.  The motion would permit a variance to exceed 
the maximum permitted impervious surface to the extent necessary to place a driveway in 
compliance with the ordinance and does not include approval of the request encroachment for the 
west side deck.  The motion is conditioned that the applicant submit a completely updated 
impervious surface table for the City Council’s review.  Reeder seconded the motion. 
 
Commissioner Paeper stated for the record he was uncomfortable with stretching the impervious 
surface as much as proposed with this request, he is also uncomfortable with giving the option to 
the applicant that he further extend the attached garage to the north, creating a greater 
encroachment that what is being proposed.  He does not believe the applicant can clearly meet 
the practical difficulty standards, but he will support the request because the property is so 
unusual. 
 
Chairman Lucking called the question.  Motion carried 5-0. 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, May 15, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 4 

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discuss – Creation of R-1C District – Amendment of Greenwood Zoning Ordinance Code, 
Chapter 11, Creating an R-1C District which would encompass the current Old Log property, 
allowing the current permitted principal, accessory and conditional uses and reestablish the 
current uses of the property (Theatre, Restaurant, Event Center) as conditional uses. 
 
Zoning Administrator presented the ordinance noting the recent adoption of Ordinance 216 
removed Theaters as a conditional use within the R-1A District.  By doing so, Theater uses, the 
most notable being the Old Log Theater, has now become a legal nonconforming use which is 
regulated by Section 1145 of the city code.  The immediate concern was the ordinance currently 
does not address Restaurants or Event Centers in the R-1A district and there currently are no 
definitions for “Theater” or “Restaurant.”  
 
Greg Frankenfield introduced himself to the Planning Commission and informed them he was 
going to close on the Old Log property in the next couple of days.  His intent is to operate the 
business essentially as it has operated for the last 50 plus years. 
 
Commissioner Conrad asked if the existing homes on the property would also be rezoned.  Mr. 
Frankenfield said the home was located on its own lot.  Karpas how many PIDs encompassed the 
entire Old Log property.  Mr. Frankenfield said two.  Karpas said the legal description for any 
newly created zoning district would be defined as those two PIDs are defined. 
 
Zoning Administrator Karpas asked if rezoning the property would be considered “spot zoning.”  
City Attorney Kelly said the property encompasses over 11 acres and rezoning the property 
would not constitute rezoning.  He said the property has always carried the R-1A standard, this 
use would expand the uses to include not only theatres as a conditional use, but also event 
centers and restaurants.  He said it could also be used as a zone for future cluster development 
without the fear of opening up the entire R-1A District to such a use. 
 
Council Liaison Cook said the challenge is to support the theatre and make it economically viable 
while being aware of potential unintended consequences.  City Attorney Kelly said it is up to the 
city on how much elasticity it wants to put in the ordinance.  He said that would be determined by 
the specific attributes of the property such as the wetland area, existing impervious surface area, 
etc. 
 
Commissioner Reeder asked if that information would be required in the ordinance.  Mr. Kelly 
said it would.  Reeder asked why the city is doing this now, especially since this property has 
operated in the same manner for years.  He asked if the property owner has to accept a rezoning.  
Mr. Kelly said the property owner is permitted to comment on the proposed rezoning, but the city 
is not denying his use by the rezoning.  He said the city is trying to work with the applicant. 
 
Commissioner Conrad asked if the theatre can currently operate given it is not allowed as any 
type of use in any of the zoning districts.  Mr. Kelly said it could, it just can’t expand. 
 
Commissioner Reeder said the theatre already operates under a conditional use permit giving the 
city control.  He doesn’t understand the need for the change.  Chairman Lucking said it’s a way to 
permit and control additional uses without allowing them in the entire city. 
 
Zoning Coordinator Karpas said the Planning Commission has a joint meeting with the City 
Council following this meeting and further discussion can be held at the meeting.  He informed 
Mr. Frankenfield that he was welcome to come to that meeting since it is a public meeting.  Mr. 
Frankenfield declined but said he is willing to work with the Planning Commission and City 
Council through this process. 
 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, May 15, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 5 

 
 
6. LIAISON REPORT 

 
Council Liaison Cook summarized the final decisions made by the Board of Review, said the 
Council adopted the Home Occupation ordinance, has begun the process of creating a “theatre 
district” with the draft R-1C ordinance and is continuing its discussion on the creation of a Lake 
Improvement District which would have taxing authority to fund milfoil removal in St. Alban’s Bay. 
 
7. ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beal to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Conrad seconded the 
motion.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 
Respectively Submitted 
Gus Karpas - Zoning Administrator 



Variance with Variance with Bulk Email
Month 2012 2013 Prior Month Prior Year List
January 2,034 3,038 280 1,004 134
February 2,911 3,252 214 341 136
March 2,516 3,936 684 1,420 137
April 2,746 4,478 542 1,732 138
May 2,682 4,229 -249 1,547 138
June 2,509 -4,229 -2,509
July 2,361 0 -2,361
August 2,574 0 -2,574
September 2,682 0 -2,682
October 2,860 0 -2,860
November 2,828 0 -2,828
December 2,758 0 -2,758

AVERAGE 2,622 3,787

POPULATION: 688
EMAIL ADDRESSES % OF POPULATION: 20.06%

0 
500 

1,000 
1,500 
2,000 
2,500 
3,000 
3,500 
4,000 
4,500 
5,000 

City	  of	  Greenwood	  
Website Total Hits 

2012 

2013 



Content Tools Data Center Site Management Security

Welcome, Debra Kind | Hide QuickTips | Help | Logout

Live Site

Get Report

Site Statistics
Use this reporting tool to see your site statistics for your public site for this month or the
previous month. Statistics for the Administration (or "admin") side of your site are not
included in this report. Additionally, visits you make to your own site while administering it
are not included in these statistics. All data collected before the previous month has been
purged from our system and is not available for use; therefore, we recommend printing
this report each month for your records.

The first report - Page Views by Section - shows total page views for each section. The
second report - Unique Visitors by Section - shows the total page views for each section
without the return visitors (showing only views from unique IP addresses). For example, if
you browse to a page today, and then browse to that same page tomorrow, your viewing
of that page would only be counted once in the unique (second) report. 

Each report lists sections in page view order (highest number of page views first) and only
lists sections that have had traffic within the reporting period. It does not list those
sections without traffic.

Begin Date 4/15/2013

End Date 5/15/2013

Report Name Page Views (Default)

Page Views by Section

Section Page Views Percent of Total
Default Home Page 1739 41.12%

Agendas, Packets & Minutes 431 10.19%

City Departments 125 2.96%

Planning Commission 113 2.67%

Spring Clean-Up Day 112 2.65%

Budget & Finances 105 2.48%

Code Book 104 2.46%

Assessments & Taxes 103 2.44%

Mayor & City Council 92 2.18%

Watercraft Spaces 86 2.03%

Forms & Permits 84 1.99%

Garbage & Recycling 81 1.92%

Comprehensive Plan & Maps 76 1.8%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 74 1.75%

Welcome to Greenwood 72 1.7%

Lake Minnetonka 67 1.58%

RFPs & Bids 64 1.51%

Xcel Project Update! 62 1.47%

Photo Gallery 56 1.32%

Search Results 53 1.25%

What's New? 50 1.18%

Links 43 1.02%

Email List 41 0.97%

Meetings on TV 40 0.95%

Meetings 37 0.87%

Elections 36 0.85%

Old Log Community Events 35 0.83%

Well Water 35 0.83%

Milfoil Project 29 0.69%

The reports offered in
your Site Statistics tool
only track activity on
the public side of your
site.

In each report, a section
named "Default" and a
section named "Home"
may appear.

A page view gets
attributed to "Default"
when a visitor to your
site types your URL into
his or her Web browser. 
In most cases, the
"Default" section is your
Home Page.

A page view gets
attributed to "Home"
each time a visitor clicks
the "Home" button on
your Web site.

In the Page View
(Default) report, only
sections with Web traffic
are reported and they
are listed in page view
order.

In the Page View by
Section report, sections
are listed in the order
they appear in the
navigation menu and
are reported regardless
of their traffic level.

In the Referrers report,
it is important to
remember that your
own site acts like a
referrer.  So, don't be
surprised if you see your
own Web address(es)
listed -- this tracks the
number of times people
went from one part of
your site to another.

Quick Tips

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=ContentTools
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=DataCenter
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Security
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=4%2F15%2F2013&EndDate=5%2F15%2F2013&report=0
http://help.avenet.net/
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Login&action=logout
http://www.greenwoodmn.com/?persistdesign=none
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8F3A3A9D-5458-4CB6-BB1F-AC94BB9B09DF%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B030CFE4C-5016-4145-982B-BC20CF1CE9B0%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B05D0F828-E762-44A3-BC47-B094E012C13F%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC4ED0441-B19F-4C17-8FAB-B27178681446%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41336A06-DF03-426F-BAC8-B478696E7ABE%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B937BBE21-87E7-4815-95EF-9E4DBD883B56%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFF4DABAE-9793-4C75-9595-89E365126209%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B08153459-A93B-48DE-A049-7A47AB3B7C7D%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC446C0E6-C85B-4D6B-9F2A-45390CDE8A69%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF7C1F295-9D1A-47F1-B520-906AEA4C1EF7%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEC7D78ED-9B90-469C-87DA-F45E8296634D%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA06C3108-5700-4A55-A324-1E2C07C9DC78%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE8F16C03-E9EC-40F7-A931-F5A45B19576E%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE04A1A51-136D-44C1-BD41-8FC4E61A774B%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB2F86E65-BD20-40B7-8A26-1B4DC4FF837A%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEEFCEF1D-6773-4295-986F-BA6BDB3215AC%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5AF5BE04-E22D-498B-8DF0-E4E97E512089%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B6428E068-96A6-40C7-9082-13636C643E44%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B09C69529-46DA-45C3-9D5A-F642FC7ACBC9%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86561FCE-AB6E-4655-9D85-28D89FDF4185%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B45BFFFAD-A74F-4A5C-881D-1DDEB689390B%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF458B3B5-588F-49DF-ACE1-F64600152C67%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B12A653D6-4378-49A7-A3FC-97A7073E27C9%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5FD2DB20-C5E6-4466-BB1F-5137A3A383FA%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB4737361-6BA3-43DC-893C-D8AE06A935AA%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8A0FD9DB-EF26-4B80-AB4F-C79C6F905931%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=4%2F15%2F2013&EndDate=5%2F15%2F2013&report=0#


Generate Download File (.csv) for the current report: Generate and Download

Milfoil Project 29 0.69%

Events 27 0.64%

Public Safety 26 0.61%

Health & Safety 26 0.61%

Southshore Center 25 0.59%

Animal Services 23 0.54%

Community Surveys 22 0.52%

Planning & Zoning Workshop 14 0.33%

Crime Alert! 11 0.26%

Unsubscribe 10 0.24%

TOTAL 4229 100%

Unique IPs by Section

Section Unique IPs Percent of Total IPs
Default Home Page 481 33.17%

Agendas, Packets & Minutes 122 8.41%

City Departments 68 4.69%

Spring Clean-Up Day 66 4.55%

Mayor & City Council 47 3.24%

Code Book 42 2.9%

Garbage & Recycling 40 2.76%

Planning Commission 37 2.55%

Watercraft Spaces 37 2.55%

Welcome to Greenwood 37 2.55%

Forms & Permits 36 2.48%

What's New? 34 2.34%

Xcel Project Update! 33 2.28%

Photo Gallery 29 2%

Assessments & Taxes 27 1.86%

Comprehensive Plan & Maps 25 1.72%

Lake Minnetonka 23 1.59%

Meetings 21 1.45%

Links 21 1.45%

RFPs & Bids 19 1.31%

Search Results 19 1.31%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 17 1.17%

Old Log Community Events 17 1.17%

Budget & Finances 16 1.1%

Email List 16 1.1%

Milfoil Project 14 0.97%

Southshore Center 13 0.9%

Public Safety 12 0.83%

Animal Services 12 0.83%

Elections 12 0.83%

Well Water 11 0.76%

Community Surveys 10 0.69%

Meetings on TV 10 0.69%

Health & Safety 8 0.55%

Events 7 0.48%

Unsubscribe 5 0.34%

Crime Alert! 3 0.21%

Planning & Zoning Workshop 3 0.21%

TOTAL 1450 100%

Done

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B81865F8A-E58F-4546-80DA-616E969899AF%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B2EE6F67F-9BE4-4076-8A33-F589B91B72C4%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7F9AEDE7-125C-44E5-9A1F-3C7A93195E8B%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE4E6E072-F7DA-4CB1-A638-8915989F8078%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE2CCCFEF-5547-4416-81A6-0ACBB34571E6%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5EFC3CE3-C0E6-4AFE-BC8B-FD662DC0B6DE%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA7A43D63-87B3-4E27-B5AB-41E48DBE488A%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7D523E15-7556-4375-B814-673BCF885086%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA8FAE50E-D745-414D-8707-F9F9AAD99E95%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2013&EndDate=5/15/2013&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement


 

 

 
 

 
 

May 20, 2013 
 
 
Minnehaha Creek Watershed District 
Attn:  Becky Houdek 
18202 Minnetonka Blvd. 
Deephaven, MN, 55391 
 
RE: Spring 2013 Phosphorus Reduction Totals for the Municipalities of Deephaven, Greenwood, and 

Woodland 
 
Ms. Houdek: 
 
We have completed our review of the results of the spring 2013 street sweepings analysis for Total Phosphorus 
(TP) removal.  The street sweepings were collected from the individual communities and weighed.  Then using 
an average TP concentration for springs of 2011 - 2013 (as determined by the University of Minnesota Research 
Analytical Laboratory) the total pounds of TP removed were calculated. The results are tabulated below.  
 
 

MUNICIPALITY 
AVERAGE TP 

CONCENTRATION 
(mg/kg) 

SWEEPINGS 
COLLECTED 

(Tons) 

POUNDS TP  
REMOVED  

        

Deephaven 262.66 252.00 132.38 

    
Greenwood 259.18 51.00 26.44 

        

Woodland 312.37 39.00 24.36 

 
 

If you have any questions regarding the sampling method or the analysis procedure please give me a 
call to discuss. 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
BOLTON & MENK, INC. 
 

 
Robert E. Bean, Jr., P.E. 
 
CC: David Martini, P.E., Bolton & Menk, Inc. 








	2013 06-05 Council Packet
	2013 06-05 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	2013 05-01 Minutes R1
	2013 05-15 GW Joint Meeting Minutes
	APRIL CASH SUMMARY REPORT
	MAY PAYABLES CHECK REGISTER
	MAY PAYABLES FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL
	JUNE PAYROLL CHECK REGISTER
	Ord 219 Minimum Rental Lease
	- MEMO City Engineer
	Bid Abstract 5-29-13
	106045 Bid Abstract-Proposal
	Watermain Project Timeline.xlsx
	2013 04-25 EX-GW Service Agreement
	2013 04-29 EX-GW Expansion Agreement
	- MEMO Public Hearing Showcase
	- MEMO Public Hearing Liquor License
	06-5-13 PHN Liqour License R1
	- MEMO Variance Research
	Greenwood Variance Spreadsheet Updated 05-28-13.xlsx
	- Memo Denali - Showcase Event - June 2013
	2013 05-22 Showcase Event Application
	2013 05-23 SLMPD Letter
	Res 15-13 Findings Denali Showcase Event
	- MEMO Liquor License
	Frankenfield License Application
	Frankenfield Background Check Authorization
	Frankenfield Background Investigation
	- MEMO Liquor License Refund
	- MEMO Pastor Variance
	Staff Report Pastor Variance
	Pastor Plans
	REFERENCE Building Requirements
	REFERENCE Variance Requirements
	Res 16-13 Pastor Variance
	- MEMO July 4th Fireworks
	1 Sponsor Info - final
	- MEMO Animal Ordinance
	grmem.mayor and city council 052813
	Uniform Animal Control Ordinance
	- MEMO LMCD Budget
	4-26-13 Memo to Member Cities (Submittal of Draft 2014 Budget Options)
	LMCD 2014 Budget- (Draft- Amended Option 2)
	Levy
	Detail
	Appendix A

	LMCD 2014 Budget- (Draft- Option 1)
	LMCD Salary and Hourly Rate Survey (2010-2013)
	Notice of Public Meeting (Review of Draft 2014 LMCD Budget)
	- MEMO Recycling
	2012 Hennepin County Recycling Resolution
	Environmental Education Toolkit: Activity Ideas and Resources — Hennepin County, Minnesota
	Residential Recycling Toolkit | Solid Waste Management Coordinating Board
	- MEMO Council Comments
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	- MEMO FYI no date
	2013 04-17 PC Minutes
	2013 05-02 GW Comments TMDL Credit Distribution
	2013 05-08 MPCA Approval of MCES Project
	2013 05-09 Forfeiture Proceeds
	2013 05-09 Lower Lake Grade
	2013 05-09 St. Alban's Bay Grade
	2013 05-10 Letter to Landlords
	2013 05-15 PC Minutes
	2013 05-15 Web Chart.xls
	2013 05-15 Web Report
	2013 05-20 Street Sweep Analysis_Spring13_DHVN GRWD WDLD

	2013 05-29 Brost Letter
	2013 05-29 Connors Letter



